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STATE OF OHIO 35 North Fourth Street, 1* Floor

Columbus, Ohio 43215
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR otumbus, Do
Telephone 614-466-4514

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370
Facsimile 614-728-7398

To County Auditor and Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio 44113:

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of Cuyahoga County, prepared by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, for the audit period January 1, 1999 to December 31, 1999. Based
upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11,
Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and,

accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor
of State, regulations and grant requirements. Cuyahoga County is responsible for compliance
with these laws and regulations.

JIM PETRO
Auditor of State

December 15, 2000
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REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE
AND ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE



PRICEAATERHOUSE(QOPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1500 One Cleveland Center
1375 East Ninth Street
Cleveland OH 44114-1700
Telephone (216) 875 3000
Facsimile (216) 575 0170

Report On Compliance And On Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting Based On An Audit Of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

The County Auditor and Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio 44113:

We have audited the financial statements of Cuyahoga County (the "County") as of and for the year ended
December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 8, 2000. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to
the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have reported to
management of the County in a separate letter dated June 8, 2000.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of County officials and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should to be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

ol setoridricaeCooee I

June §, 2000



PRICEAATERHOUSE( COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1500 One Cleveland Center
1375 East Ninth Street
Cleveland OH 44114-1700
Telephone (216) 875 3000
Facsimile (216) 575 0170

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable
To Each Major Program And Internal Control Over
Compliance In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

The County Auditor and Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio 44113:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Cuyahoga County (the "County") with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
1999. The County's major federal programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not -
provide a legal determination on the County's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999. However, the
results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which
are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 99-1 through 99-3.



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
regarding compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal programs in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance and to
test and report on the internal control regarding compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
We noted no matters involving the internal control regarding compliance and its operation which we
consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financial statements of the County as of and for the year ended December 31,
1999 and have issued our report thereon dated June 8, 2000. Our audit was performed for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

This report is intended for the information and use of County officials and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

ST s S i §

June 8, 2000
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OBIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
POR THE YFAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL FEDERAL GRANT/ PROGRAM/ FEDERAL
GRANTOR/SUB-GRANTOR CFDA CONTRACT GRANT AWARD GRANT
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER PERIOD AMOUNT EXPENDITURES
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
PASS-THROUGH OHIO
DEFPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
FOOD DISTRIBUTION 10.550 N/ N/A N/A 3 8,924
Sublotal 10.550 3924
NATIONAL SCHOOL 1L,UNCH PROGRAM 10.555 IRN 66563 NA NA 128,569
NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM 10.555 IRN 66563 N/A NA 131,653
260,222
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
AGRICULTURE EXPENDITURES 269,146
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
PASS-THROUGH OHIO
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
COCBMR TITLE VI-B SCHOOL AGE GRANT 84.027 066363-6B-SF-00P 07/01/99-12/31/99 392,522 213,984
COCBMR FYV9 TITLE VI-B SCHOOL AGE 84.027 066563-6B-~SF-99P 07/01/98-06/30/99 342,592 127,035
Subisial 34.027 341,019
CCBMR TITLE VI-B PRESCHOOL GRANT 84.173 066563-PG-S1-2000P 07/01/99-08/31/00 111,748 36,110
OCBMR FY99 TITLE VI-B PRESCHOOL 84.173 066563-PG-S1-99P 07/01/98-06/30/99 111,540 37,414
Subletal 84.173 113,524
FY99 TITLE VI-B INNOVATIVE EDUCATION 84.298 066563-C2-51-99 07/01/98-09/30/99 2,202 2,202
Subtotal 84.298 2,202
OFFICE FOR REHABILITATIVE SERVICES-
PASS-THROUGH OHIO DEPARTMENT OF
REHABILITATION SERVICES COMMISSION
ORSC GRANT 84.126 TITLE 1 106/01/97-09/30/98 1,400,000 0
ORSC GRANT 84.126 TITLE 1 10/01/98-09/30/99 1,143,829 741,634
ORSC 84.126 TITLE 1 N/A N/A 332,349
Subtetal 84.126 1,073,983
OFFICE OF ASSISTANT
SECRETARY FOR
ELEMENTARY EDUCATION,
PASS-THROUGH OHIO DEPARTMENT
OF ALCOHOL AND DRUG ADDICTION SERVICES
DRUG FREE SCHOOLS 84.186 NA NA NA 540201
PROJECT SAFE 84.186 NA Na NA 85,693
Sublotal 84.186 625,894
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
EXPENDITURES 2,156,622
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
PASS-THROUGH OHIO
DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT
HOME WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 81-042 D-97-109 04/01/97-03/31/98 349,999 7,498
HOME WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 81-042 D-98-109 04/01/98-12/31/99 349,999 110,537
HOME WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 81-042 D-99-109 04/01/99-12/31/00 349,999 227,764
Subtotal 81.042 345,799
STRIPPER MDL-378 NA 64,271 0
STRIPPER MDL-378 NA 148,603 19,399
STRIPPER MDL-378 NA 245,643 128,366
147,768
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
ENERGY EXPENDITURES 493,564
See A ing Notes to Schedule of E: di of Federal Awards




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL FEDERAL GRANT/ PROGRAM/ FEDERAL
GRANTOR/SUB-GRANTOR CFDA CONTRACT GRANT AWARD GRANT
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER PERIOD AMOUNT EXPENDITURES
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
PASS-THROUGH OHIO
DISASTER SERVICES
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 83.503 34-6000.817 N/A N/A 570,511
TOTAL FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
AGENCY EXPENDITURES 570,511
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.
AND HU, SERVICES
HIV- CLUSTER:
RYAN WHITE HIVIAIDS SUPPLEMENTAL 93.914 BRH-890045-010 05/08/96-05/07/97 66,666 (4
RYAN WHITE HIV/AIDS SUPPLEMENTAL .93.914 BRH-890045-02-0 05/08/97-02/28/98 386,589 7,226
KYAN WHITE HIV EMERGENCY RELIEF FROJECT 93914 BRH-890045-03-0 03/01/98-02/28/98 2,459,443 1,177,791
RYAN WHITE TITLE I HIVIAIDS EMERGENCY SERVICE PROG 93914 H89-HA-00045-04 03/01/99-02/29/00 2,933,058 2,011,283
POST TANF TRACKING GRANT 93-914 98ASPE-3054 09/20/98-02/20/00 250,000 95,811
Subioial 93.914 3,292,111
RYAN WHITE HIV/IAIDS GRANT 23915 BRX-630043-96-0 05/30/96-05/02/97 402,911 [
RYAN WHITE HIV/IAIDS GRANT - FORMUIA 93915 BRX-630045-97-0 05/03/97-02/28/98 1,290,924 16,895
Sublotal 93.915 16,895
PASS-THROUGH OHIO
DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT
HOME WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 93.568 H-97-109 04/01/97-03/31/98 347,406 4,439
HOME, WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 93.568 H-98-109 04/01/98-12/31/99 289,880 53,903
HOME WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 93.568 H-99-109 04/01/99-12/31/00 311,620 184,471
Sublosal 93.568 242,813
PASS-THROUGH OHIO DEPARTMENT
OF MENTAL RETARDATION
TITLEXX 93.667 MR-18-01 N/A NA 1,420,669
TITLEXX 93.667 MHI2 NA NA 1,708,272
Subtotal 93.667
3,128 941
PASS-THROUGH OHIO DEPARTMENT .
OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
HEALTH BLOCK GRANT 93.958 MHI2 NA N/A 617,368
Subtolal 93,958 617,368
PASS-THROUGH ORIO DEPARTMENT OF
ALCOHOL AND ADDICTION SERVICES
HEALTH BLOCK GRANT 93.959 MHI2 N/A NA 4,715,406
Hiv 93.959 MH12 N/A NA 729,024
UMADOP-Federal Fiow Through 93.959 MHI2 NA N/A 376,320
WOMEN'S 15% 93.959 MHI2 NA NA 951,726
Subtetal 93.959 6,772,476
TARGET CITIES 93.196 NA NA N/A 3,044,993
Sublotal 93.196 5,044,993
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES EXPENDITURES 19,115,597

Notes to Schedule of di of Federal Awards




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL FEDERAL GRANT/ PROGRAM/ FEDERAL
GRANTOR/SUB-GRANTOR CFDA CONTRACT GRANT AWARD GRANT
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER PERIOD AMOUNT EXPENDITURES
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING.
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT,
COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

CDBG CONTRACT YEAR 20 14218 B-94-UC-39-000! 06/01/94-05/31/95 3,709,000 o
CDBG-CONTRACT YEAR 21 FYV5 14218 B-95-UC-39-0001 06/01/93-05/31/96 3,507,000 18,263
TRANSITIONAL HOUSING GRANT FY 95 14.218 OHTHE8-306-01 01/01/96-12/31/98 35,826 /]
CDBG CONTRACT YEAR 22 1996 14.218 B-96-UC-39-0001 06/01/96-05/31/97 3,414,000 40,102
CDBG-CONTRACT YEAR 23 1997 14218 B-97-UC-39-0001 06/01/97-05/31/98 3,314,000 1,031,469
CDBG CONTRACT YEAR 24, 1998 14.218 B-98-UC-39-0001 06/01/98-05/31/99 3,821,824 3,670,739
CDBG CONTRACT YEAR 25, 1999 14.218 B-99-UC-39-0001 06/01/99-05/31/00 4,706,920 1,198,701

Subtptal 14.218 5,959,274
CDBG-BELLEFAIRE SPECIAL PURPOSE 14.227 OHI28PG37 02/01/94-02/01/96 2,000,000 0

Subtotal 14.227 /]
EMERGENCY SHELTER FY97 ’ 14.231 8-97-UC-39-0001 06/01/97-05/31/98 89,000 4,450
EMERGENCY SHELTER FY98 14231 S-98-UC-39-0001 06/01/98-05/31/99 127,000 112,985
EMERGENCY SHELTER FY99 14.231 $-99.UC-39-0001 06/01/99-05/31/00 115,000 3,750

Subtotal 14.231 123,188
HUD SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 14.235 OH16195-0058 07/01/95-08/01/98 1,297,843 64,134
SUPPORTIVE HOUSING ADMIN. FY95 14.235 OH16B935-0775 12/01/95-12/31/00 2,440,065 1,447,331
SHP-SALVATION ARMY 14.235 OH98B109200-004 04/01/97-12/31/0 983,394 180,782
SHP- CLEVELAND WOMEN, INC 14.235 OH16B-98-0202 04/01/97-12/31/01 844,207 293,655
SHP - MENTAL HEALTH SERV 14.235 OH16B-98-0203 04/01/97-12/31/01 1,225,021 442,666
CMHA WILLSON TOWER-SUPP. HOUSING PROG 14.235 OH16B98-0206 07/01/97-12/31/02 1,187,088 212,921
CMHA KING KENNEDY PROJECT-SUPP HOUSING PROG 14.235 OH16898-0208 07/01/97-12/31/02 549,203 181,099
CUYAHOGA COUNTY SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROG 14.235 OH16B98-0202 08/01/98-05/31/02 872,485 300,396
CUYAHOGA COUNTY SUPP. HOUSING DEMON. PROG 14.235 OH16B98-0204 08/01/98-05/31/02 53,469 20,050
HITCHCOCK CENTER SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 14235 OH16R98-0213 08/01/98-05/31/02 741,640 217,397
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 14.235 OH-16B-97-0214 08/01/98-05/31/02 499,567 86,312
FAMILY TRANSITIONAL HOUSING SUPP. HOUSING 14.235 OH16B98-0216 08/01/98-05/31/02 248,448 87,968
LKWD CHRISTIAN SERVICE CENTER 14.235 OH-16B-97-0218 08/01/98-05/31/02 145,950 33,146
HUD SUPPORTIVE HOUSING FY98 14.235 OH-16B-80-2006 02/01/99-01/31/01 111,542 89,989
DEP'T OF S&A-OFFICE OF HOMELES 14.235 OH-16B-80-2003 07/01/99-06/30/02 1,622,703 181,426
DSAS PASS PROGRAM 14.235 OH-16B-80-2001 10/15/99-12/31/03 1,536,164 49,946

Subtotal 14.235 3,889,418
SHELTER PLUS CARE 14.238 OH16C93-1155 09/01/94-08/31/99 9,995,460 3,290,485
SHELTER PLUS CARE-TRA-1996 14.238 OH16C96-020! 03/01/97-12/31/03 4,402,320 1,107,291
EDEN, INC 14.238 OH-16C-97-0211 08/01/98-05/31/04 1,659,300 660,323

Sublotal 14.238 35,088,101
C. D. HOME GRANT YEAR 18 14.239 M-92-UC.39-0216 06/01/92-05/31/96 1,612,000 28,805
HOME FY93 14.239 M-93-UC-39-0216 06/01/93-05/31/97 1,463,000 86,292
CDBG-HOME FY94 14.239 M-94-DC-39-0216 06/01/94-05/31/98 1,926,000 249,739
CDBG-HOME FY95 14239 M-95-DC-39-0216 06/01/95-05/31/99 2,049,000 314,059
HOME 1996 14.239 M-96-DC-39-0216 06/01/96-12/31/00 8,908,000 173,150
HOME 1997 14.239 M-97-DC-39-0216 06/01/97-05/31/01 2,153,000 579,249
HOME 1998 14.239 M-98-DC-39-0216 06/01/98-05/31/02 2,440,244 381,916
HOME 1999 14.239 M-99-DC-39-0216 06/01/99-05/31/03 2,527,000 286,473

Sublotal 14.239 2,299,683
C. D. HOPE AFFORDABLE HOUSING 92 14.240 J-3-92-OH009-]-A 06/01/92-05/31/93 480,000 /]

Subistal 14.240 o
YOUTHBUILD GRANT 14.243 Y-1998-IM-OH-0030 12/08/98-12/31/00 330,000 135,543

Subtotal 14,243 135,543

ing Notes to Schedule of dif of Federal Awards




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
FEDERAL FEDERAL GRANT/ PROGRAM/ FEDERAL
GRANTOR/SUB-GRANTOR CFDA CONTRACT GRANT AWARD GRANT
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER PERIOD AMOUNT EXPENDITURES
INNOVATIVE HOMELESS SERVICES 14.245 OH16I95-0058 0901/95-12/31/97 959,217 27,109
Subiotal 14.245 27,109
HUD SECTION 108 14.246 B-94-UC-39-0001 06/01/98-12/31/04 10,000,000 0
SPECIAL INTTIATIVE GRANT-PROJECT EAST 14246 B-98-SP-OH-0086 08/14/98-07/31/03 500,000 143,317
Subtotal 14.245 143,317
LEAD BASED PAINT 14.900 OHLHC0099-98 03/01/98-02/29/01 781,554 96,585
Subtotal 14.900 96,588
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 12,732,215
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION,
JUVENILE JUSTICE AND
DELINQUENCY PREVENTION
ALLOCATION TO THE STATES -
PASSED THROUGH THE OFFICE OF CRIMINAL
JUSTICE SERVICES
PROSECUTOR~JUVENILE ACC INC GRANT 16.523 98-JB-004-A082 03/01/99-02/29/00 121,500 0
VERTICAL PROSECUTION - JAIBG 16,523 98 JB-004-A082 01/01/99-10/01/01 120,000 64,584
Subiolal 16.523 64,584
OHIO JUV ACCOUNTABILITY INC BLOCK GRANT 16.340 98-JB-D13-A053 01/01/99-12/31/99 355,840 171,994
FY 98 JJDP ADMIN 16.540 98-JI-ADM-0320 04/01/99-03/31/00 15,000 7,172
JUVENILE JUSTICE BLOCK GRANT FY98 16.540 98- J-RPU-0785 01/01/99-09/30/00 287,174 144,099
JJDP BLOCK GRANT FY9S 16.540 95-0755 10/01/95-09/30/96 288,321 0
JJDP BLOCK GRANT FY96 16.540 96-JI-RPU-0765 10/01/95-09/30/98 275,810 32,616
JIDP BLOCK GRANT FY98 16.540 97-JJ-RPU-0775 10/01/96-09/30/99 270,146 36,222
YOUTH VIOLENCE PROGRAM 98 16.540 $7.JJ-IN4-01 44 01/01/98-12/31/98 59,494 {5,437)
FY96 JUVENILE JUSTICE TITLE V BLOCK GRANT 16.540 96-JV-TS0-5008 01/01/98-12/31/99 127,848 28,335
JJDP - EAST CLEVE FOCUS PROGRAM 16.540 97 JV-RPU-0776 10/01/96-09/30/99 103,760 93,604
FYY7 JJIDP ADMINISTRATION GRANT 16.540 97-J-ADM-0320 04/01/98-03/31/99 13,000 3,213
Subioial 16.540 533,818
OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS
PASS-THROUGH OHIO ATTORNEY
GENERAL'S OFFICE
BOOT CAMP FOR JUVENILE OFFENDERS 16.541 91-MU-CX-KOO4 09/15/91-03/14/93 779,001 0
Subietal 16.541 0
CRIMINAL HISTORY PILOT PROJECT 16.550 31-6402047 10/01/91-12/31/95 150,000 [
Subiotal 16.550 0
CRIMINAL HISTORY UPGRADE 16.55¢4 95.-DG-GOI1-7450 07/31/98-09/30/98 69,576 19472
Subissal 16.554 19472
VICTIM IMPACT RESTI TUHpN 16.575 87-BD-DO2-5428 06/01/88-03/01/89 9,997 [
FELONY COORDINATOR 16.575 97VAGENE 060 10/01/96-09/30/97 153,755 115
Subtotal 16.575 115

Notes to

hedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards




COUNTY OF éU YAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL FEDERAL GRANT/ PROGRAMY/ FEDERAL
GRANTORSUB-GRANTOR CFDA CONTRACT GRANT AWARD GRANT
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER PERIOD AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS
DRUG CONTROL AND SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT ACT -

PASSED THROUGH THE OFFICE OF

CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

NARCOTICS CONTROL BLOCK GRANT 16,579 98-DG-RPU-0787 12/03/96-11/30/97 1,509,291 601,096
FY 98 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL ADMINISTRATION 16.579 98-DG-ADM-7431 04/01/99-03/31/00 70,000 34,625
CHILDREN WHO WITNESS VIOLENCE 16.579 98-DG~DO2-7472 01/01/99-12/31199 64,382 61,273
PRETRIAL DIV PROG 95 16.579 94-DG-EOI-7442 01/01/95-12/31195 96,679 0
DRUG PROSECUTION PROGRAM 1998 16.579 97-DG-EO3-7425 12/01/97-11/30/98 175,635 0
DRUG PROSECUTION 1998 16.579 98-DG-E01-7425 12/01/98-11/30/99 139,392 139,392
SEX OFFENDER PROG 95 16.579 94-DG-E03-7435 061/01/95-12/31/95 39,360 0
BYRNE MEMORIAL BLOCK GRANT 95-96 16.579 95-DG-RPU-0757 10/01/95-12/31/96 1,680,729 272
BATTERER'S INTERVENTION 16.579 95-DG-F02-7444 10/01/94-09/30/97 125,717 0
FELONY VICTIM ASSIST. 16.579 95-DG-F02-7445 10/01/94-09/30/97 76,500 0
FY96 VICTIM RESTITUTION PROJECT 16.579 95-DG-F02-7446 01/01/96-12/31/96 71,590 0
PRETRIAL DIVERSION 96 16.579 95-DG-E01-7442 01/01/96-12/31/96 96,679 4
BYRNE MEMORIAL BLOCK GRANT FY396 16.579 96-DG-RPU-0767 10/01/95-09/30/98 1,634,674 124,446
BATTERER'S INTERVENTION CCB FY96 16.579 97-DG-F02-7444 07/01/96-06/30/97 313,455 (1.316)
FELONY VICTIM ASSISTANCE 97 16.579 96-DG-DO2-7445 01/01/97-12/31/97 57,375 0
BATTERER'S INTERVENTION PROJECT 97 16.579 96-DG-FO2-7444 01/01/97-12/31897 94,288 (666)
FY 99 AGGRESSION CONTROL TRAINING PROGRAM 16.579 98-DG-F02-7467 01/01/99-12/31/99 94,500 88,534
FY 99 EDUCATION AND EMPLOYMENT 16.579 98-DG-F02-7407 01/01/99-12/31/99 123,803 104,635
FORENSIC TRAINING PROGRAM 16.579 96-DG-GO3-7455 10/01/95-09/30/98 38,858 0
SEX OFFENDERS PROGRAM 16.579 96-DG-FO2-7435 01/01/97-12/3197 29,520 0
ELECTRONIC IMAGING - CORONER 16.579 94-DG-GO2-7462 01/01/97-09/30/97 4,183 0
DRUG PROSECUTION 1997 16.579 96-DG-EO3-7425 12/01/96-11/30/97 209,088 0
VICTIM RESTITUTION PROJECT 16.579 96-DG-FO2-7446 01/01/97-12/31197 48,892 4
PRE-TRIAL DIVERSION 1998 16.579 97-DG-EOQL-7442 01/01/98-12/31198 72,509 61
PRE-TRIAL DIVERSION 1997 16.579 97-DG-EO1-7442 01/01/97-12/31/97 72,509 [
YDC THERAPEUTIC COMMUNITY 16.579 96-RS-SAT-103 10/01/97-09/30/98 166,082 3,986
EDUCATION & EMPLOYMENT GRANT 98 16.579 97-DG-FO2-7407 01/01/98-12/31198 123,803 18,984
BATTERER'S INTERVENTION PROVECT 98 16.579 97-DG-FO2-7444 01/01/98-12/31/98 94,288 577
FY97 BYRNE MEMORIAL BLOCK GRANT 16.579 97-DG-RPU-0777 10/01/97-09/30/99 1,766,018 230,203
FELONY VICTIM ASSISTANCE 98 16.579 97-DG-DO2-7445 01/01/98-12/31/98 48,105 ©11)
FY 99 FELONY VICTIM ASSISTANCE 16.579 98-DG-D02-7445 01/01/99-12/31/99 38,250 33127
C3 JIS PLANNING GRANT 16.579 95-RU-NCH-9030 10/01/97-09/30/98 88,338 231
BYRNE - DAY REPORTING FY98 16.579 97-DG-FO3-7443 12/31/97-12/3198 225,820 (12,268}
BYRNE - CASEFLOW MANUAL 16.579 97-DG-GO3-7404 01/01/98-12/31/98 45,000 27,103
FORENSIC TRAINING - BYRNE MEMORIAL 16.579 98-DG-GO3-7455 01/01/98-12/31/98 58,828 10,687
FORENSIC TRAINING FY98 16,579 98-DG-(G03-7455 01/01/99-12/31/99 49,415 38,583
COGNITIVE EDUCATION PROY FY 98 16.579 97-DG-GO2-7400 01/01/98-12/31/98 46,044 4,267
COGNITIVE EDUCATION PROJ FY98 16.579 98-DG-GO2-7400 01/01/99-12/31/99 46,044 35,869
VICTIM RESTITUTION PROJECT FY 98 16,579 97-DG-DO2-7446 01/01/98-12/31/98 45,102 135
VICTIM RESTITUTION 16.579 98-DG-D02-7446 01/01/99-12/31/99 46,044 35,718
POLYGRAPH TRAINING PROVECT 16.579 97-DGGO3-7403 01/01/98-12/31/98 6,788 0
C3JIS PLANNING 16.579 - 96-97-DGGD1-7471 01/01/99-12/31199 150,000 137,162
DV TRACKING/ CONTROL 16.579 98-DG-F02-7469 01/01/99-12/31/99 93,198 56,800
FY 97 BYRNE MEMORIAL ADMINISTRATION GRANT 16.579 97-DG-ADM-7431 04/01/98-03/31799 70,000 19279
CENTRALIZED CASE MANAGEMENT 91 16.579 90-DG-FO2-7413 10/01/90-09/30/91 33,672 0
1ST APPEARANCE BAIl PROJECT 90-91 16.579 90-DG-FO2-7418 10/01/90-09/30/91 75,696 4

Sublotal 16.579 1,794,184
FY96 VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN 16.588 96-WF-RPU-0768 07/01/96-03/31/98 597,472 166,724
VAWA INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRAINING 1999 16.588 98-WF-VAI-6-8677 04/01/99-03/31/00 91,641 61,967
VAWA COORDINATED RAPE CRISIS CTR 16.588 98-WF-VAS-8676 04/01/99-03/31/00 34,922 6,082
INTER-JURISDICTION PROSECUTION 98 16.588 96-WF-VAI-8677 04/01/98-03/31/98 111,186 2,349
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT 16.588 96-WF-VA7-8673 07/01/97-03/31/98 62,500 242
CLEVE PRIS. VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN 16.588 98-WF-VA2-8670 04/01/99-03/31/00 69,013 8,737
CLEVE PROSECUTOR VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN PROJ 16.588 96-WF-VA2-8670 07/04/98-06/30/98 35,951 21,877
FY 97 VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN BLOCK GRANT 16.588 97-WF-RPU-0778 04/01/98-03/31/99 668,583 258,199
FY98 VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN BL SUB-GRH#0788 16.588 98-WF-RPU-0788 04/01/99-03/31/00 596,439 100,740
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN 99 16.588 97-WF-VAI-8677 07/01/98-03/31/99 101,824 35,453
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN 98 16.588 97-WP-VA7-8673 04/01/98-03/31/99 29,260 10,189
FY 98 VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT 16.588 98-WF-VAW-8668 04/01/99-03/31/00 17,000 8,645
FY 97 VAWA ADMINISTRATION GRANT 16,588 97-WF-VAW-8668 04/01/98-03/31199 18,870 35,958
VAWA COORDINATED RESPONSE - CLEVE RAPE CRISIS 16.588 96-WF-VAS-8676 07/01/98-06/36/99 30,526 24,555

Sublotal 16.538 731,717

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

FEDERAL FEDERAL GRANT/ PROGRAM/ FEDERAL
GRANTOR/SUB-GRANTOR CFDA CONTRACT GRANT AWARD GRANT
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER PERIOD AMOUNT EXPENDITURES
OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS

GREATER CLEVELAND DRUG COURT IMPLEMENTATION 16.585 97.DC-VX-0106 04/01/97-09/30/98 381,812 160913
LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT 98 16.585 1999-LBVX-6867 10/01/98-09/30/00 363,067 0
FEDERAL DRUG CRT - JUVENILE 16.585 1999-DC-VX-0060 07/01/99-11/30/00 400,000 14,890
Subiotall6. 583 175,803

PROTECTION ORDER REGISTRY 16.858 97.WE-VX-0101 01/01/97-06/30/98 254,608 85,263
Subtotal 16.858 85,263

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
JUSTICE EXPENDITURES 3,404,956
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
PASS-THROUGH ORIO BUREAU OF
EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

JTPAEDWAA PY97 17.246 A-97-21-00-00 07/01/97-06/30/98 1,081,912 36,756
JTPA EDWAA PY98 17.246 A-98-21-00-00 07/01/98-06/30/99 881,739 517,045
JTPA EDWAA PY 99 17.246 A-99-21-00-00 07/01/99-06/30/00 460,800 251,393
JTPA EDWAA PY9S 17.246 A-95-21-00-01 07/01/95-06/30/96 1,377,897 o
JTPA EDWAA PY96 17.246 A-96-21-00-01 07/01/96-06/30/97 669,124 2,924
Sublotal 17.246 808,118

OHIO ONE STOP GRANT 17.250 N/A 01/01/98-12/31/98 650,000 90,704
JTFPA TITLE I1B PYV6 17.250 5.97-21-00-00 10/01/96-09/30/97 899,247 140,284
JTPA TITLE IIA 77% PYV7 17.250 0-97-21-00-00 07/01/97-06/30/98 789,151 30,895
JTPA TITLE IIC 82% PY97 17.250 Y-97-21-00-00 07/01/97-06/30/98 110,002 13,711
JTPA TITLE 1IA 5% PYV7 17.250 1-97-21-00-00 07/01/97-06/30/98 56,124 12,729)
JTPA STAFF/OVERHEAD AC 17.250 NA 07/01/97-06/30/98 1,316
JTPA PIC OVERHEAD 97 17.250 N/A 07/01/97-06/30/98 319
JTPA PYV6 TITLE Il INCENTIVE 12.250 N/A 07/01/97-06/30/98 30,022 0
JTPA IIB PY97 OPERATING 17.250 10/01/97-06/30/02 13,977
JTPA IIB PY98 OFERATING 17.250 10/01/97-06/30/02 676,717
JTPA TTTLE JIA 77% PY98 17.250 0-98-21-00-00 07/01/98-06/30/99 837,277 273,730
JTPA TITLE 1IC 82% PY98 17.250 Y-98-21-00-00 07/01/98-06/30/99 215,664 (23,374)
JTPA TITLE IIA 5% PY98 17.250 1-98-21-00-00 07/01/98-06/30/99 67,952 12,104
JTPA STAFF/OVERHEAD ACC 17.250 07/01/98-06/30/99 325,871
JTPA PIC OVERHEAD PY98 17.250 07/01/98-06/36/99 3,891
JTPA TITLE IIA-77% PY99 17.250 0-99-21-00-00 07/01/99-06/30/00 794,897 207,095
JTPA TITLE IIC 82% PYY9 17.250 Y-99-21-00-00 07/01/99-06/30/00 107,203 57,260
JTPA TITLE IIA 5% FY99 17.250 1-99-21-00-00 07/01/99-06/30/00 57,407 20,045
JTPA STAFF/ OVERHEAD ACCOUNT PY 17.250 50
JTPA OPERATING PYY5 17.250 N/A N/A N/A /]
JTPA IIA 77% PY96 17.250 O-96-21-00-01 07/01/96-06/36/97 645,542 185,635
JTPA IIC 82% PY96 17.250 Y-96-21-00-01 07/01/96-06/30/97 173,855 7.102
JTPA IIA 5% PYV6 17.250 1-96-21-00-01 07/01/96-06/30/97 47,774 [/
JTPA STAFF / OVERHEAD 17.250 N/A 07/01/96-06/30/97 0
1,999,181

PASS-THROUGH OHIO DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION THROUGH OHIO BUREAU
OF EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

JTPA TITLE 1A 8% PYS7 17.250 4-97-21-00-00 07/01/97-06/30/98 74,110 23,249
JTPA TITLE 114 8% PYV8 17.250 4-98-21-00-00 07/01/98-06/30/99 85,526 49,961
JTPA TITLE 114 8% PY99 17.250 4-99-21-00-00 07/01/99-06/36/99 76,041 19,202
JTPA IIA 8% PYVS 17.250 4-95-21-00-00 07/01/95-06/30/96 77,652 /]
JTPA IIA 8% PYV6 17.250 4-96-21-00-00 07/01/96-06/30/97 61,047 2,200
114

Subtotal 17.250 2,047,295

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF

LABOR EXPENDITURES 2,855,413

Notes to Schedule of Expendif of Federal Awards
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, ORIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FEDERAL
GRANTOR/SUB-GRANTOR

PROGRAM TITLE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
FEDERAL

GRANT/
CFDA CONTRACT
NUMBER NUMBER

PERIOD

PROGRAM/
AWARD
AMOUNT

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

U. S ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

COUNTY BOARD OF MENTAL RETARDATION EPA LOAN
PASS-THROUGH OHIO ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY

BROWNFIELD'S RECLAMATION
ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE FY96

Subtosal 66.802

TOTAL U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY EXFENDITURES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION,

PASS-THROUGH OHIO ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS EMERGENCY PREPAR. TRAIN.

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
EXPENDITURES

TOTAL FEDERAL GRANT EXPENDITURES

ing Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

20US8.CH011 N/A

66.802 V005944-01-9
66.802 USEPA-S

N/A BTF-A-14-94-C-33457

20.703 HMEOHS8016060

11

N/A

07/01/93-12/31/96
01/01/97-12/31/97

N/A

10/01/99-90-09/30/00

493,962

99,000
19,722

NA

20,937

3

27,442

45
760

28247

227,921

3,645

233,866

46,859,837




Cuyahoga County
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the year ended December 31, 1999

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

a. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
transactions of Cuyahoga County (the "County") recorded on the accrual basis of accounting.

b. Subrecipients

Certain funds are passed through to subgrantee organizations by the County. Expenditures
incurred by the subgrantees and reimbursed by the County are presented in the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards. The County is also the subrecipient of federal funds which have
been subject to testing and are reported as expenditures and listed separately as federal pass-
through funds. '

12
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Cuyahoga County

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
for the year ended December 31, 1999

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements:

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.218 Community Development Block Grant

14.239 Home Grant

17.250 Job Training Partnership Act

16.579 Bryne Formula Grant

93.667 Social Services Block Grant .

93.959 Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
Block Grant

84.126 Rehabilitation Services Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported.

13

Type

Unqualified

yes

yes
yes

yes

yes

Unqualified

X

yes

Federal

pebe e

e

Expenditures

e

$5,959,274

2,299,683
2,047,295
1,794,184
3,128,941

6,772,476
1,073,983

$1.405,795

__Yyes

X

no

none reported
no

no

none reported

no

no



Cuyahoga County

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Section III - Summary of Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs
for the year ended December 31, 1999

Finding #99-1: Monitoring of Subrecipients.

Agency Program Title CFDA #
Justice Affairs Byrne Formula Grant 16.579
Board of Mental Health Social Services Block Grant 93.667
Condition

The subrecipients of Justice Affairs and Board of Mental Health are not submitting their monthly reports
timely to the respective agencies. The Board of Mental Health is not receiving the yearly A-133 reports
from the subrecipients within the six months after year-end.

Criteria

As stipulated in the Fiscal Guidelines of the Byrne Formula Grant and the Social Services Block Grant all
monthly reports are to be received by the 10th day of the following month, in order for Justice Affairs and
the Board of Mental Health to create an accurate quarterly report by the 15th day following the end of the
quarter. According to the Social Services Block Grant requirements, the subrecipients’ A-133 reports are
to be received, by the granting agency within six months of year-end for its proper monitoring of the
subrecipients’ activities. Additionally, OMB Circular A-133 (Part 3 Section M) requires that, if in a fiscal
year a recipient of a federal award passes through federal funds to a subrecipient, the primary recipient is
responsible for determining whether the subrecipient expends the federal award in accordance with the
applicable federal laws and regulations. Additionally, the primary recipient is responsible for ensuring
audits are performed and prompt corrective action is taken on any audit findings.

Cause/Effect
There is no effective monitoring of the submission of monthly reports of the subrecipients. Failure to
receive these reports results in inaccurate quarterly reports submitted to the State and insufficient

monitoring of the subrecipients.

Recommendation

Justice Affairs and the Board of Mental Health need to be more proactive in receiving these reports by
sending reminder letters to the agencies, and promptly following up with late submissions to ensure that
all reports are received according to the guidelines.

14



Cuyahoga County

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Section III - Summary of Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
for the year ended December 31, 1999

Finding #99-1: Monitoring of Subrecipients, Continued.

Management’s Response

Justice Affairs

The auditor’s recommendation is currently being implemented as described. An initial letter concerning
late submission of monthly financial reports is sent out through certified mail to the agencies with a 10 or
15-day deadline to submit said reports. A second and final notice is sent out through certified mail to the
same agencies with another 5 days to respond.

Board of Mental Health

The Cuyahoga County Community Mental Health Board ("CMHB") has identified that contract agencies
have been delinquent in submitting their audits by the due date. Effective 7/1/1999, the CMHB revised
its service provider contract to include the following provision:

7.3.2 Due Date

a. The audit or the agreed upon procedure engagement report shall be completed and submitted 30 days
after completion or five months after the end of the Contract Service Provider’s fiscal year being
reported, whichever is sooner.

b. Upon failure of the Contract Service Provider to submit the audit or agreed upon procedure
engagement report within the time requirements, the CMHB reserves the right to suspend future
funds, if any, pursuant to sections 9.2.6 and 9.2.7 of this contract.

Management has identified that the agencies were consistently late in submitting their reports as monthly
funding allocations were not directly related to the report submission. Effective 7/1/1999, the Cuyahoga
County Community Mental Health Board moved to a fee for service reimbursement system. Thus once
fully implemented, agencies will not receive funds unless claims have been properly submitted and
processed via the new computer system. The new system allows agencies to submit claims on a weekly
basis thus the month end report submission has been eliminated.

15



Cuyahoga County

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Section III - Summary of Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
for the year ended December 31, 1999

Finding #99-2: Equipment and Real Property Management

Agency Program Title CFDA #
Work and Training Rehabilitation Services 84.126
Condition

Currently, Work and Training Rehabilitation Services does not maintain a fixed asset inventory listing for
items purchased by the subrecipients of the grant funds. In addition, no site visits occur to test the
existence of these assets.

Criteria

As stated in 34 CFR 80.32 and the A-102.32 (Common Rule), equipment records shall be maintained and
a physical inventory of equipment shall be taken at least once every two years and reconciled to the
equipment records of all acquisitions and dispositions of property acquired with federal funds.

Additionally, subrecipients should be adequately monitored in order to ascertain that the federal funds
being passed through to them are being appropriately spent.

Cause/Effect

Work and Training Rehabilitation Services is at risk of unauthorized use of funds for purchases. Further,
it is at risk for unauthorized disposal of equipment.

Recommendation

A detailed fixed asset listing is to be maintained showing the date of service of the equipment, description
and serial number, cost, and disposal date. In addition, site visits should be regularly performed to test
the existence and completeness.

Management’s Response

Management concurs with finding and action steps will be implemented to comply.

16



Cuyahoga County

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Section III - Summary of Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
for the year ended December 31, 1999

Finding #99-3: Eligibility of Participants.

Agency Program Title CFDA #
Board of Mental Retardation Social Services Block Grant 93.667

Questioned Costs: $12,375

Condition

The Board of Mental Retardation does not have sufficient documentation of its participants' eligibility. A
number of the recipients exceeded the monthly income cap of $849 and in other instances, files were
missing or the signature of the participant was not on the applicable paper work which makes them
eligible for this program. Therefore, eligibility of recipients could not be determined.

Criteria

As per the ORC Sec. 5101.46(E)(3) Title XX guidelines, all eligible recipients need to comply with the
eligibility requirements of income limitations and adequate documentation of eligibility should be
maintained for a period of three years.

Cause/Effect

Costs related to these recipients were improperly billed and reimbursed through Title XX. The actual
costs improperly reimbursed for calendar year 1999 were $12,375.

Recommendation

Controls regarding the application and approval of Title XX recipients need to be improved through a
more thorough review of applications so that only eligible recipients' service costs are being reimbursed
to CCBMR/DD via Title XX.

17



Cuyahoga County

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued

Section III - Summary of Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
for the year ended December 31, 1999

Finding #99-3: Eligibility of Participants, Continued.

Management’s Response

CCMBR/DD acknowledges the above exceptions which resulted in the improper billing of Title XX services in the
amount of $12,375. It should be noted that CCBMR/DD submitted billings for over 25C Title XX recipients in
1999. We selected for billing only those non-Medicaid enrollees who met the eligibility criteria, although over
2,000 audit enrollees actually received Title XX services on a regular basis. Our billings for calendar year 1999
still exceed the “cap” on total payments received from the State by approximately $270,000. CCBMR/DD does
have documented procedures in place pertaining to the billing and the eligibility determination process which are
intended to minimize the possibility of including in our billing any individuals whose eligibility has not been
verified. However, we were unable to devote sufficient time and attention to the eligibility determination records
during this period due to the fact that the employee normally assigned to perform these determinations was on leave
from late 1998 through mid-1999. Later review by this person and supervisory follow-up were obviously unable to
identify these exceptions.

Effective with the start of fiscal 2000, CCBMR/DD has adopted a significant change in our Title XX eligibility
requirements by eliminating income criteria, which has enable us to simplify the process and better comply with
our contract requirements.

18



Cuyahoga County
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued

Section IV - Summary of Prior Year Findings
for the year ended December 31, 1999

Finding #98-1 - Lack of Review of Subrecipient's A-133 Audit Report

Audit Finding
The Alcohol and Drug Board and Board of Mental Health did not obtain and/or monitor the A-133 Audit Reports
submitted by their respective subrecipients.

Auditor's Comments

Based on the A-133 audits performed for the fiscal year 1999, it appears that the Board of Mental Health still has
this issue (see Finding 99-1).

The Alcohol and Drug Board has implemented its corrective action plan and no findings were detected during our
review.

Finding #98-2 - Monitoring of Subrecipients

Audit Finding .
The Alcohol and Drug Board and Board of Mental Health did not monitor subrecipients.

Auditor's Comments

Based on the A-133 audits performed for the fiscal year 1999, it appears that the Board of Mental Health has
modified its procedures and now receives monthly reports detailing the expenditures incurred by its subrecipients.
However, see related finding 99-1.

The Alcohol and Drug Board has implemented its corrective action plan and no findings were detected during our
review.
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FRANK RUSSO

CUYAHOGA COUNTY AUDITOR

June 8, 2000

TO: The Citizens Of The County Of Cuyahoga

We are pleased to present the 1999 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of
Cuyahoga. This report provides a full and complete disclosure of the financial position and
operations of the County for the year ended December 31, 1999. My office believes that the data
herein is accurate in all respects and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a
maximum understanding of the County's financial affairs have been included.

Preparation of this report represents a renewed commitment to the prudent financial management
of Cuyahoga County. The annual report provides Cuyahoga County's elected officials and
managers with accurate and reliable financial information for making the important decisions
affecting the quality and level of service provided to residents of the County.

We are proud that Cuyahoga County has received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting 15 times from the Government Finance Officers Association. Attainment
of this prestigious award is an annual goal of our office.

I thank Steven C. Letsky, Director of Accounting, and his staff for their efforts in this endeavor.

Respectfully submitted,

Tk Bosr

Frank Russo
Cuyahoga County Auditor

1219 ONTARIO STREET « CLEVELAND, OHIO 44113-1657 « TELEPHONE 443-7010




'FRANK RUSSO

CUYAHOGA COUNTY AUDITOR

June 8, 2000

Honorable Frank Russo
Cuyahoga County Auditor

Honorable Jane L. Campbell
Honorable Jimmy Dimora
Honorable Tim McCormack
Cuyahoga County Commissioners

Honorable James Rokakis
Cuyahoga County Treasurer

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of Cuyahoga for
the year ended December 31, 1999. This report contains the financial statements and other financial and
statistical data that provide a complete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of the County.
The responsibility for the accuracy of all data presented, its completeness and fairness of presentation
rests with the County Auditor's Office (specifically the Financial Reporting Section), the Board of County
Commissioners and the County Treasurer's Office.

This is the seventeenth consecutive year that the County has issued a Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR). This report, which is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, is indicative of the commitment by County management to provide quality financial information
to the citizens of the County and all other interested parties.

The CAFR is organized in three sections: The Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Introductory Section contains a table of contents, letters of transmittal, the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 1998, the Award for Distinguished
Budget Presentation for 1999, a list of elected officials and an organization chart. The Financial Section
is subdivided in two parts. The first part is the General Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS). The
GPFS include the Auditor's opinion letter, the combined financial statements and the notes to these
statements. The second part of the Financial Section contains suppiemental financial statements and
schedules for the various funds of the County. The Statistical Section provides selected financial,
economic and demographic information, which may be used to indicate trends for comparative fiscal
periods.

REPORTING ENTITY

The County of Cuyahoga is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. It encompasses 59 municipalities,
villages and townships, of which Cleveland is the largest. The County includes 459 square miles and has
an estimated population of 1,371,717, making it one of the largest counties in the United States. The
County provides general governmental services to its citizens which include: Social services including
drug and alcohol abuse programs and programs for the mentally retarded, health and community
assistance related services, civil and criminal justice system services, road and bridge maintenance and
other general administrative support services. The County operates several enterprise activities including
a sewer system, an airport, a parking garage and a crime information system. The County also operates
a hospital, which is presented in the financial statements as a Discretely Presented Component Unit.
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For financial reporting purposes, the entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which
the primary government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion could cause the
County's General Purpose Financial Statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability
was defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board and either the County's
ability to impose its will over the component unit or the possibility that the component unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County.

ECONOMIC QUTLOOK

The Civic Vision 2000 and Beyond report, a comprehensive plan that will serve as a blueprint for
transforming downtown Cleveland in the 21* century was completed in 1998. The Steering Committee,
consisting of over 20 community leaders, met over 15 months starting in December 1996. The report
calls for spending upwards of $2.7 billion in public and private funds over 10 years on 5 initiatives of major
importance: Dramatically change the lakefront, develop a new and competitive downtown convention -

center, restore and beautify Euclid Avenue, double the number of downtown residents and develop:.:.

attractive and user-friendly systems of connectivity. In addition, the Steering Committee recommended
supporting the Greater Cleveland Growth Association task force review of Northeast Ohio’s required air

service needs, improvement of the Cleveland public schools and building inter-relationships with adjoining

neighborhoods.

In 1999, Cleveland Mayor Michael R. White picked 30 business leaders and politicians to find a location
for a new downtown convention center and develop a funding plan. The proposal was delivered in April
2000 which calls for spending $560 million for a convention center with up to 550,000 square feet of
exhibit and a 600 room hotel. Funding is to be provided by the State, the City and the County as well as
private sources. A county-wide restaurant meal tax and an increased or reallocated hotel tax would be
the main sources. The facility would be built on the current site expanding north and west, take 4 years to
complete and would include a walkway to lakefront museums. It also calls for a new transit center for
buses and light rail.

The expansion of Cleveland Hopkins International Airport has been debated and disputed for over 10
years. The cities of Cleveland and Brook Park have disagreed on the direction of the expansion and
whether the I-X Center, an exposition hall, needs to be demolished in order to accommodate future
airport runway expansion. In 1999, the city of Cleveland paid $66.5 million for the I-X Center and Brook
Park filed suit in Probate Court to acquire the I-X Center by eminent domain. While the dispute
continues, a second runway is being planned with a third to follow later. Mayor White has proposed a
plan to issue $750 million in airport bonds to be repaid over 30 years with airport revenue. The City will
use $75 million to reduce current debt and the remaining $675 million would go to runway projects. City
Council has proposed breaking the project up into individual projects.

In March 1999, Primary Health Systems, Inc.(PHS), the parent of three Cleveland hospitals and one
suburban hospital, filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy. In February 2000, one of the three hospitals, Mt.
Sinai Medica! Center, was closed and there was a proposed sale of St. Michael's and Mt. Sinai East to
the Cleveland Clinic for the purpose of closing the facilities. The Clinic also proposed to purchase a
medical campus which it intended to operate. Public outcry over the closing of St. Michael’s along with
local congressional and Cleveland City Council support helped convince the bankruptcy judge to rescind
the proposed sale. A public auction led to the sale of St. Michael's and Mt. Sinai East to University
Hospitals for the purpose of remaining open as functional facilities and the Cleveland Clinic purchasing
the medical campus.

Figgie International Incorporated agreed in 1989 to relocate its headquarters from Richmond, Virginia to
an area known as Chagrin Highlands on land owned by the city of Cleveland. A number of financial and
procedural problems kept the project from moving forward. There were legal disputes between the city of
Cleveland and Figgie over this project which delayed development. A trial date of Spring 1996 had been
set, but an out of court settlement was reached and construction was to begin once an interchange is
completed off the freeway. Financing for the interchange was in dispute, but an agreement was reached
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between the City and the developer to fund their respective shares of the exit as required by the Ohio
Department of Transportation (ODOT). ODOT awarded contracts for the interchange and work is
scheduled to be completed by Summer 2000. The development on 650 acres will include a 3.5 million
square foot office complex and 250,000 square feet of retail space as well as 1,000 hotel rooms.
Developers expect six hotels with one 300 room full service inn and the rest in the 80 to 120 room range.
The project is expected to take 15 to 20 years to complete and will provide 16,000 to 20,000 permanent
jobs when completed, generating $44 million yearly in income taxes among five communities and $8
million in income taxes from construction jobs over the project life. Ground was broken in June 1998 on
the $14 million four story 112,000 square foot office building and was completed in Fall 1999. Figgie
occupies 15,000 square feet of the multi-tenant building which is 83% leased. University Hospitals Health
System is constructing a 100,000 square foot, technology advanced outpatient specialty medical center in
the Chagrin Highlands at an estimated cost of $29.2 million to be open in February 2001.

The Greater Regional Transit Authority (RTA) proposed a scaled down version of an earlier rejected
transportation system now called the Euclid Corridor Improvement Project. The Euclid Corridor
improvement Project would consist of a dedicated electric trolley bus line between Tower City and
University Circle and would relocate 3 stations and renovate 3 others at an estimated cost of $292 million
to be completed in 2006. A preliminary engineering study began during the first quarter of 1997 and is in
the final stages of completion. The RTA hopes to obtain $168.5 million of the cost of the Euclid Corridor
makeover from the Federal government with $70 million from the State and $53.6 mitlion from RTA and
the City. Final design will begin in late 2000 with the full funding agreement to be in place by 2001 and
final design completed at approximately the same time. In July 1996, the RTA completed the Waterfront
Line project which includes additional new tracks and trains to connect Tower City, the flats and the North
Coast Harbor, which houses the Rock and Roll Hall of Fame, the Great Lakes Museum of Science, and
the planned Great Waters Aquarium if completed. The project began in late 1994 and cost $69 million.
The project was funded from bond and note sales to be repaid from operating revenue. A new station
was added to a location in front of the new football stadium at a cost of $3.8 million. It was completed in
Summer 1999, which coincided with the opening of the new football facility.

The Playhouse Square Center, one of the top three performing arts centers in the country, added another
theater to its three theater complex. The 3,000 seat 72 year old Alien Theater which remained vacant for
almost 30 years was restored by the Playhouse Square Foundation. The renovated theater seats 2,500
patrons. The Allen Theater along with the three other theaters of Playhouse Square Center forms the
second largest performing arts complex in the United States and is used for long running Broadway
shows. Total cost of the project was $15 million with funding coming from the State and the remainder
from individuals, corporations and foundations. Construction began in September 1997 and was
completed in October 1998. The Allen Theater should add 300,000 visitors to the 1 million people
Playhouse Square brings each year to downtown, adding an estimated $30 million into the local
economy. During 1999, the Cleveland Orchestra made its home at the Allen Theater while Severance
Hall was being renovated.

The Cleveland Public Library completed a major renovation of its' downtown facility. In 1991, funding was
secured through a bond referendum of $90 million. There were three components to the renovation. The
new Louis Stokes Wing, which opened in April 1997 at a cost of $65.2 million, was phase one. Phases
two and three consist of the renovation of the main library and the Eastman Reading Garden at a cost of
$24.8 million, which commenced in 1997 and closed this portion of the library for almost two years. The
renovated main library includes a new $1.1 million public art collection, which represents the work of
thirteen artists of local and national reputation. The collection was funded through grants, donations and
unrestricted endowment funds. The Eastman Reading Garden includes several varieties of trees and
shrubs, moveable chairs and a water sculpture. The Eastman Reading Garden was compieted in
September 1998 and the main library opened late Spring 1999.

The largest development in the greater downtown area concerns a baseball stadium, basketball arena
and private development of land surrounding the area called the Gateway project. Gateway is a private
nonprofit entity formed by an agreement between the city of Cleveland and Cuyahoga County for the
purpose of constructing and operating the baseball and arena facilites. The County Commissioners
authorized by resolution a public vote on an excise tax on liquor, beer, wine and cigarettes. The tax
amounts to 16¢ on a gallon of beer, 32¢ on a gallon of wine, $3 on a gallon of liquor and 4.5¢ on a pack
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of cigarettes imposed at the wholesale level throughout the county. The tax will remain in existence for a
period of 15 years. The citizens passed the tax ordinance in the May 1990 primary election. Upon
completion of the facilities, Gateway revealed a cost overrun of $21.5 miliion. The cost overruns
represented monies owed to contractors. Cuyahoga County agreed to loan Gateway $11.5 million to pay
contractor claims. The $11.5 million interest free loan is supposed to be repaid with 10 year commitments
from the city of Cleveland for $250,000 per year, the Convention and Visitor's Bureau for $500,000 per
year and Gateway for $400,000 per year. Gateway will be required to renegotiate its lease with the
Cleveland Indians to divert $400,000 per year which is currently earmarked for capital improvement.
None of the proposed repayment sources have reached agreement on their respective contributions
except the city of Cleveland which has agreed to repay the County with interest earned on future sin tax
monies supporting debt for the new municipal stadium beginning in the year 2006. The remaining $10
million was loaned to Gateway by a local bank, but Cuyahoga County was required to place $10 million in
a certificate of deposit in the bank until the loan was repaid. Repayment was to come from a grant from
the State of Ohio capital budget. However, the state legislature agreed to provide a $10 million interest
free loan to be repaid by both the County and the city of Cleveland equally over 20 years from State Local
Government monies. Also, the owner of the Cleveland Indians, Richard Jacobs, announced in May 1999
his intent to sell the Cleveland Indians. He vowed to sell to an owner who would maintain the team in
Cleveland. The lease between the team and Gateway has 14 years remaining. He stated the team
would not be sold in the event a suitable owner could not be found. It is believed this ownership issue will
not have a significant impact on Gateway. Lawrence Dolan, local lawyer and businessman, finalized the
purchase of the Cleveland Indians in February 2000 for $323 million.

In December 1991, a lawsuit was filed in Perry County seeking a determination that the current method of
funding public education was unconstitutional. The local court found for the plaintiffs. The trial court
ordered the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the State Board of Education to prepare proposals
for the General Assembly to eliminate disparities among Ohio's public school districts. The Ohio Attorney
General appealed the decision to the Fifth District Court of Appeals. The Court of Appeals reversed the
trial court and determined the current system of school funding was constitutional. The decision of the
Appeals Court was appealed by the plaintiffs to the Ohio Supreme Court. In March 1997, the Supreme
Court ruled for the plaintiffs and overturned the Court of Appeals. While the Supreme Court found the
funding system to be unconstitutional, the court gave no specific instructions on remedy. Instead, the
court instructed the General Assembly to enact legislation to correct the funding disparity and submit it to
the original trial court judge for approval consistent with the court's decision. Due to the complexity of the
issue, a stay of twelve months was granted the General Assembly in order to allow adequate study and
drafting of the legislation. The General Assembly placed a 1% sales tax on the ballot to raise over $1
billion of which approximately $500 million was to be earmarked for property tax relief and the remaining
for public education. The ballot issue was overwhelmingly defeated 80% to 20% in the May 1998
primary. The issue was back in the hands of the trial court judge to determine if the State was in
compliance with the court decision and, if not, what the remedies are. The trial court judge ruled the
State was not in compliance and required the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the State Board of
Education to prepare a report setting forth steps for compliance with previous orders of the Court. The
proposals were to be presented to the State Legislature after the 1999 session, setting steps to resolve
the issue. The Ohio Supreme Court on a vote of 54 ordered the state to change the school funding
formula to rely less on property taxes. The Court gave the General Assembly until June 2001 to craft a
new funding system.

In Summer 1995, the city of Cleveland passed a council resolution authorizing the imposition and
collection of an 8% parking tax on all public parking in Cleveland and a 2% admission tax on all
entertainment events. The County agreed to fund a portion of the cost of the project by extending the
excise tax on beer, wine, alcohol and tobacco (sin tax) from the year 2005 through 2015. The sin tax was
originally approved to repay bonds used to build the baseball stadium. Its’ life would have expired in the
year 2005, when the sin tax bonds are retired. The County Commissioners placed the 10 year tax
extension on the baliot. During the fall campaign to pass the tax, the owner of the Cleveland Browns, Art
Modell, announced he was moving the team to Baltimore. The tax passed with 75% of the vote in favor
as a show of fan support for keeping the Browns in Cleveland. The city sued Art Modell over a specific
performance clause in the stadium lease, which required the Browns to play in the stadium during the life
of the lease which expired after the 1998 season. In January 1996, during National Football League
(NFL) meetings in Chicago, a compromise was reached whereby Art Modell was allowed to take his team
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to Baltimore but the team name and colors would remain in Cleveland with a promise from the NFL that a
new or existing team would be located in Cleveland by the year 1999, and Modell wouid be required to
pay $9.3 million in damages. In return, the City agreed to build a new stadium with city and county taxes
passed for this purpose. Since the county and city taxes would not support the full cost of a new stadium,
the NFL agreed to loan up to $48 million to the project with repayment to come from the sale of private
seat licenses. A 30-year lease between the city of Cleveland and the NFL was negotiated which gave the
NFL the right to assign the lease to the new team. The NFL owners agreed that an expansion team
would be granted to the City. An ownership group headed by local billionaire Al Lerner was granted the
expansion franchise at a fee of $530 million. A plan for the dispersal of players from the other 30 teams
was established as well as additional choices in the college player draft. Demolition of Municipal Stadium
began in fall 1996. Ground breaking on the new stadium commenced in May 1997 with the project
originally estimated to cost $247 million. The stadium opened in August 1999 but cost overruns have
increased the price to over $300 million. The NFL agreed to provide an additional $15 million toward any
overruns and the City has stated it has sufficient funding to cover the remainder.

CURRENT YEAR REVIEW

Due to overcrowding conditions in current county jails, the County began the Jail | plus project, which will
be completed in phases. Phase | was completed in 1990. Phase |l involved renovating space in the
existing jail area which currently had other functions. The project scope also included space conversion
for year round physical activity areas and increased health service capacities for the jails. This phase
added 223 beds on multiple levels at a cost of $13.6 million of which the State contributed $3.8 million
and the County issued debt in 1995 for its portion. Construction began in the third quarter of 1996 in a six
phase approach and was completed in February 1999.

The County completed the purchase of the adjacent Chicago Title Building at a cost of $3.1 million funded
from a 1995 bond issue. Preliminary work on the building began in 1996. Phase | of the project was
completed in August 1999 at a cost of $750,000 to be funded by future debt. Phase Il and Il will be
completed at a future date budgeted at $3.7 million. The County finished in September 1999 the
renovation of a building to house the Coroner, at a cost of $16.5 million to be funded through a future
bond sale and a payment of $2 million from University Hospital on whose property the former facility
resides. The County also began renovating and adding additional elevators to the Justice Center, the
County Courthouse, Huntington Park Garage and the County Administration Building Annex to be
completed in phases at a cost of $17.4 million to be funded with a future bond sale. Phase 1 which is
95% complete is estimated to cost $3.4 million while Phase 2 estimated at $14 million will begin in 2000.

The County is addressing state mandates in the area of solid waste management. The waste
management plan was implemented through the Board of County Commissioners. The solid waste
district created by the Board of County Commissioners is controlled by the Commissioners as trustees,
with the County Auditor as fiscal officer and the County Treasurer as treasurer. Plan implementation
activities which include assuring adequate landfill disposal capacity and conducting recycling awareness
and collection activities are paid for by a $1 per ton generation fee. The County now exports 97% of
waste due to the closing of the Glenwillow and Cuyahoga Regional landfills. The district is working with
industrial sites throughout the County to teach recycling rather than disposal at landfills. The plan’s
objectives are to continue the successful phonebook recycling program which has collected 3,418 tons of
phonebooks, a newspaper marketing co-op and educational waste prevention where recycling is brought
into the elementary school classroom. The "Pass-It-On" bookiet, which is a guide to donating usable
items as an alternative to discarding them, received an award from the National Association of County
Information Officers in 1999.

The County implemented a paint, pesticide and other hazardous products recovery program. The
County, in partnership with various communities, coliected and disposed of more than 1,065 tons of
materials. The program helped curtail the dumping of hazardous paint in landfills. The district faunched
the Greater Cleveland Recycling Initiative to develop local recycling businesses which will help provide
employment for individuals being removed from public assistance.




Other major initiatives include funding of a Brownfield Redevelopment Fund, an energy savings program
and setting up neighborhood service centers for the Ohio Works First program. The Brownfield
Redevelopment Fund consists of $22 million, of which the County contributed $15.5 million and the
private sector $6.5 million, for the purpose of loaning the proceeds to municipalities and private entities
for environmental cleanup. The County issued $15.5 million economic redevelopment revenue bonds for
this purpose to be repaid by the borrowers and County non-tax revenues. The County has reserved a
portion of fund balance for the purpose of future loans from bond proceeds. The County loaned $1.2
million to the city of Euclid in 2000. The energy saving program is a result of State of Ohio House Bill
300. The County will spend up to $23.8million in 15 county owned buildings for the program with the
money to be recovered over 11 years through energy cost savings. It is anticipated that all work except
the Justice Center will be completed by fall 2000. The eleven neighborhood service centers are an
attempt to bring job training closer to the clients they service in an effort to reduce entitiement programs
and move the clients into the work force. The program will be funded by a future bond issue. Five of the
sites are under various stages of renovation while six others are under development.

A number of County projects had activity during the year. The Huntington Park Garage repair project
began during the fourth quarter of 1997 to be completed in the second quarter of 2000 at a cost of $2.9
million. The garage repairs will be funded by a 1995 bond issue to be repaid from an increase in user
fees, which were imposed in 1995 and 1996. The County was engaged in the process of upgrading all its
computer systems for compliance with the year 2000. The County spent over $25 million through 1999
for resources necessary to bring all software and hardware up to compliance. The County's Y2K
preparation resulted in no interruption of services or data.

FUTURE PROJECTS

An agreement has been reached between the Juvenile Corrections Advisory Committee, the Board of
County Commissioners and Juvenile Court to construct a new Juvenile Detention Center to replace the
existing Detention Center. The new facility will house 120 youths in the detention center with an additional
180 beds in the new shelter care and assessment center. A Juvenile Detention Center would cost an
estimated $50 million and be completed in 3 to 4 years. A site for the Detention Center has been chosen
and an environmental assessment of the property is underway. The Ohio Youth Services Department
has committed $13.5 million and the County will fund its portion from a future bond issue. A second
proposed phase calls for a new Juvenile Court and a 300 car parking garage. No price tag or timetable
has been assigned to phase two. Also, currently under review is the Jail Il facility. Jait Ill would be a 200
bed community based corrections facility of which 40 beds would be set aside for female nonviolent
felons and a 500 bed misdemeanant facility. The Ohio Department of Rehabilitation has pledged a $9.6
million grant and the County would be responsible for the cost of the site acquisition. Total estimated cost
of the project is $20.7 million. A site has not yet been finalized.

The County has proposed some additional capital improvements including a new archives building
estimated o cost $5.9 million, correction center renovations estimated to cost $5.6 million which inciude
renovation of administrative offices and re-programming of lunchroom, training and sub-kitchen areas to
provide space for an additional 120 inmates expected to be completed in Summer 2000 and a new
County Kennel to be located in Valley View. Estimated costs are $7.5 million with work to begin Summer
2000 and be completed Summer 2001.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

The County utilizes an automated accounting system, which provides the capability to prepare financial
information based on Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for governments. Financial
Accounting and Management Information System, known by the acronym FAMIS, is the basis for the
County's accounting and budgetary controls. All operations of the County, with the exception of the
Hospital, use FAMIS. Adequate internal accounting controls are an integral part of this system and are
designed to achieve the fundamental objectives of safeguarding assets and providing reasonable
assurance that financial transactions are properly recorded.




The County's day-to-day accounting and budgetary records are maintained on a basis other than GAAP.
For financial reporting purposes, the accounting records are converted to the modified accrual basis for
all Governmental and Fiduciary funds and the accrual basis for Proprietary funds. A further discussion of
the two bases of accounting and their reconciliation can be found in Note B of the notes to the financial
statements.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVIEW

General Government Review highlights the revenues and expenditures in numeric and narrative form for
all Governmental funds including the General fund, Special Revenue funds, Debt Service fund and
Capital Projects fund.

Financial Highlights/Revenues

Increase
(Decrease) Percentage
From Prior of
Revenues  Percentage Year Increase
(in 000's) of Total (in 000's) (Decrease)
Property taxes $ 231,433 22.1% $ 24,838 12.0%
Sales and use tax 151,304 14.4 5,181 3.5
Other tax 29,334 2.8 988 3.5
State local government fund 39,841 3.8 2,234 5.9
Licenses and permits 1,199 A (98) (7.6)
Charges for services 62,272 5.9 31 A
Fines and forfeitures 6,535 8 205 3.2
Investment earnings 20,583 2.0 (13,636) (39.8)
Other intergovernmental 495,421 47.3 103,141 26.3
Rehabilitation loan repayment 1,765 2 (453) (20.4)
Miscellaneous 8.351 .8 2,281 376
Total Revenues $1,048.038 100.0% $124,712 13.5%

Revenues increased $124.7 million with most of the increase related to property taxes, sales and use tax
and other intergovernmental. The property tax increase resulted primarily from a replacement tax levy. In
1998, the County voters approved a replacement 4.4 mill health and welfare levy. A replacement levy
generally results in additional tax revenues. Ohio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset
inflation in the value of real property. As a result, generally the effective rate of a levy is lower than the
voter authorized rate after the first year. The first collection year for the replacement levy was 1999,
which resulted in an additional $21.9 million to the Health and Human Services Levies fund. The sales
and use tax increase was due primarily to continued improvement in the economic health in the area.
Investment earnings dropped $13.6 million with almost $9 million related to the implementation of GASB
31. In 1998, there were unrealized gains of $4.2 million while in 1999 there were unrealized losses of $4.7
million. In addition, interest earnings were down approximately $2.2 million due to a lower average daily
balance in the portfolio and a decrease in the yield from 5.87% to 5.57%. Other intergovernmental
revenue grew $103.1 million. The largest components were related to Human Services, Health and
Human Services Levies, the Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services, Community
Development and Other. Human Services increases amounted to $40.5 million due primarily to the work
and training and children and family programs. The State mandates on “welfare to work” require
additional training and day care programs to enable able bodied adults to work. The Health and Human
Services Levies increase resulted from the Homestead Exemption program. The increased property
taxes from the replacement levy also increased the amount of homestead exemption low income senior
citizens receive which is reimbursed from the State. The Board of Mental Retardation increase occurred
due to the growth in the number of clients being serviced. The growth in Health and Community Services
intergovernmental revenue was related to a children’s services program being shifted from the Human
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Services area with higher program levels amounting to $34.3 million. The Community Development
increase was due to the addition of Housing and Urban Development monies for supportive housing
programs and Other grant programs was for a new Youth Services program for care and treatment in an
attempt to decrease the housing of juvenile offenders.

Financial Highlights/Expenditures

Increase
(Decrease) Percentage
From Prior of
Expenditures Percentage Year Increase
(in 000's) of Total (in 000's) (Decrease)
General government $ 58,923 5.9% $ 5,097 9.5%
Judicial 245,738 24 .4 18,806 8.3
Development 23,155 23 (14,166) (38.0)
Social services 467,961 46.5 45,687 10.8
Health and safety 102,427 10.2 1,982 2.0
Public works 36,800 3.7 1,700 4.8
Miscellaneous 1,550 2 (972) (38.5)
Capital outlay 38,589 3.8 (1,035) (2.6)
Principal retirement 16,251 1.6 1,366 9.2
Interest 13,937 _14 244 1.8
Total Expenditures $ 1.005.331 100.0% $ 58,709 6.2%

Governmental expenditures increased 6.2% with most of the increase due to general government, judicial
and social services netted against a decrease in development. General government expenditure
increases were due primarily to greater data processing expenditures necessary to be compliant with Y2K
system issues and other system development and spending necessary to prepare for the Year 2000
reappraisal of all residential, commercial and industrial property. Judicial spending growth was related to
a variety of programs from Y2K computer fixes to board and care of prisoners for housing of prisoners
outside County jails and the new Youth Services program which includes day treatment, aftercare and
counseling in an attempt to decrease the housing of juvenile offenders. Social Services increases were
due primarily to work and training and children and family programs. The State mandates on “welfare to
work” require additional training and day care programs to enable able bodied adults to work. The
decrease in development expenditures resulted from a program begun in 1998 in which the County
issued debt for purposes of loaning and granting proceeds for Brownfield Redevelopment within areas
around the city of Cleveland. The proceeds of $15.5 million are currently being invested by a trustee for
the purpose of future loans for Brownfield Redevelopment.

Results of operations for governmental funds during 1999 revealed an increase in fund balance of $33.3
million with the undesignated portion of General fund balance accounting for $40.4 million of the increase.

PROPRIETARY AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT REVIEW

A review of Proprietary funds and the Discretely Presented Component Unit financial data reveals
operating revenues and expenses increased $63.8 million and $65.2 million, respectively. Enterprise
funds experienced losses of $1.8 million. Internal Service fund revenue increased almost $12 million
while expenses experienced growth of $14.7 million and had a net gain of $5.2 million with most of the
gain related to Data Processing Center and Self-Funded Workers Compensation. The Data Processing
Center adjusted its chargebacks to cover the wide area network connection and Y2K projects and Self-
Funded Workers Compensation received a sizable refund from the State to cover past year adjustments
due to lower claims. The Hospital had a net loss of $16.7 million due primarily to GASB 31 which required
recording an unrealized loss of $10.2 million with a net difference from 1998 of $14.5 million and an
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increase in the amount of charity care. Combined net loss for all Proprietary funds and the Discretely
Presented Component Unit was $13.3 miilion.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Certain debt related ratios and information are useful indicators of the County's debt position. Data for
the County at December 31, 1999 follows:

Bond Rating - General Obligations Bonds

Moody's Investors Service Aa1 (October 1999)
Bond Rating - General Obligations Bonds

Standard & Poor's AA+ (February 1998)
Bond Rating — General Obligations Bonds

Fitch IBCA AAA (August 1999)
Bond Rating - Economic Development Revenue Bonds

Moody's Investors Service Aa3 (February 2000)
Note Rating — Bond Anticipation Notes

Moody’s Investors Service MIG 1{April 2000)
Net general bonded debt $136.8 million
Ratio of net debt to assessed value .53%
Net direct bonded debt per capita $99.73

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Investment Advisory Committee, comprised of three County Commissioners, the Clerk of Courts and
the County Treasurer, establishes investment policies and monitors all investment activity. Public
Financial Management, Inc. (PFM) provides investment advisory services. Amendments to Ohio Revised
Code Section 135 (Senate Bill 81) now restrict the type and length of investments and provide for ongoing
investment training for County Treasurers.

The County Treasurer, through a change in State statute, contracted for the sale of delinquent
receivables. A portion of the receivables for tax years 1996 and prior were sold at a discount, and the
buyer agreed to purchase future delinquencies on the same parcels at full vailue for tax years 1997-2000
and also purchase new qualified delinquencies on other parcels for the years 1997-1999. The delinquent
sale occurred in early 1999 resulting in an additional $9 million of delinquent tax collection as of the first
six months. In addition, there was a marked increase in overall delinquent tax collections by taxpayers
wishing to settle past due taxes with the County rather than deal with a private owner of the receivable.
The effect of this transaction is to reduce the County’s outstanding delinquent receivables, whose
collection is uncertain, and to bring in additional tax monies for the benefit of all taxing districts in the
County.

The County Treasurer has established a linked deposit loan program for the purpose of enhancing
housing in participating cities. The County has entered into agreements with certain eligible lending
institutions and local communities to provide loans at below market interest rates to owners of real
property located in the contracting community for certain housing repairs and improvements. After a
linked deposit loan is made to an eligible borrower, the Treasurer will use monies from the County's
portfolio of inactive funds to place a certificate of deposit with the lending institution at below market rates.
The contracting community is responsible for inspecting the improvements to ensure their compliance
with local building codes. The County feels increases in property values resulting from the loan program
will eventually bring additional revenues to the County.
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It is the policy of the County Treasurer that all deposits be either covered by insurance or collateralized.
The collateral is held by the pledging institution's agent in the name of the depository or the Federal
Reserve Bank of Cleveland in pooled securities accounts consisting of government securities. The
County's investment policy objectives consider safety, liquidity and yield. Before a security is purchased,
the cash flow needs of the County and the cash flow forecast is analyzed. Key factors of decision making
on the purchase of securities include type, term to maturity, principal value and rate of return.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County has designated $2,000,000 of General fund balance to provide reserves for claims and
judgements not covered by various County insurance policies. Settled claims from risks covered by the
County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years.
Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County and estimates for claims including
those incurred but not reported, were immaterial in 1999. The County is also self-insured with respect to
the Ohio Unemployment Compensation program. Self-insurance expenditures for unemployment
compensation were not material in 1999. The County maintains an Internal Service fund for the self-
insurance of workers compensation through a retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio. All payroli
funds in the County contribute to the Self-Funded Workers Compensation fund based on estimates
needed to pay claims and to establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Total expenses for
1999 were $7,162,000.

THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report is an unqualified audit opinion rendered on the County's financial operations as well
as its assets and liabilities at year-end 1999 by our independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
County management will continue to subject the financial statements to an annual independent audit as
part of the preparation of the CAFR. An annual audit serves to help maintain and strengthen the County's
accounting and budgetary controls.

The County participates in the Federal "Single Audit" program, which consists of a single audit of all
federal and federal flow-through funded programs administered by the County. As a requirement for
continued federal funding eligibility, congressional legislation has made participation in the single audit
program mandatory for a majority of local governments including Cuyahoga County.

GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Cuyahoga, Ohio for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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AWARD FOR DISTINGUISHED BUDGET PRESENTATION

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) presented an
award of Distinguished Budget Presentation to Cuyahoga County, Ohio for its annual budget for the fiscal
year beginning January 1, 1999.

In order to receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program
criteria as a policy document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan and as a communication device.

This award is valid for a period of one year only.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated work of the entire
financial reporting staff of the County Auditor's Office. We would like to express appreciation to each
member of the financial reporting staff, the support staff in General Accounting, the staffs of the Budget
Commission, the County Treasurer, the Information Services Center and the Office of Budget and
Management. We would also like to thank Frank Russo, County Auditor, who has continued the tradition
of Auditor's sound fiscal management and the County's other elected officials and managers for their
assistance in this project.

Sincerely,

Steven C. Letsky, CPA
Director of Accounting
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Financial Section

PART I

GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND NOTES

The general purpose financial statements (GPFS) provide the
combined overview of the financial position of all funds, account groups
and the discretely presented component unit and of the operating resuits
of all funds and the discretely presented component unit. Notes to the
financial statements provide disclosures essential to the fair presentation
of the GPFS. The independent audit opinion is rendered on the GPFS
and accompanying notes.







PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Suite 1500

1375 E. Ninth St.

Cleveland OH 44114
Telephone (216) 875 3000
Facsimile (216) 575 0170

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable County Auditor, County Treasurer,
and the Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

In our opinion, the accompanying general-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the County of Cuyahoga, Ohio (the “County”) as of December 31,
1999, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary funds for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the County’s management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of
the discretely presented component unit, MetroHealth Medical Center. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it is
related to the amounts included for the discretely presented component unit, MetroHealth Medical
Center, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit of these statements
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

We have also issued our report dated June 8, 2000 on the County’s compliance with laws and
regulations and internal control over financial reporting. That report is an integral part of our audit
conducted under Government Auditing Standards that should be read along with this report on the
financial statements.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules
listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the County. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the introductory and statistical sections as listed in the accompanying table of contents
and therefore express no opinion thereon.

June &, 2000




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents $ 47,474 $ 101,380 $ $ $ 7,577
Cash and cash equivalents
segregated acCounts.........eeviinieeiinninns 1,018
INVESIMENTS......covvieeecrniiieceieiin 15,465
Receivables:
TEXES vvveverereaeries ittt se s eeesreenns 24,885
Accounts........ 320 200 1,106
Accrued interest ..........ccocvvvviinvecccnneenins
Less: Allowance for
doubtful accounts.......ccocveiimnincininnnni
Net Receivables..........cococcveernivicrnncnncns 25,205 200 1,106
Due from other funds .......ccoceeeiriivceccernne 120,610 201,209 19,203 21 13
Due from other governments... “ 7,455 90,222 737
Inventory of supplies ..........ccvniiininnns 9
Prepaid expenses and
Other asSetS ....ccvvuriev i
Funds heid by trustee....
Board designated funds .......
Deferred bond financing cost ..... 31
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents -
segregated acCOUNtS........ccccvceinnniininians
Investments “
Total Restricted AsSets ......ccvevrininiiinans
Fixed assets in service:
Land ..o 5,802
Land improvements. . 9,660
Utility plant in service .....c..cccuvvvernnenan 42,098
Buildings, structures
and improvements.........c.ceciveneniinsenns 9,943
Furniture, fixtures and equipment. 6,443
VehiCles ....ocvereerecrenveeneccrninaniens 3,380
Less: Accumulated depreciation.. (44,364)
Construction in progress ....... : 6.412
Net Fixed Assets in Service .........cccoeecncn 39,375
Amount available for
debt SBrVICe ....coveviiiii
Amount to be provided for
retirernent of general
long-term obligations:
DODbt ...t
Other...
TOTAL ASSETS $ 216,209 $ 393,011 $ 20,221 $ 21 $ 48,848

See notes to financial statements.
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Proprietary Fiduciary .
Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
General General 1999 Totals MetroHealth 1999 Totals
Internal Fixed Long-Term Primary Government System Reporting Entity
Service Agency Assets Obligations (Memorandum Only) (Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
42,694 $ 169,188 $ $ $ 368,313 $ $ 368,313
39,036 40,054 8,383 48,437
15,465 8,860 24,325
1,239,700 1,264,585 1,264,585
9 1,635 70,863 72,598
4,605 4,605 4,605
(8,710) {9,710)
9 1,244,305 1,270,825 61,253 1,332,078
9,144 717 350,917 350,917
40 98,454 98,454
47 56 4,801 4,857
16,939 16,939
157,069 157,069
95,029 95,029
31 2,602 2,633
159 159
5237 5237
5,396 5,396
29,829 35,631 8,550 44,181
1,534 11,194 7.577 18,771
42,099 42,009
384,193 394,136 308,817 702,953
27,978 17,206 51,627 154,491 206,118
3,088 12,202 19,570 7,439 27,009
(22,109) (66,473) (307,507) (373,980)
81,461 87,873 45,645 133,518
9,857 526,425 575,657 225,012 800,669
9,714 9,714 9,714
256,450 256,450 256,450
27,169 27,169 27,169
61,791 $ 1,453,246 $ 526,425 $ 293,333 $ 3,013,105 $ 585,344 $ 3,598,449
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Proprietary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type

Special Debt Capital .
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable.
Deferred revenue ..
Estimated contract
Due to other funds.......
Due to other governmen
Accrued wages and benefi
Other liabilities ..................
Payable from restricted asset
Loans payable..........c.coeeuueens 7,121
Matured bonds payable..... 50

Accrued self-insurance..............

Capital lease obligations ..........ccocecnveecnns

$ 3,462 $ 37,252 $ $ 2,110 $ 755
19,605 199,350 19,208

3,668 58,988 42,123 271
88
5,661 8,161 4 661

Debt:
Notes payable..........ccovevevrorirenecrenniens 1,100
Bonds payable .... 1,820
Total Debt ................. 2,920
32,396 303,751 19,253 44,237 11,816

FUND EQUITY AND
OTHER CREDITS

Investment in general

fixed 8SSEtS....covrnreirierireenerrene e
Contributed capital ..........ccocveeeeeereierienes 18,881
Retained earnings:

Reserved for restricted assets................

Unreserved .........occeevnvieeircvesieneerinns 18,151

Fund balance:
Reserved for development fund ............. 15,465
Reserved for debt service ...........evveeee. 8,746
Unreserved:
Designated for seif-insurance................. 2,000
Designated for proprietary funds . 2,475
Undesignated(Deficit)..........coccrreerrercarnnnn 155,127 89,260 968 (44,216)
TOTAL FUND EQUITY
AND OTHER CREDITS.........ccvcveeennenen 183,813 89,260 968 (44,216) 37,032

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY
AND OTHER CREDITS ..ccoccoreersrasencesnnnn $_ 216,209 $ 393,011 $_ 20,221 $ 21 $ 48,848

See notes to financial statements.
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Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
Ge_neral General 1999 Totals MetroHealth 1999 Totals
Internal Fixed Long-Term Primary Government System Reporting Entity
Service Agency Assets Obligations [ dum Only) (Component Unit) Memorandum Only)
$ 4,508 $ $ $ $ 48,177 $ 17,517 $ 65,694
238,158 238,158
32,283 32,283
2,160 243,707 350,917 350,917
33,252 1,163,964 1,197,304 1,197,304
4,320 20,220 39,027 39,774 78,801
45,575 45,575 6,499 52,074
191 191
4,442 11,563 11,563
50 50
24,987 24,987
970 2,507 3,477 14,640 18,117
1,100 1,100
266,164 267,984 190,446 458,430
266,164 269,084 190,446 459,530
45,300 1,453,246 293,333 2,203,332 326,337 2,529,669
526,425 526,425 526,425
18,881 18,881
5,205 5,205
16,491 34,642 253,802 288,444
15,465 15,465
8,746 8,746
2,000 2,000
2,475 2,475
201,139 201,139
16,491 526,425 809,773 259,007 1,068,780
$ 61,791 $ 1,453,246 $ 526425 $ 293,333 $ 3,013,105 $ 585344 $ 3,508,449
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

PrOPEMY HAXES vttt e seesteevs e serenessennesnserens
Sales and use tax........c.eceecnnn

Other tax........ccccceenes

State local governme
Licenses and permits ....
Charges for services .
Fines and forfeitures . .
Investment €armings......coccvvcvcieecerccnnn e
Other intergovernmentai............
Rehabilitation loan repayment.......

Miscellaneous ...........cccceverevereeees ..
TOTAL REVENUES ..ottt st snnaasens

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Development......
Social services ...
Health and safety ...
Public works.......
Miscellaneous .... .
Capital QUAY ...ceeiciiieer it crecessrc s essre s ssrasesens
Debt service:
Principal retirement

TOTAL EXPENDITU

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER
 EXPENDITURES w.ooovevrnecensonrssssnrssssscsssnsss s

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES(USES)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out:

Component unit..
Debt retirement .......

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES
QVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES.........cccocceememmmrnrnniiirens

FUND BALANCE(DEFICIT) AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR .....ccciiiieiiniccsnncnne

FUND BALANCE(DEFICIT) AT
END OF YEAR

See notes to financial staternents.

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt
General Revenue Service
$ 22,064 $ 193,416 3 15,953
151,304
12 29,316 6
39,841
128 1,071
47,291 14,981
6,091 444
18,005 2,305
9,276 479,610 2,657
1,765
2,135 5,720
296,147 728,628 18,616
43,687 15,236
190,700 55,038
1,629 21,526
6,284 461,677
692 101,735
33,085
1,550
16,251
13,937
244542 688297 30,188
51,605 40,331 (11,572)
10,894 114,058 10,881
(25,352)
(8,997)
(9,955) (127,612)
15,465 — [
— 6407 ——{38.006} —10881
58,012 1,425 (691)
125801 87,835 — 16589
$___183813 $_____89.260 $______968
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$ (44,216)

Capital 1999 Totals
Projects (Memorandum Only)

$ $ 231,433
151,304

29,334

39,841

1,199

62,272

6,535

273 20,583

3,878 495,421

1,765

496 8,351

4.647 1,048.038

58,923

245,738

23,155

467,961

102,427

3,715 36,800

1,550

38,589 38,589

16,251

13,837

— 42,304 1005331
(37,657) 42,707
12,257 148,090
(25,352)

(9,997)

(137,567)
—_— ——— 15465
— 12257 - (9361)
(25,400) 33,346
(18.816) 196,479
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL ANNUALLY BUDGETED GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Property taxes.............
Sales and use t

Other taX.....coccevevvniereeenenin.
State local government fund.
Licenses and permits............
Charges for services........
Fines and forfeitures ........
Investment earnings.........
Other intergovernmental...
Miscellaneous ..................

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government .............cecoiviivmmucrerveenens
Judicial.....coecervrinrinnnnnen.

Development......
Social services .......
Health and safety ...........
Public works...................
Miscellaneous ................

Debt service:

Principal retirement ...
Interest.....cccvvvenennens
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES ...t

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)

Operating transfers in.........ccccoveeeneenieneniennns
QOperating transfers out:
Component unit..
Debt retirement ..

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) ..

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES.......cccooeenn

FUND BALANCE AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR ...

FUND BALANCE AT
END OF YEAR

See notes to financial statements.

General Fund

Annually Budgeted
Special Revenue Funds

Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorabie)
$ 2238 $ 22064 3 (322) $ 195639 $ 193416 $ (2,223)
149,400 151,168 1,768
1,600 12 (1,588) 27,270 29,231 1,961
39,800 39,800
150 128 (22} 1,144 1,071 (73)
50,513 47,564 (2,949) 17,451 14,971 (2,480)
5,900 6,075 175 434 442 8
26,900 26,549 (351) 2,191 2,188 (3)
6,668 8,010 1,342 549,476 375,077 (174,399)
2,994 1,890 {1,104} 5,549 5266 (283)
306.311 303.260 (3.051) 7998.154 621.662 (177 .492)
60,281 43,118 17,163 18,340 15,333 3,007
199,442 180,004 9,438 41,854 36,335 5,519
1,923 1,659 264 2,821 2,004 817
6,862 5,836 1,026 566,758 461,655 105,103
960 796 164 112,770 95,074 17,696
48,419 31,571 16,848
6,888 1,288 5,599
276356 _242702 ____ 33654 1900962 641972  _148.000
29,955 60,558 30,603 8,192 (20,310) (28,502)
10,894 10,894 124,382 133,083 8,701
(25,600) (25,352) 248
(9,997) (9,997)
(39.486) (32,165) 7.321 (127 .852) (126,181) 1,671
(494831 _(31268) ____18215 —(29.070) _.(18450) ___10.620
(19,528) 29,290 48,818 (20,878) (38,760) (17,882)
118,756 118,756 84 588 84,588
$_ 99228 $_148,046 $ 48,818 $ 63,710 $ 45,828 $_ (17,882)
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Totals

Debt Service Fund {Memorandum Only)
Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 15967 $ 15,953 $ (14) $ 233992 $ 231433 $ (2,559)
149,400 151,168 1,768
3 6 3 28,873 29,249 376

39,800 39,800
1,294 1,199 (95)
67,964 62,535 (5,429)
6,334 6,517 183
29,091 28,737 (354)
2,600 2,657 57 558,744 385,744 (173,000)
875 (875) 9418 7156 (2.262)
19.445 18.616 (829} 1.124.910 943.538 (181.372)
78,621 58,451 20,170
241,296 226,339 14,857
4,744 3,663 1,081
573,620 467,491 106,129
118,730 95,870 17,860
48,419 31,571 16,848
6,888 1.289 5,598

16,216 16,218 16,216 16,216
15,326 13,936 1,390 15,326 13,936 1,390

—31542  _30182 . 1300 = _1008860 _914826 __184034

{12,087) (11,536) 561 26,050 28,712 2,662
10,924 10,881 (43) 135,306 154,858 18,552
(25,600) (25,352) 248

(9,997) (9,897)

(167,338) (158,346) 8,992
—10.924 —losgel —a3) —(67.629) __(38.837) .__28.792

(1,173) (655) 518 (41,579) (10,125) 31,454
1673 1,673 205017 205017

$ 500 $__ 1018 $ 518 $ 163438 $_ 194892 $ 31,454




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary Fund Types
1999 Totals
) Internal Primary Government
Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES ........cccuerireenceeceicreriene et $ 15,008 3 83,631 $ 98,639
Patient service revenue-net

Other revenue........... . . 50 4,447 4,497
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 15,058 88,078 103,136
OPERATING EXPENSES

POrsonal SEIVICES......ccuvveiriireerrccreeseresernesseersassenssssmanennans 6,367 36,383 42,750
Contractual Services.......c.ocoovveveevvrvernienns . 2,729 18,340 21,069
Commodities..........ccccrearaen. 789 10,981 11,770
Depreciation..... [P 1,558 2,827 4,385
Other EXPENSES.....c.cciveerirecenerisns ittt eoaas 4,571 14,503 19,074
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.......ccccconmmmininrnrnririen 16,014 83,034 99,048
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) ....c.covccurccnaeerrerrrenrrererennrens (956) 5,044 4,088
NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES)

Interest income 24 24
Interest expense... (332) (74) (408)
GrantS.....covcveeneieniecneeniesnnns 151 151
Gain on disposal of fixed assets.........cccevieinivicninnnnn, 22 58 80
NET NONOPERATING EXPENSES.........oivvccvcrnrinnnnns (138) (16) (151)
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE

OPERATING TRANSFERS ........ccovvrvnciinisiiricrrarenans (1,081) 5,028 3,937
Operating transfers in...........ccccceiinecinncnncen 144 214 358
Operating transfers in - primary government.....................

Operating transfers out:

Debt retirement ............cooeeveevniennenesccrreceeea e (884) (884)
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS......ccocotnrerniiiisecninnnens (740) 214 (526)
NET INCOME(LOSS).....coctrmrrirmimeiiinissnsseenenenns (1,831) 5,242 3,411
DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

ACQUIRED BY CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL .....ccoeccvvnnaae 1,033 1,033
RETAINED EARNINGS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR .....ccooieirreereeecccccenenisreenennns 18,849 11,249 30,198
RETAINED EARNINGS AT

END OF YEAR $ 18,151 $ 16,491 $ 34,642

See notes to financial statements.
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MetroHealth
System
(Component Unit)

1999 Totals
Reporting Entity
{Memorandum Only)

374,921

16,548

391,469

280,718
14,243
48,344
24,312

63,765

431,382

(39,913)

7,160
(9,316)

(2.156)
(42,089)

25,352

25,352

(16,717)

270519

$ 253,802

$ 98,639
374,921

21,045

494,605

323,468
35,312
60,114
28,697
82,839

530,430

(35,825)

7,184
(9,722)
151

80
(2,307)

(38,132)

358
25,352

884

24,826

{13,308)
1,033
300,717

$ 288,444
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers..........ccoovveininineioninnns
Cash receipts from quasi-external
operating transactions.......
Other operating cash receip
Cash payments to suppliers for
go0ods and SerVICES ........c.cccvriimmreiininrennscerin s
Cash payments to employees for services..................

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR})

OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....coconvmicmnieenisiinnnn

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating transfers in from other funds...........cccuec..
Operating transfers in from primary government
Operating transfers out to other funds..........
Receipts from noncapital grants...
Specific purpose fund expenditures .....
Negative cash balance implicitly financed ...
Negative cash balance implicitly repaid............ccceuenenin.
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......ccovvnennee

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bonds ...
Deposits in project fund..
Proceeds from notes.............c..cn..
Proceeds from sale of capital assets.......
Acquisition and construction of capital ass
Principal paid on capitai leases...............
Interest paid on capital leases...
Principal paid on long-term debt...
Interest paid on long-term debt..
Principal paid on notes..........
Interest paid on notes.....
Principal paid on loans ...
Interest paid on loans.....
Principal paid on bonds..
Interest paid oN DONGS........c.cccvvenriviriicniriiin

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ......cccuuue...

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments
Change in investments...........cccovevnienmnn.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES....cccomiiiiiiine e

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ...

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ..ot

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

See notes to financial statements.

(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary Fund Types
1999 Totals
Internal Primary Government
Enterprise Service {(Memorandum Only)
3 15,703 $ 4,447 $ 20,150
83,992 83,892
50 50
(8,293) (40,647) (48,940)
(6,401) (35.656) (42,057)
1,059 12,136 13,195
144 214 358
(884) (884}
130 130
343 343
(537) (537)
(610) 20 (590)
2,465 2,465
22 119 141
(2,587) (2,474) (5,061)
(532) (532)
(74) (74)
(2,730) (2,730)
(3) (3)
(282) (282)
(205) (205)
(90) (90)
(121) (121)
(3,531) (2,961) (6,492)
26 26
26 26
(3,056) 8,195 6,139
10,633 33,499 44,132
S___ 1577 S___ 42694

s____ 50271
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MetroHealth 1999 Totals

System Reporting Entity
{Component Unit) {(Memorandum Only)
$ 338,800 $ 358,950

83,992

6,161 6,211
(93,139) (142,079)
(276,500) (318,557)
(24,678) (11,483)
358

25,352 25,352
(884)

8,952 9,082
(9,464) (9,464)
343

(537)

24,840 24,250
63,076 63,076
(39,315) (39,315)
2,465

141

(55,881) (60,942)
.(832)

(74)

(3,564) (3.564)
(9,316) (9,316)
(2,730)

(3)

(282)

(205)

(90)

(121)

(45,000) (51,492)
17,343 17,369
27,397 27,397
44,740 44,768
(98) 6,041
8,640 52,772

$ 8,542 $ 58,813

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

: 1
(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary Fund Types
1999 Totals
Internal Primary Government
Enterprise Service _(Memorandum Only)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME

TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating iNCome {I0SS) ........cccoueniernmmneeersnnieneseensasens $ (956) $ 5,044 $ 4,088
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING

INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Depraciation..........cceveircrrirrincrnerrn e ees 1,558 2,827 4,385

Amortization of deferred financing cost .................

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-net.... 141 31 172

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds................... 3 345 348

(Increase) decrease in due from other governments ....... 33 (13) 20

{Increase) decrease in inventory of supplies (3) (3)

(Increase) decrease in other current assets

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable..... 257 1,683 1,940

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds...........cccceeu..e.. (45) (19) (64)

Increase (decrease) in due to other governments........... 50 1,447 1,497

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits........ 21 791 812

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities ...........ccconvverneane
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ....ooiiiiircrmeercecenrrsnsnessenvernenee 2,015 7,092 9,107
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,059 $ 12,136 $ 13,195

See notes to financial statements.
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MetroHealth 1999 Totals

System Reporting Entity
{Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$ (39,913) $ (35,825)

24,312 28,697
231 231
(12,566) (12,394)
348

20

(3)

5,730 5,730
1,940

(64)

1,497

812

(2,472) (2.472)
15,235 24,342
S (2678) S (11489)

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE A - Description of Cuyahoga County and Basis of Presentation

The County: Cuyahoga County operates as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The County was
formed by an act of the Ohio General Assembly in 1810. The three member Board of County Commissioners is the
legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In addition, there are
seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in Ohio law. These officials are
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. There are also thirty-four
Common Pleas Court Judges, five Domestic Relations Court Judges, six Juvenile Court Judges, two Probate Court
Judges and twelve Court of Appeals Judges elected on a County-wide basis to oversee the County's justice system.

The County adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
14, "The Financial Reporting Entity,” under which the financial statements include all the organizations, activities,
functions and component units for which the County (Primary Government) is financially accountable. Financial
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either (1) the
County's ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County.

The adoption of this statement caused the MetroHealth System (the Hospital) to be included as a discretely
presented component unit in the County's financial statements. The Hospital provides health care and hospitalization
to the general public and care for the county indigents. The County appoints the majority of the Hospital's Board of
Trustees. The Hospital prepares an annual operating budget which is approved by the County. The component unit
is included in the County’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships
with the County.

Discretely Presented Component Unit Disclosure: The component unit which is not blended as part of the
primary government is discretely presented by reporting component unit financial data in a column separate from the
financial data of the primary government. Complete financial statements for the individual component unit can be
requested from the County Auditor.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds or account groups,
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set
of seli-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses,
as appropriate. The various funds are summarized by type in the general purpose financial statements.

Amounts in the "totals (memorandum only)”" columns in the financial statements represent a summation of
the combined financial statement line items of the fund types and account groups and are presented for analytical
purposes only. The summation includes fund types and account groups that use different bases of accounting, both
restricted and unrestricted amounts. Interfund transactions have not been eliminated, and the caption "amount to be
provided" is not an asset in the usual sense. Conseguently, amounts shown in the "totals (memorandum only)"
columns are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available or total revenues
and expenditures/expenses of the County.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year classifications.
The County uses the following fund types and account groups:
Governmental Funds:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not
recorded elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use tax, property taxes, state local government
fund receipts, investment earnings and various service fees.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative
action. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and federal and state grant programs.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service fund is used to account for revenues received and used to pay
principal and interest on all long-term bonded debt except those payable from Enterprise funds. Revenues are
derived primarily from property taxes.

Capital Projects Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital assets
{other than those financed by Proprietary funds). Revenues and financing resources are derived from the issuance of
debt, receipts from the General and Special Revenue funds and capital grant programs.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services which are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for the goods or services provided by certain
County departments to other County departments and funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments, other funds and individuals. These assets include property and other taxes as well as other
intergovernmentat resources which have been collected and which will be distributed to other taxing districts located
in Cuyahoga County.

Account Groups:

General Fixed Asset Account Group: This account group is used to present the general fixed assets of the
County utilized in its general operations, exclusive of those used in Proprietary funds. General fixed assets include
land, land improvements, buildings, structures and improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment and vehicles
owned by the County.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group: This account group is used to record all long-term
obligations of the County except for those of Proprietary funds.

NOTE B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles for local government units as prescribed in statements and interpretations issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Basis of Accounting:  All financial transactions for Governmental and Fiduciary funds are reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this accounting method, revenues are recognized when they become
susceptible to accrual, that is, when they are measurable and available to finance County cperations. Revenues
accrued at the end of the year consist of reimbursements from other governments for grant expenditures and
amounts receivable from sales and use taxes collected in December and received within sixty days after year-end.
Property taxes are recorded as revenue when measurable and available within a period, which does not exceed sixty
days after year-end. Govermnmental fund expenditures are accrued when the related fund liability is incurred, except
interest on long-term debt, which is recorded when due. Proprietary fund financial transactions are recorded on the
accrual basis of accounting; revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized as incurred. The
County currently follows GASB No. 20 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting" using the guidance established in Alternative No. 1,
which follows all Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) standards issued on or before November 30, 1988,
unless they conflict with GASB Statements. The County has chosen not to apply future FASB Standards.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- DECEMBER 31, 1999

Measurement Focus: All Governmental funds are accounted for on a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheets. Operating
statements present increases and decreases in net current assets.

All Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and
liabilities whether current or long-term are included on the balance sheets. Fund equity is separated into contributed
capital and retained earnings and operating statements present increases and decreases in total assets.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the
General fund, certain Special Revenue funds and the Debt Service fund. Special Revenue funds which are budgeted
annually include Human Services, Health and Human Services Levies, Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, County Board of
Mental Retardation and Health and Community Services. The County Administrator prepares the budget, which is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners. The Office of Budget and Management prepares a separate
budgetary report. The Board of County Commissioners approves amendments to the original budget throughout the
year as allowed by state statute. The budget amendments are approved by legal category but identified as additional
appropriation measures. During 1999, supplemental budgetary appropriations amounted to approximately
$172,348,000. The County maintains budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures/expenses and encumbrances to exceed appropriations for personnel, capital purchases and other
costs. Elected officials and managers may amend the budget without approval of the County Commissioners as long
as amendments are within legal categories. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.
Encumbrances are closed to unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered and
reappropriated at the start of the following year.

The accompanying budget basis financial schedules, comparing budget to actual results of operations, are
presented to demonstrate the County's compliance with legally adopted budgets and reflect only budget revisions
formally adopted by the Board of County Commissioners. The Commissioners and their staff throughout the year
monitor the level of revenues and expenditures, and policy decisions are made based on the available current
information. Formal revisions to previous budgets may not be processed if actual results are within previously
budgeted levels. Consequently, large variances may appear on the budget and actual comparisons in the
accompanying financial schedules.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for certain grants (including Job Training
Partnership Act, Community Development and Other) and the Capital Projects fund. Appropriations are made on a
multi-year basis with the free balance and encumbrances being reappropriated annually. The administrative control
is on a grant basis and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriated funds do not provide meaningful data.
The County adopts annual budgets for Proprietary funds, however, budgetary data is not presented for Proprietary
funds due to the nature of the funds where demand for goods and services largely determines the level of revenues
and expenses. There is no legal requirement to report on such budgets.

The County's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis).

The major differences between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptibie to
accrual (GAAP).

The actual results of operations compared to the revised appropriation passed by the Board of County
Commissioners for all annually budgeted Governmental funds are presented in the Combined Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis).
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the Budget basis follows:

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources QOver Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Amounts in 000's)

General Special Revenue Debt Service

Fund Funds Fund
GAAP DaSIS..eererieerrerrerieriestereserreseseeseesesansaesnes $ 58,012 $ 1,425 $ (691)
Multi-Year Budgeted .....cccovvveceecrvnnnreniiccnrnan e 237) -
GAAP basis for annually budgeted funds............... 58,012 1,188 (691)
Increase (Decrease):
Accrued receivables at 12/31/99
not recognized in the 1999 budget ................ (153,270) (283,810} (19,203)
Accrued receivables at 12/31/98 _
recognized in the 1999 budget ...................... 82,106 236,372 16,179
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at 12/31/99
not recognized in the 1999 budget ................ 32,396 243,755 19,253
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at 12/31/98
recognized in the 1999 budget ......ccocecvrenene (55,251) (236,265) (16,193)
Other GAAP adjustments(")......oorvveeveerenn. 65,297 .
Budget basis .......covuerierieneninirecrret e $ 29,290 $(38,760) $ (655)

(1) Change in the amount of negative cash balance implicitly financed by the General fund, prior year unrealized
gain on investments, current year unrealized loss on investments and bond proceeds with trustee.

Statement of Cash Flows: The County utilizes the direct method with respect to the statement on cash
flows as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No.9.

Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash resources of a majority of individual funds are combined to form
a pool of cash and investments, which are managed by the County Treasurer. Investments in the pooled cash and
cash equivalents accounts consist of U.S. Treasury Notes and other Federal Government securities, Bankers
Acceptances, Certificates of Deposit and State Investment Pool. For purposes of the combined statement of cash
flows, the Proprietary funds and Component Unit consider all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments: The County adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, which established accounting and financial
reporting standards for government investments and investment pools, requiring most investments to be recorded at
fair value and the recognition of unrealized gains and losses in the financial statements. The County has the ability
and intent to hold all investments to maturity. Interest on investments is accrued as eamed and distributed to
appropriate funds utilizing a formula based on the average month-end balance of cash and cash equivalents of
appropriate funds. County policy requires interest earned on investments to be credited to the General fund except
where there is a legal requirement such as the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax fund or where there are bond proceeds for
capital improvements such as the Capital Projects fund.

Inventory of Supplies: Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in first-out method. Costs are expensed
when inventory is consumed for Proprietary funds and for the Discretely Presented Component Unit. Costs are
expended when inventory is purchased for Governmental funds.

Funds Held by Trustee: Funds held by trustee are assets under the control of the bond trustee and are
used for payment of principal and interest on the bonds when due and, assets administered by a trustee for the
Hospital's self-insurance and workers’ compensation trust accounts. These assets are invested primarily in
government securities with original maturities not greater than five years.

19




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Board Designated Funds: Board designated funds are assets set aside by the board of trustees for future
capital improvements and for research and development. These asses are invested primarily in government
securities with original maturities not greater than five years.

Restricted Assets: Included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit are restricted assets consisting of
investments restricted by donors.

Fixed Asssts in Service and Depreciation: Fixed assets in service are stated on the basis of historical cost
or, if contributed, at fair market value at the date received. Infrastructure assets are capitalized only if applicable to
Proprietary funds. Infrastructure assets including streets, bridges and sidewalks are not capitalized in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group. Depreciation is not provided for the General Fixed Assets Account Group.
Depreciation for the Proprietary funds is determined by allocating the cost of fixed assets over the estimated useful
lives of the assets on a straight-line basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 15 to 20 years
Utility plant in service 20 to 50 years
Buildings, structures and improvements 8 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 to 22 years
Vehicles 5to 9years

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on Proprietary fund and Discretely
Presented Component Unit construction projects until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is
amortized on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.

Compensated Absences: The County records accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime pay
benefits as accrued wages and benefits payable when earned by employees. For Governmental funds, the portion of
the liability, which is not currently due and payable, is recorded in the Genera! Long-Term Obligation Account Group.
The County utiizes the termination payments method-ratio with respect to compensated absences as defined in the
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Normally, all vacation
time is to be taken in the year available unless administrative approval for carry-over is obtained. Sick time not taken
may be accumulated until retirement. Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time at the employee’s current wage rate upon retirement up to a maximum of thirty days. Certain
agencies of the County that are not under the control of the Board of County Commissioners may have slight
variances in policies on compensated absences.

Contributed Capital: Contributed capital represents Federal and State grants and other financing resources
provided by the County to Proprietary funds not subject to repayment. Depreciation on those assets acquired or
constructed with contributed resources is charged to contributed capital, which is reported net of depreciation
expense.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues: Local government fund revenues are recorded as
receivables and revenues when measurable and available. Other Federal and State grants and assistance awards
made on the basis of entitlement are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement
occurs. Federal and State reimbursement-type grants for the acquisition or construction of fixed assets in Proprietary
funds are recorded as receivables and contributed capital when the related expense occurs. Al other Federal and
State reimbursement-type grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the related expenditures/expenses
are incurred.

Rehabilitation Loan Repayments: The Community Development Block Grant Program loans monies to
small businesses in the County for capital improvements. The loans are repaid on a monthly basis to the Community
Development Department through an agreement with local banks and are then available for future loans. Revenues
are recorded when measurable and available.
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Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting allows for the reservation of appropriation for
expenditures/expenses of purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and re-encumbered at the beginning of the following year.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds including transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. Interfund transactions are
generally classified as operating transfers in the accompanying financial statements. Operating transfers out are
subclassified for component unit, debt retirement or other purposes. Component unit represents monies transferred
to the MetroHealth System for their subsidy payments. Debt retirement represents monies being transferred to the
Debt Service fund and Other represents all other operating transfers out. Residual equity transfers are non-routine,
non-recurring transfers of fund balance between funds.

Fund Balance: The County records reservations for portions of fund balance which are legaily segregated
for specific future uses or which do not represent available, spendable resources and, therefore, are not appropriable
for expenditures. Designations of fund balance are amounts that have been designated by management for a
specific future use, but are not legally segregated. Undesignated fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity,
which is appropriable in future periods.

Risk Management: The County has implemented GASB No. 10, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues". The empioyees’ health insurance is risk free in the financing of its
coverage. The County pays a premium to the insurance providers without additional risk to the County. The County
maintains an Internal Service fund for the self-insurance of worker's compensation through a retrospective rating plan
with the State of Ohio. The County has designated a balance in the General fund, pursuant to Ohio law, to provide
reserves for claims and judgments not covered by the various County insurance policies.

NOTE C - Pooled Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
Pooled cash and cash equivalents:

Pooled Cash: Monies for the Debt Service fund, certain Agency funds and the Hospital are deposited and
maintained in individual segregated bank accounts or invested in specifically segregated investments. Monies of all
other funds of the County are held in a group of bank accounts or invested. Collectively, these bank accounts and
investments represent the Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents account. Amounts reported as cash and cash
equivalents for the segregated funds and the pooled funds principally consist of bank balances, certificates of deposit,
United States Treasury Notes, Government Mortgage-backed Securities including United States Agencies, Bankers
Acceptances and State Investment Pool. Variance between cash and cash equivalents on the combined balance
sheet and Treasurer's investments are due primarily to outstanding warrants and reconciling items. In addition, the
County also held in pooled cash and the related investments accounts approximately $5.6 million related to funds not
included in the County's financial reporting entity.

Certain funds have made disbursements from the pooled cash account in excess of their individual equity in
the pooled cash account. These amounts are reported in the combined balance sheet as "Due to other funds."
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A summary of the Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents account balance by fund type at December 31, 1999,
follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Due To Equity In
LCT=T o=t - OO RUROTN $ $ 143,310
Due From:

Special Revenue .......cccouvvieccirccecree v, 52,376

Capital Projects.......ccccevrnivencincicnieerineesneeecnnes 42,225

Internal ServiCe.......cccceeeenmniiceee e 1.235 (95.836)
Net General ...t 47,474
Special ReVENUE......ccvceveecrreeee e 101,380
ENterprisSe .....veeceeinirecerrercreer s 7,577
Internal ServiCe......cocverveenreee e 42,694
AGENCY coeeiiicircniennreccsee ittt nneeessesnr s sessssavennns '169.188
Total Equity in Pooled Cash..........ceueueeeecmenennn.. $ 368,313

Amounts due to other funds by Special Revenue funds will be paid from coliection of reimbursements under
grant programs from the Federal and State governments. Amounts owed from the Capital Projects fund will be
collected through future bond sales. Amounts owed by the Internal Service funds will be paid through collection of
charges for services and General fund subsidies.

Deposits and investments:

Primary Government

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits, including certificates of deposit, were
$12,870,265 and the bank balances were $13,097,854. Of this balance, $100,000 was covered by federal depository
insurance and $12,997,854 was covered by collateral held by the pledging institution's agent in the name of the
depository or the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland in pooled securities accounts held by the financial institution but
not in the County's name. In addition, the majority of the bank balance represents items for which the bank had not
received final settlement. These items are included in the ledger balance as one-day float. The pooled securities
serve as collateral for all public deposits held by the banks, including the County's deposits. The Ohio Revised Code
requires that the market value of securities held in the pool be at least equal to 110% of the public deposits held by
the banks. Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and loan associations located in
Ohio. County policy is to utilize federally insured banks and savings institutions located in the County.

Component Unit

Deposits: At December 31, 1999, the financial statement carrying amount of the Hospital's deposits was
($6,209,000) (overdraft). The actual bank balances including accrued interest, totaled $788,000, the difference
representing outstanding checks payable and normal reconciling items. Federal depository insurance covered
approximately $200,000 of the Hospital's deposits at year-end and are thus a category (1) deposit risk in accordance
with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 3. The remainder was secured by collateral pools of U.S. Government
and municipal securities at a financial institution in the Hospital’'s name.

Investments: The County’s Statement of Investment Policy, approved by the County's Investment Advisory
Committee authorizes investment by the County in investments described in the Ohio Revised Code. Eligible
investments include U. S. Treasury Bills and Notes, backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government,
obligations of U.S. government agencies, commercial paper, bankers acceptances, municipal obligations of the State
of Ohio or the political subdivisions of the State of Ohio, time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts in
an eligibie institution defined in the Ohio Revised Code, State of Ohio Local Agency Investment Pool, shares in open-
end no-load money market mutual funds registered under the Federal Investment Act of 1940 and Repurchase
Agreements. Ohio statute prohibits the use of Reverse Repurchase Agreements as of September 1996. County
investment policy restricts Repurchase Agreements to durations of 30 days or less and all investments to maturities
of not more than 5 years.
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The Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 3 "Deposits with Financial Institutions,
Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements" requires the County to
categorize its deposits and investments into one of three credit risk categories. Category 1 includes investments that
are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Risk
category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's
trust department or agent in the County's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the County’s name.

At December 31, 1999, the County's Primary Government investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 00Q's)

Investment Type Category 1 Carrying Value Fair Value
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 46,965 $ 46,965 $ 47,017
U.S. Government Mortgage-backed :

Securities 262,160 262,160 257,372
Bankers Acceptances 2,472 2,472 2,473
State Investment Pool _64,046 _64,046
Total County INVESIMENLS .....crevcurcrccremisssaenns $ 311,597 $ 375643 $ 370,908

The U.S. Treasury Notes, U.S. Government Mortgage-backed Securities and Bankers Acceptances are held
by the County or its agent in the County’s name. The amount invested in the State Investment Pool is not classified
by risk category because it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

At December 31, 1999, the County’s Component Unit investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's}

Investment Type Category 1 Category 3 Carrying Value Fair Value
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 50,896 $ $ 50,896 $ 49,275
U.S. Agency Obligations........ccecreieiecnsasennne 142,480 142,480 138,199
Repurchase Agreements.........oovcecnernenene 12.960 12,860 12,960

$ 193376 $ 12.960 206,336 200,434
Money Market Funds : 74,303 74.303
Total Hospital INVESIMENLS ....ou.eevessmssenreenens $ 280,639 $ 274737
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NOTE D - interfund Receivables and Payables

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances as of December 31, 1999 follow:

{Amounts in 000's)
Interfund Interfund
Fund Types Receivables Payables
GENEral FUNG....ooeecveeteeeeeirecsve e esie e e e saressne s neasnenes $ 120,610 $ 3,668
Special Revenue Funds:
HUMAN SErVICeS ....oveeetirecieeeeee e eeee s reee e e eeeane 50,738
Health and Human Services Levies.......cccceveervervrrneen. 122,044 1,184
Motor Vehicle Gas TaX.....cccocevvirnnnevicererecerccneeneeen 1,517 326
County Board of Mental Retardation ........ccccceeveenene. 64,390 1,436
Health and Community Services ........cccccveeeverrecneeen. 11,581 846
Job Training Partnership Act ......ccovcvrvvrecrnrine e 815
Community Development ...........cccocovnnenieccrncneneenen 1,675 3,606
(@] (2= SO 2 37
Total Special Revenue FuNdS.....cccovvvveevireccnnveenceneeecneees 201,209 58,988
Debt Service FUNd ...t cncer e 19,203
Capital Projects FUNG......c..ccovvivveiirinceirrcncseeceecsseeenen, 21 42,123
Enterprise Funds:
Sanitary ENGINEET....cocivcerirerrirecenreersiscenesssnessenenenes 1 251
CoUNtY AINPOM....ccceeeereerrcererrresreereesee s eesee e e senenans 6
Huntington Park Garage........cc.ccccevcerevvreenceecvrnnnnen. 11
Cuyahoga County Information System ..........ccceeuenee. 12 3
Total Enterprise FUNAS....cocvveierervicerecieeres e necs s 13 271
Internal Service Funds:
Central Custodial Services ........cceeevmreivercrcreesicnnnennne 203 820
Maintenance Garage........ccvvveeeveeenrinesieeneeerncracersesees 99 1,001
Data Processing Center ........cuveevceeevvicccenrinceennacnne 79 65
Printing, Reproduction and Supplies .......cccccevccrvennnen. 458 10
CommUNICAIONS....covv et snsere e, 109 263
Self-Funded Workers Compensation.........ccccceeveevennans 8,196 1
Total Internal Service FUNAS ....cccceecvcrevcivcrrerieererseeceeseenas 9,144 2,160
Agency Funds:
PaYIOll ...t 717
Undivided TaX....occvciciineerinnr e eeeceeecee e ennenas 235,192
(0] (1= OSSOSO 8.515
Total AgenCy FUNS ..ot 717 243,707
TOUAIS ceeeieveeecieecrerecee et et et st e retersesanesae s seeratesseevneeeesenes $ 350917 $ 350917

24



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

A summary of interfund receivables/payables of the General fund follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Types Receivables Payables
Special Revenue Funds:
HUMEN SEIVICES ..ovevveurerrereeeerererier e seesensens $ 48,180 $
Health and Community Services .......cccovevvvevmreveeeens 316
Job Training Partnership ACt ........ccecvcvrecnviiererieeneen. 607
Community Development ......cco.cccvveeeeeeneeereeeienenns 3.580
Total Special Revenue Funds......cccevveveeieeccieenieeereeeneeens 52,693
Capital Projects FUNG.....cccciinecirineeiireec e cecaveesreeass 42,225
Enterprise Funds:
Cuyahoga County Information System....................... 12
Internal Service Funds:
Maintenance Garage ......cccooeeevvereveeeecceeessevevseeenenans 996 ' 39
Data Processing Center ........cccvieeveccncnnencvercrssnnen 154
Printing, Reproduction and Supplies .........ccccccvveeeeens 287
ComMMUNICALIONS....cuceeireacreeeririreeec e ceevessrenans 239 88
Self-Funded Workers Compensation............ccccouveuveens —_— 2,371
Total Internal Service FUNS .....ccoovviiicareceiieceeeeceeene 1,235 2,939
Agency Funds:
PAYION ...eoeeeeee ettt ns 717
UNndivided TaX. ..o vcceverrereeeneee et ceeee e 19,605
L0 (1= USROS 4,852
Total Agency FUNAS.....ccccvvinnnnciniiriree e ens 24,457 717
TOtAIS .ot reeere ettt et e e e ettt e et s s eees $ 120,610 $ 3668

The receivables from Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Intermnai Service funds represent amounts
overdrawn from the pooled cash account which is owed to the General fund. The receivable from Undivided Tax
Agency fund represents property taxes levied in 1999 to be recorded in the General fund in 2000. The receivable
from Other Agency funds represents investment earnings and fees deposited in various outside bank accounts.

The amount payable to the Cuyahoga County Information System is for computer charges from various
General fund agencies. The amounts payable to internal Service funds represent unpaid charges at December 31,
1998. The amount payable to the Payroll Agency funds represents hospitalization charges.
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NOTE E - Contributed Capital - Proprietary Fund Types

A summary of additions and reductions to contributed capital for the County's Enterprise funds follows:

Less: Depreciation
and Disposition
of Fixed Assets

Contributed Capital Add: Grants and Acquired by Contributed Capital
Enterprise Funds At Beginning of Year Contributed Assets Contributed Capital At End of Year
Enterprise Funds:
Sanitary Engineer.......cccovveereecnene $ 6,856 $ 876 $ 526 $ 7,206
County Airport.......ccoevcresinrnanenee 10,566 403 10,163
Huntington Park Garage .............. 1,616 . 104 _1.512
Total $ 19038 $ 876 $ 1083 $ 18.881

NOTE F - General Fixed Assets

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

Asset Type 1999 Additions Deductions 1999
Land.....ccoeererrererreeee e resecnennnas $ 28,983 $ 846 $ $ 29,829
Land improvements .........cccevveeeen 1,269 265 1,534
Buildings, structures

and improvements.....ccurneenn. 379,608 4,612 27 384,193
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment........c.ccoeeeeinenn. 16,239 1,848 881 17,206
Vehicles ....coevvrcicriciccreeecssce, 11,922 1,727 1,447 12,202
Construction in

Progress ....ccecceiviiennessresinenan, 58,113 27.711 4363 _81.461
TOtalS ..ciieveeirecreecereie e reseeeineane $496,134 $ 37,009 $ 8718 $ 526,425

At December 31, 1999, general fixed assets included $27,772,958 of property and equipment under
capitalized leases. Land amounted to $5,777,209, buildings, structures and improvements amounted to $21,496,670
and fumiture, fixtures and equipment amounted to $499,079.
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A summary of construction commitments follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Authorized

Project Expended as of Future
Function Amount December 31, 1999 Commitments
General government .............. $ 15,362 $ 7,395 $ 7,967
Judicial......ccovveereeeceiieeeee 108,833 62,332 46,501
Social services......oceveeeeveenenn.. 8,750 7,032 1,718
Health and safety.................. 7,500 653 6,847
Public works.......cccevveecveenenenne 6,487 4,049 2,438

TOtAIS oot $146,932 $ 81.461 $ 65,471
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NOTE G - Long-Term Debt and Other Obligations

The bonded debt of the County payable as of December 31, 1999, follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Year Interest Balance Balance
Issued Rate January 1 Additions Reductions  December 31
General Long-Term Debt:
Primary Government
General Obligation Bonds - Unvoted:
1983 Building Improvements-Due thru 2004 ...................... 9.375% $ 5,250 $ $ 875 $ 4,375
1983 Health Service Facilities-Due thru 2004..................... 9.375% 2,220 370 1,850
1983  Auditorium-Due thru 2004...........ccvmiriiineineciinenens 9.8375% 1,050 175 875
1983 Street Improvement-Due thru 2004 ..........ccoeeeeianenn. 9.375% 300 50 250
1983 Sanitary Improvement-Due thru 2004........................ 8.375% 1,200 200 1,000
1993 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-Due thru 2012..., 2.20%-5.25% 47,290 4,600 42,680
1993 Rock and Roll Hall of Fame-Due thru 2018 ............... 2.75%-5.65% 10,810 315 10,285
1995 Various Purpose Improvement-Due thru 2015........... 3.75%-5.50% 29,530 — 2.015 27515
Total General Obiligation Bonds - Unvoted........ccccuveveeeee. 97,450 8,600 88,850
General Obiigation Bonds - Voted;
1991 Jail Il Series — Due thru 2006 6.95%-7.05% 5,086 5,086
1993 Jail Faciliies and Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-
DU THIU 2013 ..o ieeeeeensecesseecnecees e 2.20%-5.25% 47.789 _ 3.950 43.839
Total General Obligation Bonds - Voted........ccocceceveneennneen 52,875 - 3.950 48,925
TOTAL TAX SUPPORTED BONDS ......cocovvmmscarssrensoraronses 150,325 12,550 137,775
Seli- orti onds;
1976 Sewer improvement 615A-Due thru 2001.................. 6.500% 465 - 185 310
Total Seif-Supporting Bonds.......ccccocvviiirinincienecnne. 465 155 310
Revenue Bond Debt:
Revenue Bonds:
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022 ...... 4.44%-6.75% 38,400 1,600 36,800
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022 ...... 8.63% 35,000 35,000
1994 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2023 ...... 4.45%-7.60% 41,010 1,185 39,875
1994 Cleveland Foundation Economic Development -
DU thIU 2002 ....coinieiinrer et serrer et e aesvesven 3.00% 1,750 371 1,379
1998 Brownfield Economic Redevelopment ~ Due thru 2018 4.91%-6.75% 15,465 __440 15.025
Total Revenue Bonds..........ccceviemeereccncenimninieenriennnns 131,625 3,546 128079
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS.............. 282,415 16,251 266,164
Enterprise Fund Debt:
Self- it nds:
1992 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2012 3.50%-6.40% 1810 20 1,820
Total Self-Supporting Bonds........ccocveiiimniinccicnninan. 1,910 90 1,820
TOTAL ALL BONDS $ 284,325 $ ") $ 16,341  $267.984
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The changes in the General Long-Term Debt Account group for 1999 are as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Balance o . Balance
January 1 Additions Reductions December 31
T

General Long-Term Obligations:
Bonds Due thru 2023 ..........oecerrvevreerveneeniereereerennnanns $ 282,415 $ $ 16,251 $ 266,164
Accrued Wages and Benefits 18,575 1,645 20,220
Capital Lease Obligations......... 3,221 714 2,507
Environmental Protection Agen: 219 27 192
Ohio Department of Development Loan 4,500 —_— 250 _4.250

Total General Long-Term Obligations....

$ 308.930 $ 1845 $ 17240  $203.333

A summary of the County's future long-term bond funding requirements for the Primary Goverment as of
December 31, 1999, follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Bonds Due In Principal Interest
2000 ... et es e $ 18,004 $ 16,369
P20 0 & O ST 16,777 15,531
2002 ....oicceeeeeeere e eresenns 16,768 14,709
2003 .. eiicverreeerrrecrerereesreecrreseneeeas 17,290 13,891
2004 ... 15,670 15,214
2005-2009....ccccieecieerrenireeeereceens 68,877 68,843
2010-2014 ... 48,663 55,319
2015-2019 e 37,555 19,015
2020-2023...uiecieeireeee e 28.380 4676
TOtAIS ceoeeceeeeeee s e ener e $267,984 $ 223,567

A summary of the County’s Component Unit future long-term bond funding requirements as of December
31,1999, follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Bonds Due In Principal and Interest

2000 .t eae e e e ees $ 12,879
20071 v e r e s e 14,774
2002 .t s e e e e 14,782
2003 ..ot rnrre e er e e aae e eas 14,770
2004 ... e aees 14,769
THErEafter ... ottt ie e e s 321,134
TORAL ettt 393,108
Amounts representing interest..........cocceeeeereneen. (191,299)
Unamortized difference between reacquisition

price and the net carrying amount of old debt .. (8,982)
Unamortized diSCOUNt.........cccceeirveecerreeceeccceneens (2.381)
Present value of net minimum payments............ $ 190446

Long-Term Bonds: All long-term bonded debt of the Primary Government is retired from the Debt Service
fund except those payable from Enterprise funds. General obligation bonds are secured by the County's ability to
levy a voted or unvoted property tax within limitations of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds, except revenue bonds, are
secured by an unvoted property tax levy, however, each appropriate bond indenture provides for principal and
interest to be paid from user charges. The revenue bonds are secured by non-tax revenue of the County.
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Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$167,482,000 of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Defeasance of General Obligation Bonds: On March 19, 1993, the County issued general obligation bonds
amounting to $140,648,691 with interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.75%. The issues consisted of voted and
unvoted refunding debt as well as new voted debt. The unvoted refunding debt amounted to $75,395,000, the voted
refunding debt amounted to $49,403,691 and the additional voted debt amounted to $15,850,000. The refunding
debt was used to retire outstanding debt of $115,593,0948 which consisted of $49,568,948 and $66,025,000 of voted
and unvoted debt, respectively. The County advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt service payments
over the next 20 years by $1.5 million and $2.9 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively, and to obtain an
economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $1.2
million and $2.2 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The aggregate amount of the defeased General
Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 1999 is $47,151,960.

Brownfield Economic Redevelopment Bonds: On Qctober 1, 1998, the County issued Economic
Redevelopment Revenue Bonds amounting to $15,465,000 at interest rates varying from 4.91% to 6.75% for the
purpose of providing funding for the Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Program. Annual debt service payments to the
trustee commenced January 1999 and will continue until 2018. Debt service will be paid from nontax revenue of the
County. At December 31, 1999, a reserve in the General fund was created to account for future loans from the bond
proceeds for Brownfield Redevelopment.

Cleveland Foundation Bond and Gateway Loan: The County entered into a cooperative agreement with the
Cleveland Foundation dated July 1994, for the issuance of Economic Development Bonds to be purchased by the
Cleveland Foundation with the proceeds loaned to Gateway. The bonds were issued for $1,750,000 at an interest
rate of 3%. Annual debt service payments to the Cleveland Foundation commenced July 1999 and continue through
2002. Debt service payments are to be made from nontax revenue of the County. Gateway is to repay the County
out of its revenue sources.

Accrued Wages and Benefits: County employees become eligible to receive one-fourth of their accumulated
unpaid sick leave time upon retirement after a minimum of ten years of service. Certain agencies may have policies
that vary with regard to payment of accrued sick leave time upon retirement. Termination of employment must be by
retirement to receive accumulated unpaid sick leave. Employees with a minimum of one year of service become
vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Vacation time may not be accumulated for more than three years.
Unused vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. In general, employees are eligible to be paid for
unpaid overtime and unused compensatory time upon termination of employment. All sick, vacation and overtime
payments are made at the employee's current wage rate.

At December 31, 1999, the total accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime hours for which
$20,220,094 is recorded in the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group were:

Hours Amount

(in 000Q's)
SHCK covvereririneenrvverneneeeemeeeeenenanas 13,920 $ 224
Vacation......cveeveveeieesreesenns 1,175,507 18,888
Overtime......ovveveeeeeee e 68.959 1,108
L) £ | VORI 1,258,386 $ 20,220

Special Termination Benefits: The State of Ohio has granted statutory authority enabling Ohio public
employers to establish early retirement incentive programs. In conjunction with this program, the County Board of
Mental Retardation (CBMR) adopted in 1998 by board resolution a plan which allows for participation by eligible
CBMR employees. The plan was in effect for one year beginning September 1, 1998 through August 31, 1999 for
both PERS and STRS. The benefit for participating employees was based on service credit amounting to twenty
percent of existing accumulated service up to a maximum of two years. In 1999, $275,000 was paid to PERS and
STRS.
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In 1999, CBMR, adopted by board resolution, ancther plan allowing for participation by eligible CBMR
employees. The plan will be in effect for two years starting July 1, 2000 through July 1, 2002 for PERS. There is no
estimate of payout as of December 31, 1899.

Capital Lease Obligations: The County has entered into agreements to lease copier and computer
equipment. [n addition, the County Board of Mental Retardation has entered into agreements to lease buildings for
use as training centers and adult living facilities. These agreements are, in substance, lease purchases (capital
leases), and are classified as capital lease obligations in the financial statements.

The following summarizes future minimum lease payments under the above capital leases, and the present
values of net minimum lease payments for the Primary Government at December 31, 1999:

Year {Amounts in 000's)
GLTO Proprietary funds

2000......ceiiireerreeereeerereestreseeeesersnsresseresesessassessssessessnens $ 588 $ 425
2007 ceeeeeeeeeteieerresee e rte e re e e et ee e s esesrsesstesassasaenraens 465 284
2002....eceieceiieeeeeerestanteraeerestrestsbesessne s rrestesrrennresreens 435 274
2003 eieerireeeee e eere et ee et asr e s e e sreeseeabesarenresnens 373 68
2004 ...t cereste e ste et ee et sar st eeseessnenene 320

2005-2009.......c0cermrrerrerrerrrceserenresseessessesssessresseessenes 1,077

2010-2074.....irrteierccrcreeerecctrnrerre s e rerae e erereenes 787

2015-2019..c0eieeeeeeierrererereeeetaresessesss s eressessssnnersesess 157

2020-2023......ceeveererrrrreereeseterrassseesesrtrasessesseensenes 13 -
Total Minimum Lease Payments.......cc.ccccvveeverceniecns 4,215 1,051
Less: Amount Representing Interest........cocceevvveeune 1,708 _ 81
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments........ $ 2,507 $ 970

The following summarizes future minimum payments and the present values of net minimum lease
payments for the Component Unit at December 31, 1999:

Year (Amounts in 000's)
Equipment Obligation
2000 ..t eteeietecereeeerteenre st e ea et e e aestaasenaesrearas $ 3,035
2007 cuieeeiereeeeerreeeereerenertssst e e s e e e snecresebessnesnnensanns 3,035
2002 ceeeeeeeeeerieere s sest et ssa e s besta s saeneneas 3,035
2008 et rrt sttt et asb e ta e ssaetenserbeeeanen 3,035
2004 ......ceeceeeeeereeererreerneereteset et esreraresesssessanseeseenrns 2,441
Thereafter ... 2,338
Total Minimum Lease Payments..........ccccccevreceeeennen. 16,919
Less: Amount Representing Interest........cccccvvevenennees 2,279
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments........ $ 14640

EPA Loan: The County Board of Mental Retardation was granted a twenty year, no interest loan by the
United States Environmental Protection Agency in the amount of $493,962. The purpose of the loan is for the
removal of asbestos at the William Patrick Day Developmental Center. The loan is payable in equal semi-annual
installments of $2,500 or 1/36th of the total amount of the loan outstanding, whichever is greater. Repayment of the
loan commenced in June 1989, and will continue until the principal is fully paid, except that the final instaliment of the
entire indebtedness is due and payable in twenty years or by July 31, 2007. The outstanding balance of this loan at
December 31, 1999 was $192,000.

Ohio Department of Development Loan: Due to cost overruns on the Gateway sports facility, a $10 million
private loan was secured by Gateway from a local bank. The County was required to place $10 million in a certificate
of deposit in the bank untii repayment of the loan. [n October 1998, the State of Ohio's Department of Development
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ioaned the city of Cleveland and the County $10 million to repay the Gateway loan from the local bank. The no
interest loan is to be repaid over 20 years with annual payments of $250,000 each from the city of Cleveland and the
County due beginning March 1997. The County's portion of the loan is to be repaid from Local Government
distributions from the State of Ohio.

Enterprise Fund Loans: The Sanitary Engineer was granted four, twenty year, no interest loans by the State
of Ohio Public Works Commission in the amounts of $1,023,209, $746,824, $453,919 and $130,654, respectively.
The purpose of the first three of these loans is for the construction of sewer lines at various municipalities throughout
Cuyahoga County. The purpose of the fourth loan is for the construction of sewer lines at MetroHealth. Repayment
commenced in December 1999 on the $453,919 loan for the North County Line station. Repayment began in earlier
years on all other loans.

The Sanitary Engineer has also entered into four twenty year loan agreements with the State of Ohio
Environmental Protection Agency for $1,487,345, $270,471, $1,399,342 and $1,935,146, with interest rates between
4.0% to 4.18%. The purpose of these loans is for rehabilitation of the Sanitary Engineer’s office building,
replacement of Hickory Hills treatment pump station, construction of Scottish Hightands pump station and
replacement of North County Line station, respectively. Repayment commenced in July 1999 on the North County
Line station. Repayment began in earlier years on all other loans.

The Sanitary Engineer entered into a loan agreement with the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District for
$666,619. The purpose of the loan is for tap-in of the Olmsted Falls sewer line to Bagley Road.

Enterprise Fund Notes: The County issued Bond Anticipation Notes for sewer improvements, in the amount
of $1,365,000 in May 1998, for the Chagrin Highlands project. The notes were issued with an interest rate of 4% due
May 12, 1999. The County rolled the notes over in May and September 1999. The rollover notes issued in
September 1999 amounted to $1,100,000 at an interest rate of 4.1% (effective rate of 3.8643% after premium of
$2,407). The County will issue bonds in 2000 to retire the notes. The bonds will be a general obligation of the
County but be repaid through a special assessment.

Operating Leases: During the year 1999, the County had approximately 80 operating leases for office space
and equipment. At December 31, 1999, there were 54 remaining with future obligations. The operating lease
agreements range in length from one month to six years. Total rental payments for 1999 amounted to $7,520,002
and rental obligations for the years 2000 through 2005 are $21,155,415 of which $3,228,152 represent proprietary
fund obligations. Rental payments for the years 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004 are $6,756,585, $4,892,382,
$4,452,082, $3,465,833 and $1,456,422, respectively. Operating lease payments are recorded in the period they are
paid.

Gateway Loan Guarantees: The County has guaranteed $69.4 million of bonded debt issued by Gateway.
The guarantee, subject to annual renewal, covers $38.4 million in Subordinated Tax Bonds supported by an excise
tax on cigarettes and alcohol products and $31 million in Stadium Revenue Bonds supported by luxury seating
revenues. The County appropriates an amount necessary to cover the annual debt service which amounted to $7.3
million in 1999. As of December 31, 1999, the outstanding balance on the Gateway loan guarantees including
interest was $31.1 million on the Subordinated Tax Bonds through September 1, 2005 and $43.6 million on the
Stadium Revenue Bonds through September 15, 2014. The County has not been required to make any payments on
behalf of the Gateway bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations: Periodically, the County of Cuyahoga has issued Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the
acquisition and construction of industrial, commercial and hospital facilities deemed to be in the public interest.
These bonds are secured by the property financed and are payabie solely from payment received on the underlying
mortgage loans. The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the County and,
therefore, are not reported in the financial statements. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance.

As of December 31, 1999, the aggregate principal amounts outstanding for the Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds were $204,117,096, $1,924,555,000 and $108,280,000
respectively.
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NOTE H - Pension and Retirement Plans and Other Post Employment Benefits
Primary Government

PERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: - Al full-time employees of the County, except teachers employed by the
County Board of Mental Retardation, participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS). Itis a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined pension benefit plan created by the State. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter
145 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority to establish and amend benefits to the PERS Board of Trustees.
PERS issues a stand-alone financial report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the
Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling
(614) 466-2085.

PERS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Employees are required to contribute 8.5% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement employees,
who are required to contribute 9%. The employer contribution rate is 13.55% of covered payroll except for law
enforcement which is 16.70%. The employer contributions from the County to PERS for the years ending 1999, 1998
and 1997 were $45.198, $42.642 and $39.299 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

OPEB PLAN DESCRIPTION: Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio aiso provides postretirement
health care coverage considered an "other postemployment benefit' (OPEB). Persons who qualify for coverage are
age and service retirees with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Also available to individuals who
qualify are coverage for disability and survivor benefits. A portion of each employer's contribution to PERS is set
aside for the funding of postretirement health care.

OPEB FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions.
The employer contribution rate is 4.2% of covered payroll. The portion of employer contributions from the County to
PERS set aside for funding postretirement health care for the years ending 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $13.951,
$13.163 and $14.779 million respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Expenditures for OPEB during 1999 were $523.599 million. As of December 31, 1999, the unaudited
estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments were $9.870 billion. The number of benefit recipients
eligible for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was approximately 118,000.

STRS PLAN DESCRIPTION: Teachers employed by the County Board of Mental Retardation (CBMR)
participate in the State Teachers Retirement System Of Ohio (STRS). It is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
pension benefit plan created by the State. STRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefits to the STRS Board of Trustees. STRS issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the State Teachers Retirement System
of Ohio, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

STRS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Employees are required to contribute 9.3% of covered payroll. The employer contribution rate is 14%
of annual covered payroll. The employer contributions from the County Board of Mental Retardation to STRS for the
years ending 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $1.783, $1.729 and $1.662 million respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

OPEB: The Ohio STRS provides other postempioyment benefits (OPEB). The qualifications to receive
benefits replicate PERS. The employer contribution rate requirement was equal to 2% of total covered payroll. The
Health Care Reserve Fund allocation for the year ended June 30, 19899, was 8.0% of covered payroll. The employer
contributions for the years ending 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $1,019,000, $710,000 and $326,000 respectively, equal
to the required contributions for each year. The balance in the Health Care Reserve Fund was $2.783 billion at June
30, 1999.

For the year ended June 30, 1999, the net health care costs paid by STRS were $249.929 million. There
were 95,796 eligible recipients.
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Component Unit

PERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: - Employee retirement benefits are available for substantially all employees
under contributory retirement plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). This
retirement program is a statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. PERS provides retirement
and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits for plan members. The PERS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the muiti-employee defined benefit plan may be obtained by writing to
Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642

PERS FUNDING POLICY: Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. The employee contribution rate is 8.5% of covered payroll and the Hospital is required to contribute
13.55% of covered payroll. The Hospital’s contributions to PERS for the years ending December 31, 1999, 1998 and
1997 were $28.819, $26.777 and $24.920 million respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

OPEB PLAN DESCRIPTION: PERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service
retirees with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and
primary survivor recipients i available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an
Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer’s total
pension contribution {13.55%) to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health care.

OPEB FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions.
The Hospital's actual contribution for 1999 and 1998 which was used to fund postretirement health care benefits was
$8.933 and $8.300 million respectively. The employer contribution rate is 4.2% of covered payroll.

As of December 31, 1999 the PERS unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments
were $9.870 billion. Expenditures for PERS’ OPEB during 1999 were $523.599 million. The number of benefit
recipients eligible for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was $118,000.

NOTE I - Deficit Balances

At December 31, 1999, the Capital Projects, County Airport, Central Custodial Services and
Communications funds had fund balance/retained earnings deficits of $44,216,000, $535,000, $1,654,000 and
$286,000 respectively. The deficit in the Capital Projects fund will be eliminated by issuance of debt in 2000. The
deficit will be eliminated in the County Airport through a review of the fee schedule. Central Custodial Services will
review its deficit through a reconciliation of 1999 billings. Fund undercharges will be adjusted in 2000 and the
General fund will review its subsidy commitment. The Communications deficit will be eliminated through a review of
user fees and reconciliation of timing differences.

NOTE J - Fund Equity

Reserves and Designations: The County segregates fund balances using two different account categories;
reserved and designated. Two general types of reserved fund balance accounts are used. The first type indicates
the portion of fund balance which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type indicates the
portion of fund balance which does not represent available, spendable resources and is, therefore, not eligible to fund
current year expenditures. Designations indicate the portion of fund balance which management has earmarked for a
specific future use. Designations are not legal segregations.

Reserve accounts used by the County include:

Reserved for Restricted Assets: This account includes grants and contributions made to the Hospital
(Component Unit) which have been restricted by donors or grantees for specific purposes and assets for which the
Hospital serves in a custodial nature. At December 31, 1999, the balance in this account was $5,205,000. Earnings
on investments of these assets are included in operations unless such earnings are also restricted by donors.
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Reserved for Development Fund: This account is used to legally separate future loans from bond proceeds
for Brownfield Redevelopment. At December 31, 1999, $15,465,000 has been reserved for future Brownfield
Redeveiopment loans.

Reserved for Debt Service: This account is used to legally separate resources to pay for the current portion
of principle and interest. At December 31, 1999, $8,746,000 has been reserved for debt service for the Gateway
Economic Development Bonds and the Brownfield Tax Economic Development Revenue Bonds.

Designation accounts used by the County include:

Designated for Self-Insurance: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to fund any claims or judgements which are not covered by insurance. At December 31, 1999,
$2,000,000 has been designated for seli-insurance.

Designated for Proprietary Funds: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked 1o retire outstanding Enterprise and intemal Service funds' deficits. At December 31, 1999, $2,475,000
has been designated for future Enterprise and internal Service funds' subsidies.

NOTE K - Risk Management and Other Contingencies
Primary Government

Judgements and Claims: The County is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits which may be
classified as routine litigation in which minimal damages are being sought. In addition, the County is a defendant in
numerous other claims and lawsuits which range from tort liability to civil rights litigation. The County believes that
the amounts claimed are overstated and are not fair estimates of the ultimate settlements which may arise upon
termination of these issues. Amounts paid by the County in 1999 for litigation settlements and estimates for claims
not yet settled were immaterial.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted
grant programs. The major programs are: Community Development Block Grant and the Ohio Department of
Human Services. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives.
At December 31, 1999, the audits of certain programs have not been completed. Accordingly, the County's
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at a future date. The County believes that
disallowed claims, if any, will not have a materia! adverse effect on the County's financial position.

There was a previous preliminary audit finding for recovery in the amount of $13.1 million against the County
Department of Human Services by the Ohio Department of Human Services for improper payments to individuals for
Medicaid and Aid to Dependent Children. The County believes that the final outcome will be settied favorably and
has transferred money set aside back to the General fund.
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Self-Insurance: The County has designated $2,000,000 of General fund balance, pursuant to Ohio law, to
provide reserves for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies. Settled claims
from risks covered by the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three
fiscal years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County in 1999 and estimates for claims
including those incurred but not reported were immaterial. The County is also self-insured with respect to the Ohio
Unemployment Compensation and Workers Compensation programs. Self-insurance expenditures were immaterial
for unemployment compensation in 1999. The County maintains an Intermnal Service fund for the self-insurance of
workers compensation through a retrospective rating plan with the State of Chio of which total expenditures for 1999
were $7,162,000. All payroll funds in the County contribute to the Self-Funded Workers Compensation fund based
on estimates needed to pay claims and to establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Changes to the
estimated claims payable recorded in the Self-Funded Workers Compensation fund during the years ended
December 31, 1999 and 1998 were:

{Amounts in 000’s)

1999 1998

Estimated claims payable beginning of year........ccccoevecnvieennna. $ 31,805 $ 30,511
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates .................. 6,947 4,291
Less: Claim payments......ccocviiiiiicienireennreesiesseecccceesssnesesnans 5.500 2,997
Estimated claims payable end of year .........c.ccoevevuicrccinnnnininnnns $33.252 $ 31,805

Rebatable Arbitrage: The County has issued General Obligation Bonds whose interest earnings may be
subject to rebatable arbitrage of which the amount is not measurable at this time. County management does not
believe that the amount of earnings that might be rebatable would be significant to the County.

Component Unit

Self-insurance: The Hospital is self-insured for the purpose of providing professional and patient care
liability and workers’ compensation claims. For the professional and patient care liability, professional insurance
consultants have been retained to determine funding requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient
care have been placed in an irrevocable self-insurance trust account, which is being administered by a trustee.

Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting
system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The reserve for estimated
self-insured claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported discounted at a rate of 6%. The movement of the reserve is as follows:

(Amounts in 000’s)

1999 1998
Beginning Dalance ......cccccveeienin i scesve e $ 32,335 $ 26,957
Provision for Self-INSUIANCEe.....coviteii e e e eeeeeeveeeteierreeeeeesceseveeassnnes 1,643 10,607
Claims paid and Other. ..ottt (8.991) (5,229)
Ending Balance.........couieenvciiiniceceeeecccnts e $ 24,987 $32335
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NOTE L - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all County funds during the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract-related expenditures/expenses. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the succeeding year.

At December 31, 1999, encumbrances outstanding in Governmental funds and Proprietary funds which
were reappropriated in the 2000 budget were:

Fund Type {Amounts in 000's)
General fuNG ....covoeeceeieeceecce e be e e $ 31,085
Special Revenue funds ......cccecevveveecerciienieenceeiscecereenneens 98,434
Capital Projects fund.....c..coemeeieieiieeeciercceecsserceereeenns 27,070
Enterprise funds ......ceveeeecirrceee e e 3,913
Internal Service fundS ...ccveeceeeeeeeree e 14,751
TOAL «eeeeeeeeeteetreeete e re b en s ettt nas $175,253

On a GAAP basis, a portion of these encumbrances represented accrued liabilities of the County. At
December 31, 1999, encumbrances recorded as liabilities were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GENEral fUNG oo cecer e er e e e e ere e e $ 473
Special Revenue funds .....coeevciveeieeceeciinneeerecneneeneens 995
Capital Projects fund........ccevieruricvnrceccimeneenen e eeseeeenn. 416
Enterprise funds ..o e 32
Internal Service funds......cccecciii e 1.873
TOAI coeeeeecrereesirete s eetse st srems st e er s s bbb st babesss b sencenaens $ 3.789

NOTE M - Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, public utility and tangible (used in business) property.
The assessed value upon which the 1999 tax collection was based follows:

Real Propemty .....cccccocvirneriirnsarnrnreeeesereseeeeesensesseens $ 21,173,385,450
Tangible Property......ccccveecerrcerrnrereeereersennenesesene 2,855,467,347
Public utility property........ccccervmmineicncennncreeneneenens 1.326.934.510
Total assessed Value .......ccvvrrreericrsneinenereceeins $.25,355,787,307
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Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.45 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value of which
.45 is designated for debt service. in addition to the 1.45 mills, 9.37 mills have been levied based upon mills voted for
debt service, mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare. A summary of voted millage
follows:

Voter Rates Levied for Final
Authorized Current Year Collection

Purpose Rate (1) Collection (2) Year

Agricultural/ Commercial/

Residential Industrial
Debt SEervICe ... 27 .27 27 2013
Mental retardation........ccocovevceeerericeinenes 3.00 2.76 2.92 2000
Health and human services(3) ............. 3.00 2.04 2.45 1999
Health and welfare......ccceceveevvveenncenns 3.10 3.09 3.10 2003
Total voted millage....ccccoevreeenecernenns 237 8.16 874

(1) In mills per $1.00 of assessed valuation.

(2) Ohio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property.
The mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare levies are subject to this
credit.

(3) The health and human services levy was voter renewed in 1999 at 3.00 mills to be collected through
2004.

Real property taxes are levied each December on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1st, the
lien date. Assessed values are established the preceding year by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value. A revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent update was completed in 1997. Pubiic utility property taxes are assessed on
tangible personal property, as well as land and land improvements at true value, which is, in general, net book value.
Tangible property is assessed at 25% of true value except for inventories which are assessed at 25% of average
value.

The County Treasurer bills and collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in Cuyahoga County
including the County. Taxes are payable semi-annually. The County's practice is to extend the statutory due dates to
January and July. Unpaid taxes become delinquent after December 31 of the year they are due. Foreclosure
proceedings may be initiated by the County Prosecutor if delinquent taxes are not paid within one year.

The County Auditor periodically remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts. The final
settlements of real and public utility property taxes are made in June and November and tangible taxes in July and
December for the first and second halves of the year, respectively.

The County accrues property taxes as receivables since they can be measured and recorded when levied
and recognized as deferred revenue since they are collected in advance of the year for which they are levied.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied.

Property tax revenues were recorded in the following funds in 1999.

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund.......coecvevinnnie e $ 22,064
Special Revenue funds ..o e 183,416
Debt Service fund.......ccocceceriirrevcciininiincceeee 15,953
Total property tax reVENUES .....cccccoevmrricrnnrecserensessenenes $ 231433
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Property tax revenues include levies collected from both the current levy and delinquent levies. The
cumulative delinquency as of December 31, 1999 for all county levies, which include the Metroparks, Cuyahoga
Community College and the Port Authority which are not in the County entity, was $28.1 million. The cumulative
delinquency as of December 31, 1999 for Cuyahoga County was $20.5 million. The delinquent property tax revenue
was not recorded on the financial statements due to the uncertainty of collection. Recording the delinquency would
not have an impact on the fund balance of the County since it would be offset by reserve for doubtful accounts.

NOTE N - Segment Information for Enterprise Funds and Component Unit

The County maintains four Enterprise funds which provide sewer, airpont, parking, and regional crime
information services and a component unit which operates as a hospital. Segment information for the year ended
December 31, 1999, follows:

{Amounts in 000's)

. Cuyahoga
Sanitary Coun Hurg;r:ﬁton Info?r:gttYon En.tr:rtgrlise Component
Engineér Airpol Garage Funds Lﬁﬁt

Operating revenues............c.coeeverveveereries $10,218 $ 655 $ 2,440 $ 1,745 $ 15,058 $ 391,469
Operating expenses

before depreciation.........cc.cecerevvennees 8,684 894 1,452 3,426 14,456 407,070
Depreciation..........cocovveeveneennrccniereeensenes 961 448 145 4 1,558 24,312
Operating income(loss) .......ccccevcreecrraenes 573 (687) 843 (1,685) (956) (39,913)
Nonaperating revenues(expenses)

other than grants-net .............cccoovrees (286) (286) (2,156)
Operating grants ......coeceeveceieeeresrerennnes 151 151
Operating transfers in.........ccceeveevevrveiennes 144 144 25,352
Operating transfers out ........c...cccveeneerenns (884) (884)
Net income(loss) 287 (392) 41 (1,685) {1,831) (16,717)
Property, plant and equipment:

AdAItioNS. ....o.cveerreine e 5,420 5,420 35,817

DiISPOSIHIONS ....ovvreveeereiecreirerresreieeeens 63 [¢] 72 2,228
Net working capital..........ccoceevevereivenerceren . 2,856 480 279 1,731 5,326 27,635 -
Total @sSets.....cvcerrrneerenriierierenenrenenneres 35,050 9,755 2,287 1,756 48,848 585,344
Bonds and other long-term liabilities:

Payable from operating revenues....... 9,642 9,642 247,333
Total fund equity........ccceriirrerrrcriicenniins 23,554 9,628 2,113 1,737 37,032 259,007
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NOTE O - Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental revenues follows:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund:

State Public Defender reimbursement ......ccccocoerneennens $ 5,586

State property tax reimbursement...........cccovcevveiiiiniicrcnenns 3,451

(071 311 USSR PP ORIt 239
Total General fund.........cccoeervrenieimincc s $ 2276
Special Revenue funds:

Community Development Block Grants .........ccevvvveicnacen $ 16,694

Department of JUSHICE .....ccvvreerrererreneereeeeesae e ceneveeanens 10,760

Department of Labor grants.........ccccoeevvvnniivinrenniecninaes 2,855

Federal and State mental health and

retardation grantS ... ccecececeviniirree e s 128,999
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction ServiCes.......cveeerriveeriiieiererscerrrrreesereseeessnene 22,289

Ohio Department of Human Services grants .......c.c..coeeuee 268,187

Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections........... 8,007

Ohio Department of Transportation...........coceecvriivnincrcnnns 1,002

Chio Department of Youth Services.....c.covveerimninnenncencan 1,934

State property tax reimbursement........ccccvveeeirciniiicncnennns 14,690

L0757 ORI U U U SRR 4,193
Total Special Revenue funds........c.ccoviviiirinniciccnnenicnine $ 479,610
Debt Service fund:

State property tax reimbursement.........cccievveviiiiininceinns $ 2,657
Capital Projects fund:

Criminal Justice Services grants.........ccccvcreivnienneciniennns $ 877

Ohio Department of Mental Retardation ........c.ccecveienneenns 938

Ohio Department of Transportation ........cc.coceccimiicercncnen. 2,083
Total Capital Projects fund..........cceecvvcmiencnneicrcccimsecernenens $ 3.878

NOTE P - Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds which
include operating and residual equity transfers. Operating transfers are transfers of resources from a fund receiving
revenue to a fund through which those resources will be expended. Residual equity transfers are non-routine, non-
recurring transfers of equity between funds, usually transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds.

Operating transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in Governmental funds and as
nonoperating revenues (expenses) in Proprietary funds. Residual equity transfers are recorded separately as an
adjustment to beginning fund balance in Governmental funds and as an adjustment to contributed capital or retained
earnings, as appropriate, for Proprietary funds.
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DECEMBER 31, 1999

A summary of interfund transfers by fund type follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Transfer From
Special
Transfer To General Revenue Enterprise Total
Operating Transfers:
GENEIAI c.eoverieeeereeeeeeeninresecaneeres $ $ 10,894 $ $ 10,894
Special Revenue..........occeevneaee. 2,043 112,015 114,058
Debt Service .....ccccceviiniiennneniennes 9,997 884 10,881
Capital Projects.......cceeeeceencrivences 7,554 4,703 12,257
ENterprise .cccoovvveeeiniinnenncrccnnninnnee 144 144
Internal Service.......ceevereeeviiniiennns 214 214
Component Unit.....c.ccooccceerniiiiennns 25,352 —_ 25,352
Total Operating Transfers ........c..... $ 19952 $ 152,964 $ 884 $ 173800

NOTE Q - Transactions with Gateway

The County, the city of Cleveland and Gateway Economic Development Corporation of Greater Cleveland
(Gateway) entered into a three party agreement whereby Gateway was authorized to construct, own and provide for
the operation of the sports facility which includes a baseball stadium, an arena and a joint development site. Gateway
was incorporated on May 31, 1990 and is a governmental not-for-profit corporation legally separate from any other
entity.

The County and Gateway entered into a revolving loan agreement whereby the County agreed to issue
bonds and loan the bond proceeds to Gateway to pay arena construction costs. As part of this agreement, the County
issued taxabie Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $75 million September 24, 1992 and $45 million on
February 1, 1994. At December 31, 1999, the County has $111.7 million of debt outstanding relating to these bond
issues (See Note G).

The amount due from Gateway under the revolving loan agreement is $161.5 million at December 31, 1989
which includes $120 million of bond issuance proceeds and approximately $38.1 million of interest paid on the bonds.
During 1999, Gateway repaid the County almost $2 million and the remaining amount is fully reserved due to the
uncertainty of the repayment from Gateway.

The County, Gateway and the Convention and Visitors Bureau of Greater Cleveland (the Bureau) entered
into a cooperative agreement on September 15, 1992 which included a provision that allowed a credit to be given to
Gateway for the incremental amount the Bureau receives from the County Transient Occupancy Tax to use as
payment to the County for the bonds issued. This agreement was amended on December 22, 1998 to redefine the
annual incremental credit and to provide for the deposit by the Bureau for the years 1894 through 1898. The County
received $1 million from this agreement during the year ended December 31, 1999.

NOTE R - Subsequent Event

On April 19, 2000, the County issued notes totaling $1,820,000 of a rate of 4.5% (effective rate of 4.2747%
after premium of $4,100). The County will rollover the notes in 2001 and convert the notes to bonds on April 19,
2002. The notes were issued subsequent to a 1999 cooperative agreement between the County and the village of
Orange to provide for certain street, sewer and water improvements. The debt will be a general obligation of the
County but be repaid by an assessment against the village of Orange.
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Combining
Financial Statements



Financial Section

PART II

COMBINING FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Combining financial statements are presented for individual
funds within the Special Revenue, Enterprise, Internal Service and
Agency funds. Schedules of financial activity are aiso presented for the
General Fixed Asset Account Group. .

The General fund, Debt Service fund and Capital Projects fund
are each reported in a single fund and, therefore, do not require
presentation of financial statements below the combined level. However,
comparative financial statements are presented for the General fund and
Capital Projects fund.







COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE GENERAL FUND IS ESTABLISHED TO
ACCOUNT FOR ALL FINANCIAL RESOURCES EXCEPT
THOSE REQUIRED TO BE ACCOUNTED FOR
IN ANOTHER FUND.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

GENERAL FUND
(Amounts in 000's)
December 31,
1999 1998

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents........ccceevreeevcnnncenne $ 47,474 $ 98,946
INVESMIENES e eereeerireereerieerrrerereer e enrrre e ses s e e aas s s e sessanasenss 15,465
Receivables:

TAXES cceeereeieeertteee s rreeante e s sre st e e e etaaea s nrrereeeeseeraassanraneeen 24,885 24,748 |

ACCOUNES aeveneeiieeiieccieieieeseiarreessesssrssscsntsssssseeressesesmesrnsssesnsnsssnne 320 291
Due from other funds .....ccoceeereeecrree e r e areees 120,610 50,476
Due from other governments.........cccecveeniinirenseeneserecreneecenens 7,455 6,591
TOTAL ASSETS $ 216,209 $__ 181,052
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ....couviereieieecirecerreceresnrens e s enernesseeesesneanen $ 3,462 $ 2,615
Deferred rEVENUE ..cuucceccieeeeescrerereeesrerevescsessnnsaesacesesssassnseeas 19,605 22,404
Due t0 Other fUNAS........eeirrereeecrrreecie e crterere e s e se s nre e 3,668 25,301
Accrued wages and benefits .......cccoeeveniieeccee s 5,661 4,931
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... eererieeieereseteceeeee s seeevae e saesennns 32,396 55,251
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for development fund ......cccceeccerveeeecnmrenrreereseeceeneees 15,465
Reserved for debt SEIVICE .....ccvvvieeeverrrieeeecc it ee e e re e cvaaeeas 8,746 7,850
Unreserved:

Designated for self-iNSUrance......cc.occveeeviienereceeeesereecneenenes 2,000 2,000

Designated for proprietary funds.........coceevmvmeiirccceciinicnnn, 2,475 1,225

UNdesignated........ceeeicvveenireieceeeee e s sse s e s e e 155,127 114,726
TOTAL FUND BEQUITY eeeieeeeetieeecevieetteecmereeessasneneevnnessnnes 183,813 125.801
TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND EQUITY .... $ 216,209 $__ 181,052
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GENERAL FUND
(Amounts in 000's)
Years Ended December 31,
1999 1998
REVENUES
PrOPEMY 1aXES ...oeveieeeireerereereiereeerererereseeesteesssssassasssrenas $ 22,064 $ 24,094
Sales AN USE 18X ..uueeirerireeeiieieeinenereirenrreseeesreesnreneseseas 151,304 146,123
1011911 3 - QUSSP 12 16
State local government fund...........coovvieininicennnen. 39,841 37,607
Licenses and Permits .......ccccvecvveeeerienieseseriesreeeennerenenns 128 130
Charges for SEVICES .....cccverirerereecrrsrcrin e e 47,291 47,239
Fines and forfeitures ....cocoveeiieeciiieie et 6,091 5,872
Investment earmings.....ccccrvereercreerrinicenircsensvereee s 18,005 31,661
Other intergovernmental.......cccoovieeeciiincnnccnneecees 9,276 8,571
MiISCEIANEOUS ...oeuveeriiiererireiirr et rererree e iesetreeeesesssassesenes 2,135 1,501
TOTAL REVENUES.....coo et 296,147 302,814
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government........cccveeiirrcninniinseeniecnees e 43,687 40,788
JUAICIAL .. ciicieiiae i ss e eeicesrernenn e ssee e s ssanarnnaesaaaens 190,700 179,009
Development ... ...ttt 1,629 19,772
SOCIAl SEBIVICES ..t 6,284 4,134
Health and safety .....ccccceeoivcorriccnrinirec e, 692 1,453
MiISCEIIANEOUS ......eveeetererereerereieet e testestresaerssaeans 1,550 2,541
TOTAL EXPENDITURES......oveeeeeeeceeeecenrcrieeeeecceeee 244,542 247,697
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES ... cerereecrecenreesneesee s e e 51,605 55,117
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Operating transfers in........cccccvvvvnvennmnininiiiccceie, 10,894 579
Operating transfers out:
Component UNit.......cceevcveeereccemensesicesiesensessresnnnerecsnes (10,311)
Debt REtIFEMENt .....eevrreeeeiiiereveecereseereeenersseersesesonns (9,997) {8,250)
(0] 1 7=" OO T OSSR (9,955) (59,981)
Proceeds from bonds .........ccocomciincniciinnncccneeeeen, 15,465
Bond proceeds with trustee...........coovveniiiiinicinncennenn. 15,465
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)................ 6,407 (62,498)
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES..... 58,012 (7,381)
FUND BALANCE AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR ...oooirreetireree sttt ecneeeeseees 125,801 133,175
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN....cconeecrrirrrirannns 7
FUND BALANCE AT
END OF YEAR $ 183,813 $ 125,801

45



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-

Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Propery taXES .. cceeiecieriniiritnsersiresisssanersnsesessnesensanias $ 22,386 $ 22,064 $ (322)
SaleSs AN USE taX...uueeeeiiccrrrereeererreeestrerassseersaeeeesesassnees 149,400 151,168 1,768
10 (3 T=T o = S PP TP 1,600 12 (1,588)
State local government fund.........cceveeeinreenvernceiecnnne, 39,800 39,800
Licenses and Permils .......ccceerrerennniereneceneeesenenecsennees 150 128 (22)
Charges for SEIVICES ....cccvrvverrrerrisiinit v esarenesseseence 50,513 47,564 (2,949)
Fines and forfeitures ......covvveiviivcireincncniirieeeisreseneseseneens 5,900 6,075 175
INVESIMENT BAMMINGS ..o.eevieerirecreerrrceii et 26,900 26,549 (351)
Other intergovernmental..........c.ccccoimviiinciniccnecnnccnnnne 6,668 8,010 1,342
MiISCEIANEOUS .....vvvmeeerereeieieicirreareseerreereeersmrresssesesaracenes 2,994 1,890 (1,104)
TOTAL REVENUES .....cieieeeeeeveeeeetrnnmesceeee e eeieaeas 306,311 303,260 (3,051)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Vital Statistics )

(O] (3= SOV R OO SURRU U 23 21 2
Total Vital StatiStiCS.....uveveenereriererecrneirccireerieeeeeseeeenes 23 21 2
Bureau of Inspection

(0] 12 1= SRRSO RSRSURUURRINE 344 275 69
Total Bureau of InSpection .......ccccvecvnniencneceennnncnne 344 275 69
Auditor

PEISONNEL ... . ieiceeriereiriereccereicees s rrcrerenenenecnananeenne 4,861 4,860 1

(0] (1= ST RSOOSR 3,969 3,690 279

CaPItal ..ceeeeec et 37 18 19
Total AUAIRON ... veeeeerieeererereeinenreeceeeeesrnreacsrrnrrreereaseeens 8,867 8,568 299
Board of Elections

POISONNEL ...cuveeeiirriririereccsccerees s esreraentrrererasssansenene 5,330 5,198 132

(012 7= TSR 4,571 4,133 438

Capital..ceeeeeeeeeeee e e 169 35 134
Total Board of EIeCtionS .......ucveeereerineeeciieecnreee e eeeee 10,070 9,366 704
Board of Revision

Personnel .....eceeeeiiiieereerecrcsecre e e 534 2 532

(@] 1 o7 SO S 120 120

Capital e e 4 4
Total Board of ReVISION ......eeeeirereeecriirincnivniiesieeesseenns 658 2 656

{Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

County Commissioners

Personnel.........veieeeee et 1,004 997 7

10147 USRS 297 286 11

107 o1 - | ROV URR USSRt 12 11 1
Total County COMMISSIONETS ....cevvvreeceerrenrrcnrenreeeenns 1,313 1,294 19
County Administrator

PErsONNEl.........e e cectrrreecreee e rree e eseeeeees 855 854 1

[0 12 1= O UURRURRTUR 744 526 218

(07T o1 - IO OU USSR OTSN 4 3 1
Total County AdmINistrator........cccveeeveceeeenenricinenennn. 1,603 1,383 220
Office Information Technology

Personnel........cocovoveeeeemeeeicrerree e 88 88 0

(037 SO OUUS 8 8 0

Capital ..ot 8 8
Total Office information Technology........c..cevveveuenene. 104 96 8
Office of Management Services

PErsONNel.......coovvieieiirieieeite et rere s eeeeens 98 93 5

101 3= O OO UUR 14 9 5

Capital..ccceeeieeeiverereceeecer e e 2 2
Total Office of Management Services .......ccveveeeenes 114 102 12
Human Resources

Personnel ... 899 894 5

0] 1= SO SR O PPN 4,351 2,586 1,765

107 o1 - | OO U PURPIN 5 2 3
Total Human Resources.......cccccvcvereeenrecnienieeenienennnns 5,255 3,482 1,773
Employment Relations

Personnel ...t 915 915

10 (11 SO USRS U 673 522 151

Capital....cceeeeeiicccrere e 7 6 1
Total Employment Relations ........cccocveieveeccincrrenenne 1,595 1,443 152
Benefits

Personnel ... s 340 338 2

OFNET ..ottt et e et s aesses st v e s rasesnas s e ananns 387 123 264

Capital..ccceeirreiieercee e e ee e 2 2
Total Benefits . 729 461 268
Office of Budget and Management

Personnel.... ..ottt e 903 855 48

Other ettt e 2,297 279 2,018

Capital...cccevriiiieerreeen et e 4 2 2
Total Office of Budget and Management.................... 3,204 1,136 2,068

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Clerk of the Board
Personnel.....cccoioeeeeeeceninnicens e ee e 270 268 2 -
L@ (o= O SO 67 58 9
{071 o7 - | F PP URURSTURR SRR 2 2
Total Clerk of the Board ......cccoevonvecnnnecinrecrrreeeen, 339 326 13
Procurement and Diversity
PEISONNEI ....oiecuieeeeeeeeeeceereetre st s ee e s e ensn s 746 744 2
L0 o 1= SO OSSPSR 311 152 159
1072 ol -1 [OOSR UURORP 4 2 2
Total Procurement and Diversity.......cccocecvecevnennineen, 1,061 898 163
Community Outreach and Communication
PeISONNEI......ooiee et ccare e e e reeee 131 111 20
(01177 SRS 46 31 15
Capital.eeeeeeee e st e e e e e s ie e 3 3
Total Community Outreach and Communication........ 180 145 35
Risk and Property Management
PErSONNE ... ..ot 419 367 52
(O] = SO U P RUTRURURRPSRURRTRRIINt 3,005 1,775 1,230
07T o] -1 OO PO SRS TURTPTIN 5 5
Total Risk and Property Management..........cccoccceeene 3,429 2,147 1,282
Archives
Personnel.......eoocciriierieeecierece e 134 133 1
(O 11 1= USROS RUPRRSRURNE 499 480 19
CaPHAN eeeiercee e cer v rnertst e sass e ran et rerrsaaeaens 16 4 12
Total ArChives ...cccuvieiiecvierreciiiincccere et enes 649 617 32
Residual Investment Operations
(0] 31 SO SOP USSR 5 5
Total Residual Investment Operations ........cccoccvieeenes 5 5
Recorder
PEISONNMEI ... .ot ea e 3,443 3,421 22
10 (1= OO OSSO 2,784 1,101 1,683
L0711 PSP U 1,473 1,398 75
Total RECOTAEN ....evivnrrierereeriteiserrcrereee e ae e 7,700 5,920 1,780
Treasurer
PEISONNEL.....ccctieeetereireeiecreecesrncree e saeeesae s ereeneraes 3,558 3,457 101
(13T USSR 2,160 1,966 194
107 o1 - | 1 OO SOOI 16 8 8
TOtal TrEASUIET....cievierieeereecriceeeersereereaenenieeseeerssnssenes 5,734 5,431 3C3
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Reserve/Contingencies
1012 = OO RRURTON 7,305 7,305
Total Reserve/Contingencies ........cceceveverreeereservennns 7,305 7,305
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ......oooooieeeeeeeeeeeenenns 60,281 43,118 17,163
JUDICIAL
Board and Care of Prisoners
L0 7 o1 SO 3,400 3,368 32
Total Board and Care of Prisoners.......ccoeuvevecneeennn... 3,400 3,368 32
Court of Appeals
PEISONNE .....oceeeieeeceee ettt 1,127 1,118 9
(6] {211 SRRSO RROYRRARRUSREIUIRt 817 557 60
107 o} ¢- 1 J SOV 184 181 3
Total Court of Appeals........cccccvevreniccnneiniecnrrcesereans 1,928 1,856 72
Clerk of Courts
Personnel ........ccocvmiveeeeeeeccereeeetee et 5,268 5,215 53
O] (7= TR RUUSNRURURRURt 4,125 3,670 455
LOF=1 o] - | OO 223 31 192
Total Clerk of COUMS ......ococverrierererietecce e ceneen 9,616 8,916 700
Court of Common Pleas - Law Library
Personnel ... 174 171 3
L0 ) 1o L= OO U R 29 20 9
Capital.....ccceveeecirrireerec e 2 2
Total Court of Common Pleas - Law Library .............. 205 191 14
Common Pleas Legal Research
(O 1= Uy SOOI 204 125 79
Total Common Pleas Legal Research.............cceuu..... 204 125 79
Common Pleas-Judicial Administration
Personnel......iiiiiicreeeeereceeerere e e e s e eeeens 5,361 5,327 34
O T ORI 13,161 13,161
Capital..ccccii et e 283 280 3
Total Common Pleas-Judicial Administration............. 18,805 18,768 37
Common Pleas-Referees
PEIrSONNEL ..ottt re e e 630 627 3
(O] (37T SOOI SURPU 281 154 127
Capital .oeeeeee et 8 8
Total Common Pleas-Referees.......cocevvvecereerecennenenn. 919 789 130
{Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Common Pleas-Court Services

ParSONNE. ... oo cererrcesrnnrea e e eeee e neres 5,121 5,017 104

(0] (5= USSP 558 488 70

Capital ...eeeeeee et e 27 27
Total Common Pieas-Court Services.........cccuveeveeennes 5,706 5,505 201
Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric

ParSONMEL ..ot csee s seesres e nar e s e e eeanas 6,008 5,877 131

(0] (1] O O 2,668 1,693 975

Capital 76 29 47
Total Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric............... 8,752 7,599 1,153
Coroner

PerSONNEL ...ttt ee e aeees 3,580 3,574 6

OANEE et eeresse s e st e e s e smseesesoeneenenee 1,832 1,724 108

Capital...cveei et e 12 11 1
TOtal COTONET c.oeeeeceeireeeeeree et eer e e s csoaneaaes 5,424 5,309 115
Domestic Relations Court

PerSONNEL ...uueeccreerrererierieieessrentresinsessnnsasesnsnnnssonss 2,513 2,447 66

101211 SOOI 1,382 1,207 175

Capital...ee ettt eaes 35 24 11
Total Domestic Relations Court.......cccevviveeverinerveennnn. 3,930 3,678 252
Domestic Relations-Bureau of Support

PEISONNEL...ceuvieeeeirrereieecieccnvneeeesinersesiersreraresensrens 2,344 2,328 16

OhE .. eeieeeceecerecceerre et reets et et ae s s e sabe e e s sees 662 630 32

CapIAl....eieceerer et e e s e neenes ] 3 6
Total Domestic Relations-Bureau of Support.............. 3,015 2,961 54
Justice Affairs Administration

PersOnNEl ...c.ceuueeeeeiirerimrieisiceesreecrirereerseeceeeneresnsasnes 583 560 23

(01 11= SO RORPRURR 294 272 22

1071 -1 OO OSSO 8 7 1
Total Justice Affairs Administration .........cocevvemrerrnenn. 885 839 46
Justice Affairs-Criminal Justice

PEISONNE] ... eeeirie e ccciree e rtis s er e aeerreareseens 284 280 4

(0] (7= GOSN 59 37 22

1071 o1 1 - H O OSSP UV USROS 2 2
Total Justice Affairs-Criminal JUStiCe.....ccvarivvnrennnens 345 319 26
Witness Victim Services

PEISOMNEL...ccciiiiireieeeiereeateessscesissntaseeesesessssnesssssses 493 486 7

L0 1371 SO OO USSRt 952 285 667

(07T o1 - RSO SUPUOUP 4 4

{Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabie)
Total Witness Victim Services........cocvvereeerreevveneiesanens 1,449 771 678
Criminal Justice intervention Services
Personnel ... reer e e 27 16 11
(0] (7= S PSS 75 64 11
Capital......evreereierieeceree e 2 1 1
Total Criminal Justice Intervention Services............... 104 81 23
Juvenile Court-Administration
POISONNEL ....ocveereiierereieiirrererecsiecesranasasiaesssisssanssnnenns 2,214 2,212 2
(0] { o 1= SO OSSR 7.216 7,064 152
(07-1 o] - | OO STOU PO RTRUPPOTR 11 11
Total Juvenile Court-Administration......cccceceveeereeirenens 9,441 9,287 154
Juvenile Court-Legal
PeISONNE! ...coiiieiieeiceecrcreer e s ccirecstnrerreere s s e s 5,647 5,640 7
(@] 15 11 U PRP ORI 2,401 2,355 46
Capial .o 26 26
Total Juvenile Court-Legal .........cocvevcrrnrienrcerriinnneenn. 8,074 8,021 53
Juvenile Court-Probation
PEISONNEL ...cccvieiiciereieeeeeeeceieeeeresererseenteeesesassansens 5,336 5,327 9
()12 1=] SO SO N 5,553 5,259 294
Capital..c e 23 19 4
Total Juvenile Court-Probation.......cccccccvecvervvecrenennenens 10,912 10,605 307
Juvenile Court-Child Support
PersSONNEl...cuueeecciieeeereeeeeere e cce e vnten e e s e nnen 1,897 1,894 3
1037 R O OROR SRRt 493 480 13
(071 o] v- 1 O SRS S R TTURS PR 4 4
Total Juvenile Court-Child Support .........ccoveeieecvnneee. 2,394 2,378 16
Juvenile Court-Detention Home
PerSONNEL .. .o ccriecr e cvvrsee e se v e s e eens 6,459 6,456 3
(@] (7= S U 4,291 4,188 103
107-1 o] 1 - | SO TOUPR 32 32
Total Juvenile Court-Detention Home ......ccccvvvnvreenes 10,782 10,676 106
Municipal Judicial Costs
PEISONNE! ... eeieeeerereeeecieeeerreeisssaeersesreeeener e s esnneeees 2,340 2,147 193
(@] (o 1= OOV SRS 368 368
Total Municipal Judicial Costs........coeviiverecvrrnnenenn. 2,708 2,515 193
Probate Court
PEISONNE ....cieeeiieereccrciiree e ereratesseese s s eesssesneses 4,320 4,156 164
(011 o= ST 1,410 1,390 20
CAPIAl .v.ceeveeece s iraeeses i sseseass st es s senaas 37 21 16
Total Probate CoUM ....uvumreerrrieeerercineeneeec e eneeens 5,767 5,567 200
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabie)
Public Defender
Personnel......coveeeveivieeeerreieieve e evn e eenes 3,931 3,897 34
(27T SO 982 915 67
1021 o] = IO S UURR PPN 12 12
Total Public Defender...........cccvvvecieeveviccieeceeeneeeeane 4,925 4,812 113
Prosecutor-General Office
Personnel ....cocccueeiiiieeicciiiie et teesses e eas 10,333 10,259 74
L0 o V< SN 2,406 1,880 526
Capital..ccceerreerirenricrieretre et rane s 38 28 10
Total Prosecutor-General OffiCe.....c.ovevverevvevevcriaeeeeeens 12,777 12,167 610
Prosecutor-Child Support
(2= 40 1 £ 1= U 1,989 1,988 1
(012 7= RO URRTRUURORE 136 84 52
1071 o] - | PO OS T USOPPPN 7 6 1
Total Prosecutor-Child SUpport ....c.ccoeveeccvviineenneneen. 2,132 2,078 54
Prosecutor-Children and Family Services
PeISONNEL c.cieeiriieiieeeeccer et e e e e e eaasens 1,486 1,482 4
(0] (= U TURRURRRNE 70 40 30
CAPIAI cevevveererecectririee st ses s ssssesn s s ssren 64 14 50
Total Prosecutor-Children and Family Services .......... 1,620 1,536 84
Sherift
PErSONNE .. ..ueeeecieeiienieerrcsrrrrrnre e ereneiesceseesasesennnn 43,096 42,799 297
1] {371 SO OO URSURT 13,902 11,036 2,866
L0711 - | SRS 280 169 111
Total SNErff.....ceeecreccereree et csree e e 57,278 54,004 3,274
Sheriff-Inmate Services
PEIrSONNEL .. .uuvveeeiceiiitieiree st eeeeenere s e s e e cesas e 3,179 3,130 49
[0 ] {37 U 2,750 2,147 603
07T - OO USRS 16 6 10
Total Sheriff-iInmate ServiCes .....cocvvvimererirerecireereeanee 5,945 5,283 662
TOTAL JUDICIAL..uveeeccrreeeeiiveseeeeeeeeseeeseecessnresssessens 199,442 190,004 9,438
DEVELOPMENT
Development-Administration
PerSONNEL......cveeeiieiiiecrrceretr e e e e eeeas 98 97 1
107: 1o} - | SO U OO OO SU U SUUU P 2 2
Total Development-Administration ..........c.cccceevvveeueenee 100 99 1
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorablie)
Department of Economic Development
PErSONNEl ...t 405 294 111
L0 {01 OO RS UTUOR 1,266 1,114 152
L0 Vo - | OO SUSU R 3 3
Total Department of Economic Development............. 1,674 1,411 263
NOACA
101 37T OO O R OU U OSSR 149 149
Total NOACA........eeeeeeeeecerreeerrees e e s 149 149
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT .....cooeecceeritrrtccreeen st 1,923 1,659 264
SOCIAL SERVICES
Cooperative Extension
(0] (T U U VSO RRR 363 363
Total Cooperative EXtension ........ccc.ceceveeccveenrennnenen. 363 363
Graves for Indigents
18 {51 U RO 7 4 3
Total Graves for Indigents......c.ocvvervennccnnennninenen. 7 4 3
Ombudsman Program
10 15T SO SO USRI 244 244
Total Ombudsman Program .......c.cecececceveevmrreenrernnnen. 244 244
Veterans Service Commission
PErSONNEL.......oiiecieceeiecrrreeeiereerre e sees 1,179 1,164 15
L0 o= SOOI 4,917 3,936 981
Capital...ccceeeceeeireeeeee et e 152 125 27
Total Veterans Service Commission ...........ccccveunee.. 6,248 _ 5,225 1,023
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES.....ccee et ceee e 6,862 5,836 1,026
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Agricuiture and Apiary Inspection
O 17" SRR UURRRRRRI 2 2
Total Agriculture and Apiary Inspection...................... 2 2
Treatment Service Division
PerSONNEl ........eeeeiieeieeeeceeeeteene et aae s 166 166
L0 o T=T S OO UV USRI 122 100 22
Capital...ccceee e 5 4 1
Total Treatment Service DivisSion ......cccoceeeevevvveneeen.. 293 270 23
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabie)
CECOMS Center
PEISONNEL.......coceieeeeeeveeceirr et rvesrsenrerasssaiae s asaeees 516 516
() (7= SO SURURRRIN: 147 8 139
107 T o} - | OO TSNP SRR SR PPRP 2 2
Total CECOMS Center......vucvvcceecrienrceeeneeevecenes 665 526 139
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ..oootierreecceecceceere e 960 796 164
MISCELLANEQUS
Agricultural Society
(0] {31 OO 3 3
Total Agricultural Society.........ccovvemrimerceeniciirennnnnn 3 3
Memorial Day Allowances
[ 12 1= LR PR 51 46 5
Total Memorial Day Alowances ........ccoccvvueesrervrenennns 51 46 5
Soldiers and Sailors Monument
PEISONNE] ..coiveeeeeieeiecreriiereeerireevessasasaresssasnnnnssnsen 67 66 1
()] 1 7= SRR 16 14 2
Total Soldiers and Sailors Monument.........c.cccceveeeennen 83 80 3
Cuyahoga County School District
10 { 7= SO OO RO USSRt 101 89 12
107 o1 - USROS UUSPPPIOUPPN 2 2
Total Cuyahoga County School District........c.cccoceeeee. 103 89 14
Self Insurance
L0 (1= SO TRTN 2,449 468 1,981
Total Self INSUFANCE ...ccccveeeieercrereceeeecvvee e eee e 2,449 468 1,981
Miscellaneous
PerSONNEl ...t e 1,833 1,833
OBNEL et re ettt ieestestnennessessessesassssasennessasssassnnassns 2,366 603 1,763
Total MisCelan ouUsS.....covvvevircieeireeriee s ccccreereerecen e 4,199 603 3,596
TOTAL MISCELLANEQUS .....cceceecetrtreevcvee e 6,888 1,289 5,599
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ...t 276,356 242,702 33,654
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES ... 29,955 60,558 30,603
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers iN........occovevcvncennsinenncencenenn 10,894 10,894
Operating transfers out:

Debt retirement..........ooveciieeeeieercecreeesrrerne e (9,997) (9,997)

0] (=1 SRR SSSPIRt (39,486) (32,165) 7,321
NET OTHER FINANCING USES........cococevvvmrirrecieenns (49,483) {31,268) 18,215
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
OTHER FINANCING USES ....ccoiimerreereeerneeneirecreseeeereen (19,528) 29,290 48,818
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ................. 118,756 118,756
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR........cccuvcmreccreannnnnas $ 99,228 $ 148,046 $ 48,818

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR
SPECIFIC GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES (OTHER THAN
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS) REQUIRING SEPARATE
ACCOUNTING BECAUSE OF LEGAL OR REGULATORY
PROVISIONS OR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION AND
EXPENDITURES FOR SPECIFIED PURPOSE.

Human Services To account for revenue from the Federal, State and
County governments and expenditures used to
provide entitement services, senior and adult
programs, children and family services and
employment services to eligible county residents.

Heaith and Human Services Levies To account for revenue from Health and Human
Service Levies. Levies and expenditures are
determined by policies of the Board of County
Commissioners.

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax To account for Motor Vehicle Gas Tax federal and
state revenues which are distributed to various
municipalities and townships for repair and building of
streets and bridges.

County Board of Mental Retardation To account for revenues primarily from the State and
the special mental retardation levy and expenditures
thereof which are used for the benefit of the mentally
retarded and developmentally disabled.

Health and Community Services To account for revenues from the Federal, State and
County governments and expenditures thereof as
prescribed under the various health and community
service functions including mental health and alcohol
and drug programs.

Job Training Partnership Act To account for revenue from the Federal government
and expenditures as prescribed under the Job
Training Partnership Act.

Community Development To account for revenue from the Federal government
and expenditures as prescribed under the Community
Development Block Grant Program and Housing and
Urban Development Programs (HUD).

Other To account for miscellaneous special revenue grants
received by the county. Health and Community
Services Grants have been combined with this special
revenue fund.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 1999
: '
(Amounts in 000's)
Budgeted Annually
Health and County Health Total
Human Motor Board of and Annualily
Human Services Vehicle Mental Community Budgeted
Services Levies Gas Tax Retardation Services Funds
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents ........ccoccveererecirvcnnnnnn, $ 1,660 $ 27,628 $ 21,170 43,550 $ 94,008
Accounts receivable............... 40 160 200
Due from other funds ............... 122,044 1,517 64,390 11,581 199,532
Due from other governments 65,826 3,002 3,913 11,337 84,078
TOTAL ASSETS 65,826 $ 123,704 $ 32,187 $ 89,473 66,628 $ 377,818
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable...........ccceveveenenniesinne. 11,471 $ 36 $ 1,905 $ 3712 15,971 3 33,095
Deferred revenue. 122,044 64,038 10,300 196,382
Due to other funds.......... 50,738 1,184 326 1,436 846 54,530
Due to other governments.. .
Accrued wages and benefits ... 3,617 552 2,412 1,347 7,928
TOTAL LIABILITIES....ccoecevereeneerenernans 65,826 123,264 2,783 71,598 28,464 291,935
FUND BALANCE
Unreserved:
Undesignated...........cocevceeireceeniiennicennenen 440 29,404 17,875 38,164 85,883
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND EQUITY ..cccccrrannnsacessesescsreens 65,826 $ 123,704 $ 32,187 $ 89,473 66,628 $ 377,818
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Muiti-Year Budgeted

Job Total
Training Multi-Year
Partnership Community Budgeted 1999 1998

Act Development Other Funds Totals Totals
$ $ 7,372 7,372 $ 101,380 92,048
200 190
1,675 2 1,677 201,209 220,426
1,022 5,122 6,144 90,222 23,333
$ 1,022 $ 6,797 7,374 15,193 $ 393,011 335,997
$ 152 $ 1,642 2,363 4,157 $ 37,252 26,726
2,968 2,968 198,350 199,982
815 3,606 37 4,458 58,988 12,890
1,530
55 49 129 233 8,161 7,034
1,022 5,297 5,497 11,818 303,751 248,162
1,500 1,877 3,377 89,260 87,835
$ 1,022 $ 6,797 7,374 15,193 $ 393,011 335,997
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Annually

Health and County Health Total
Human Motor Board of and Annually
Human Services Vehicle Mental Community Budgeted
Services Levies Gas Tax Retardation Services Funds

REVENUES
Property 18XeS ....ccvviricieceeenreerecireesrsesenerenie $ $ 119,579 $ 3 62,718 $ 11,119 $ 193,416
Other tax............. 55 29,235 26 29,316
Licenses and permits . 1,071 1,071
Charges for services .. 600 7 14,374 14,981
Fines and torfeitures .. 275 169 444
Investment earnings....... 1,518 114 673 2,305
Other intergovernmental....... 205,260 14,690 3,817 73,355 137,239 434,361
Rehabilitation loan repayment..
Miscellaneous ...........ccocceues 931 102 1,658 2,577 5,268
TOTAL REVENUES......cceeiriniicrineereniaeeniene 206,791 134,324 34,947 137,878 167,222 681,162
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General QOVEIMMENt .....cc.cvervirrererrersreresnes 15,236 15,236

Judicial................. 36,296 36,296

Development. 2,043 2,043

Social services .. 224,067 141,834 88,776 454 677

Health and safety. . 233 98,089 98,322

PUDIIC WOTKS ...ccvicoieeiiiiien i ccivveienncreeninccenennes 30,414 2,415 32,829
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ......c.ocviniinnrecrinninens 224,067 233 30,414 141,834 242,855 639,403
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES ....ccovvieeemrrieeicrassssnnsnens (17,276) 134,001 4,533 (3,956) (75,633) 41,759
OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES(USES)
Operating transfers iN.........coccvvvimrccrnorensninns 27,332 729 110 83,975 112,146
Operating transfers out:

Component UNt........c..coaearamacesresnasaassercenins (25,352} (25,352)

Other......veeennee. (10,056) {110,028) (2,175) (5,108) (127,365)
Capitalized leases
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) .. 17,276 (135,380} {1.448) 110 78,869 (40.571)
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES.......c.coeeeeee (1,289) 3,087 (3,846) 3,236 1,188
FUND BALANCE AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ccoorieriecirnincn 1,729 26,317 21,721 34,928 84,695
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN.........cc....
FUND BALANCE AT

END OF YEAR $ 9 s 440 $_29404 $ 17,875 $_ 38,164 $__ 85883
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Muiti-Year Budgeted

Job Total
Training Multi-Year
Partnership Community Budgeted 1999 1998
Act Development Other Funds Totals Totals
$ $ 193416 $ 169,530
29,316 28,323
1,071 1,167
14,981 15,002
444 458
2,305 2,205
2,855 16,694 25,700 45,249 479,610 379,820
1,765 1,765 1,765 2,218
10 442 452 5720 3,585
2,855 18,469 26,142 47,466 728,628 602,308
15,236 13,038
18,742 18,742 55,038 47,923
19,469 14 19,483 21,526 17,548
2,855 4,145 7,000 461,677 418,140
3,413 3,413 101,735 98,992
256 256 33,085 35,100
2,855 19,469 26,570 48,894 688297 630,742
{1,000) {428) (1,428) 40,331 (28,434)
1,912 1,912 114,058 146,747
{25,352) (15,370)
(247) (247) (127,612) {96,672)
987
1,665 1,665 (38,206) 35,692
(1,000) 1,237 237 1,425 7,258
2,500 640 3,140 87,835 80,220
357
$ 0 1,500 1,877 3,377 $ 89,260 $ 87,835

61



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL ANNUALLY BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Human Services

Revised
Budget

Actual

Variance-
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Propertty taxes $
Other tax
Licenses and permits
Charges for services 2,288
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Other intergovernmental 299,850
Miscellaneous 2,167
TOTAL REVENUES 304,305

EXPENDITURES

Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel
Other
Capital
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL
Personnel
Other
Capital
TOTAL JUDICIAL
DEVELOPMENT
Personnel
Other.
Capital
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT
SOCIAL SERVICES
Personnel 108,138
Other 203,223
(‘apital 2,462
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES 314,823
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Personnel
Other
Capital
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
PUBLIC WORKS
Personne!
Other.
Capital.
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 314,823

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (10,518)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 38,917
Operating transfers out:

Component unit

Other (10,056)
NET QTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) 28,861

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 18,343

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccccovuerirmumnererieensranne 5,135
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR

s___ 13208

600

150,967
931
152,488

104,772
127,350
894

- 233,016

233,016
(80,518)
47,529

10.056
37.473

(43,045)

5,135

s___(8180)

(1,688)

(148,883)
1,236
(151,807)

4,366
75,873
1.568
81,807

81,807
(70,000)

8,612
8612
(61,388)

$ (61,388)
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Health and Human Services Levies Motor Vehicle Gas Tax

Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Untfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
121,202 $ 119,579 $ (1,623) $ $ $
32 55 23 27,223 29,150 1,927
5 )
250 273 23
1,413 1,415 2
13,920 14,690 770 5,907 3,226 (2,681)
342 101 (241)
135,154 134,324 (830) 35,140 34,165 (975)
268 231 38
269 231 38
15,107 14,655 452
2,455 1476 979
27,964 13,117 14,847
45,526 29,248 16,278
269 231 38 45 526 29,248 16,278
134,885 134,093 (792) (10,386) 4,917 15,303
699 729 30
(25,500) (25,352) 248
(110.515) (108.844) 1,671 (2,175) (2,175)
{136.115) (134,196) 1,918 (1,476) (1.446) 30
(1,230) (103) 1,127 (11,862) 3471 15,333
1,763 1,763 24,157 24,157
533 $ 1,660 $ 1,127 $ 12,285 $ 275628 $ 15,333
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL ANNUALLY BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Property taxes

County Board of Mental Retardation

Variance-
Favorable
{Unfavorabie)

Revised

Budget Actual

Other tax

Licenses and permit:

Charges for service

Fines and forfeitures

Investment earnings

Other intergovernmental

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel

Other.

Capitat
P

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

JUDICIAL
Personnel

Other

Capital

TOTAL JUDICIAL

DEVELOPMENT
Personnel

Other.

Capital
P

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT

SOCIAL SERVICES
Personnel

Other.,

Capital
P

TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Personnel

Other

Capital
P

TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

PUBLIC WORKS
Personnel

Other

Capital
P

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out:
Component unit

Other

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE(DEFICIT) AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR

$ 63,837 $ 62,718 $ (1,119)
15 26 1

1,421 7 (1,414)

75 114 39
78,729 73,837 (4,892)
1,185 1,658 463
145,272 138,360 (6,912)

73,372 72,075 1,297
77,276 62,382 14,894
7,232 6,280 952
157,880 140,737 17,143

157,880 140,737 17,143

(12,608) (2,377) 10,231

110 110
110 110
(12,608)

(2,267) 10,341

23,437 23,437

$ 10,829 $ 21,170 $ 10,341
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Health and Community Services Totals

Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 10,600 3 11,119 $ 519 $ 195,639 $ 193,416 $ (2,223)
. 27,270 29,231 1,961
1,144 1,071 (73) 1,144 1,071 73
13,737 14,364 627 17,451 14,971 (2,480)
184 169 (18) 434 442 8
703 659 (44) 2,191 2,188 3
151,070 132,357 (18,713) 549,476 375,077 (174,309)
1,845 2,576 731 5,549 5,266 (283)
179,283 162,315 (16,968) 799,154 621,662 (177.,492)
10,038 9,948 90 10,038 9,948 S0
8,156 5,325 2,831 8,156 5,325 2,831
146 60 86 148 60 86
18,340 15,333 3,007 18,340 15,333 3,007
22,086 20,686 1,400 22,086 20,686 1,400
18,874 15,028 3,848 18,874 15,025 3,849
894 624 270 894 624 270
41,854 36,335 5,519 41,854 36,335 5519
1,637 1,628 Q9 1,637 1,628 9
1,180 374 806 1,180 374 806
4 2 —_—2 —_— —2 2
2,821 2,004 817 2,821 2,004 817
243 226 17 182,753 177,073 5,680
93,809 87,673 6,136 374,308 277,405 96,903
3 3 9,697 7,177 2,520
94,055 87,902 6,153 566,758 461,655 105,103
6,011 5,373 638 6,011 5373 638
106,189 80,218 16,971 106,458 89,449 17,009
301 252 49 301 282 49
112,501 94,843 17,658 112,770 95,074 17,696
305 294 k| 15,412 14,949 463
2,586 2,029 557 5,041 3,505 1,536
2 2 27,966 13,117 14,849
2,893 2,323 570 48,419 31,571 16,848
272,464 238,740 33,724 790,962 641,972 148,990
(93,181) (76.425) 16,756 8,192 (20,310) (28,502)
84,766 84,715 51) 124,382 133,083 8,701
(25,600) (25,352) 248
(5.106) (5.108) (127,852) (126,181) 1,671
79,660 79.608 (51) (29,070) {18.450) 10,620
(13,521) 3,184 16,705 {20,878) {38,760) {17,882)
40,366 40,366 84,588 84,588
$ 26,845 $ 43,550 $ 16,705 $ 63,710 $ 45,828 $ {17,882)
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO
ACCOUNT FOR FINANCIAL RESOURCES TO BE USED FOR
THE ACQUISITION OR CONSTRUCTION OF MAJOR
CAPITAL FACILITIES (OTHER THAN THOSE
FINANCED BY PROPRIETARY FUNDS).

Land, Building and Road Improvements To account for the acquisition of all county land and
buildings, major improvements and road improvement
projects.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
(Amounts in 000's)
December 31,
1999 1998

ASSETS

Due from other funds .....occoeeeeiceeireecreeeecceeeee e $ 21 $ 23 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 21 $ 23
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNS PAYADIS ..eeevveeeiiee e eecee v v s s eanee $ 2,110 $ 3,831
Due to Other fUNAS...covviveeeieieevecee e veerrrereeaes 42,123 15,006
Accrued wages and benefitS .......coccveeevcrieiiiiiicrenenenne 4 2
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... escire e 44,237 18,839
FUND BALANCE
Unreserved:

LY (T | U RUURURt (44,216) (18.816)
TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND EQUITY ..... $ 21 $ 23
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Investment earnings
Other intergovernmental

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Public works....c.ccvveveneees

Capital outlay

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

QOperating transfers in

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

DEFICIENCY OF
REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES. .................

DEFICIENCY OF
REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCE(DEFICIT) AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS OUT ..............

DEFICIT AT END OF YEAR

Years Ended December 31,

1999 1998
$ 273 $ 352
3,878 1,265
496 984
4,647 2.601

3,715

38,589 39.624
42,304 39624
(37.657) (37,023)

12,257

(25,400)

(18,816)

$ (44,216)

— 8320

(28,703)

10,251
364

$__ (18,816)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR OPERATIONS THAT ARE FINANCED AND OPERATED
IN A MANNER SIMILAR TO BUSINESS IN THE PRIVATE SECTOR.
THE EXPENSES (INCLUDING DEPRECIATION) OF PROVIDING
GOODS AND SERVICES PRIMARILY OR SOLELY
TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC ARE FINANCED OR RECOVERED
PRIMARILY THROUGH USER CHARGES.

Sanitary Engineer

County Airport

Huntington Park Garage

Cuyahoga County Information System

The Sanitary Engineer's primary operating function is
the maintenance of county sewer lines. The office
also enforces compliance of county sanitary
regulations.

The airport provides landing and storage facilities for
commercial flights, private business aircraft and
recreational aircraft for the general public.

The garage provides parking facilities to nearby
County Administration, Courthouse and Justice
Center buildings for the general public.

The system provides computerized information on
criminal records and ‘court cases to communities
within the county.

71



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999
: '
(Amounts in 000's)
Sanitary County Huntington
Engineer Airport Park Garage
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
€ash eqUIVAIBNES ....ccevii et eenes 3 5,503 $ 162 $ 453
Accounts Receivable... 828 235
Due from other funds ....... 1
Due from other governments... 320 181
Inventory of supplies................ 9
Deferred bond financing cost ........covveeeceviniivnnnnninanes 31
Fixed assets in service:
LaNd. ..o s 522 5,280
Land improvements. 15 9,645
Utility plant in service 42,099
Buildings, structures
and IMProVEMENES........c.oceeiiiinneiiernenisessenseseeeens 3,182 2,518 4,243
Furniture, fixtures and equipment. 2,081 218 104
VEhiCles .....ccoccvineevrenrenrrvncsneas 2,528 788 64
Less: Accumulated depreciation.. (28,464) (9,289) (2,577)
Construction in progress .... 6,404 8
Net Fixed Assets in Service ........ccovvivcvceniiiiiinencninnns 28,367 9,168 1,834
TOTAL ASSETS $ 35,050 $ 8,755 $ 2,287
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable.............cocevvminrininninni s
Due to other funds........
Due to other governments...
Accrued wages and benefits
Loans payable.........ccvceeirecmmminiii i
Debt:

Notes payable ..........ccocceeecimrriniieninsiisne e

Bonds payable ....
TOTAL LIABILITIES ......coootricecrririctnsinircsensssee e enees

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL AND
RETAINED EARNINGS

Contributed capital ..........ccooevevenieiineriniiineennens
Retained earnings:

Unreserved(DefiCit) ............ccvvimiiirisisnnieiennene
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND EQUITY

$ 588
251

88

528

7,121

1,100
1,820

—t

11,496

7,206

16,348

——
23,554

$ 35,050

68

127

10,163

(535)
9,628

—

s__orss

$ 112
11

51

174

1,512

601

2,113

$ 2,287
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Cuyahoga County 1999 1998
Information System Totals Totals

$ 1,459 $ 7,577 $ 10,633

43 1,106 1,947

12 13 19

236 737 778

9 3]

31 33

5,802 5,752

9,660 9,645

42,099 39,275

9,943 7,856

4,040 6,443 6,388

3,380 3,066

(4,034) (44,364) (42,881)

8,412 7,702

<] 39,375 36,803

$ 1,756

w N

14

1,737
1,737

cor————————

$ 1,756

$ 48,848

3 755
271

88

661

7,121

1,100

1,820
11,816

18,881

18,151
37,032

r————————

$ 48,848

$ 50,219

$ 498
316

38

640

7,465

1,365

1,910
12,232

19,038

18,949

37,987

$ 50,219
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary County Huntington

Engineer Airport Park Garage
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 10,196 $ 633 $ 2,436
Other revenue 22 22 4
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. ......ccoverrvcsnnrerersnrn 10,218 655 2,440
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 5,264 474 473
Contractual services 1,369 165 97
Commodities 656 103 21
Depreciation 961 448 145
Other expenses 1,395 152 861
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 9,645 1,342 1,597
QPERATING INCOME(LOSS) 573 (687) 843
NONOPERATING

REVENUES(EXPENSES)

Interest income 24
Interest expense (332)
Grants 151
Gain(loss) on disposal of fixed assets.......cvveriineeecncne 22
NET NONOPERATING

REVENUES(EXPENSES) 286 151
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE

OPERATING TRANFERS 287 (536) 843
Operating transfers iN..... .. 144
Operating transfers out:

Debt retirement . (884)
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS.....cccccoevverisrnrvnrivenranss 144 . (884)
NET INCOME (LOSS) 287 (392) (41)
DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

ACQUIRED BY CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL .............. 526 403 104
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,535 546 538
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

END OF YEAR $ 16,348 $ 535 $ 601
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Cuyahoga County 1999 1998
Information System Totals Totals
$ 1,743 $ 15,008 $ 13,597
2 50 51
1,745 15,058 13,648
156 6,367 6,365
1,098 2,729 2,355
9 789 907
4 1,558 1,556
2,163 4,571 2,016
3,430 16,014 13,199
(1,685) (956) 449
24 40
{332) {253)
151 307
22 (177
135 (83)
{1,685) (1,091) 366
144 793
(884) (882)
(740) (89)
(1,685) (1,831) 277
1,033 1,045
3,422 18,949 17,627
$ 1,737 $ 18,151 $ 18,949
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)
Sanitary County Huntington
Engineer Airport Park Garage
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers $ 10,923 $ 578 $ 2,437
Other operating cash receipts 22 22 4
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and SEIVICES .........ccvvrieniricrsresrininiens (3,535) (496) (871)
Cash payments to employees for servic (5,294 (480) (472)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES .... 2,116 (376) 998
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating transters in from other funds 144
Operating transfers out to other funds....... . (884)
Receipts from noncapital grants..........coieimicnnceninnes 130
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES .....oocteriimecerreriscsssiiceir s sessesssssnenion 274 (884)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from 0ans .......iiiiniinnnnnen.
Proceeds from notes.................. 2,465
Proceeds from sale of capital assets............ 22
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .. (2,579) (8)
Principal paid on notes..........oovevivciiirinenns (2,730)
Interest paid on notes... (3)
Principal paid on loans {282)
Interest paid on loans... (205)
Principal paid on bonds . (90)
interest paid ON DONUS.....c.oi i {121)
NET CASH USED FOR BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.....ccooviimivirnienceiisecraeniesisssnennne (3,523) 8)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on INVESIMENLS..........ovviiienriieceesie 26
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES..........ocevruerniencnne 26
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . (1,381) (110) 114
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR............. 6,884 272 339

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR .....onvmseenssssmssiens

$ 5,503

s 18 S____ 453
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Cuyahoga County 1999 1998
Information System Totals Totals
$ 1,765 $ 15,703 $ 13,425
2 50 43
(3,291) (8,293) (5,664)
(155) (6.401) (6,235)
(1,679) 1,059 1,569
144 793
(884) (882)
130 379
(610) 290
546
2,465 1,365
22
(2,587) (2,438)
(2,730)
(3)
(282) (201)
(205) (125)
(90) (85)
(121) (126)
(3,531) (1,084)
26 37
26 37
(1,679) (3,056) 832
3,138 10,633 9,801
$ 1,459 $ 7,577 $ 10,633

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
s '
(Amounts in 000's)
Sanitary County Huntington
Engineer Airport Park Garage
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating iNComME (10SS) .....ccecrveriisieiieneneriiiiesin e esessens $ 573 $ (687) 843
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPrECIAtON. .....veeieiireecrieteer e reteterr e s cesrerese e s b e s s e sene e nsenne 961 448 145
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-net ... 212 (55)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds................ (@))]
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments ...
(Increase) decrease in inventory of supplies ................ 3)
increase (decrease) in accounts payable........ 344 (74) 8
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds............. (41) “)
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments..... 50
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits......... 18 5 6
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ............. bt neaes 1,543 311 156
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 2,116 $ 376 998

78



Cuyahoga County 1999 1998

Information System Totals Totals
$ (1,685) $ (956) $ 449
4 1,558 1,556
(16) 141 (490)
4 3 4)
33 33 (112)
(3) 4
21) 257 97
(45) 26
50 (1)
2 21 94
6 2,015 1,120
$ (1,679) $ 1,059 $ 1,569

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO
ACCOUNT FOR THE FINANCING OF GOODS OR SERVICES
PROVIDED BY ONE DEPARTMENT OF THE COUNTY TO
OTHER DEPARTMENTS OF THE COUNTY ON A
COST-REIMBURSEMENT BASIS.

Central Custodial Services

Maintenance Garage

Data Processing Center

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies

Communications

Self-Funded Workers Compensation

The Central Custodial Services division is responsibie
for all maintenance, cleaning and upkeep of county
buildings and offices. It also bills all rents to county
offices and agencies.

The Maintenance Garage is responsible for the
upkeep of all county owned vehicles and equipment.

The Data Processing Center provides centralized
data processing for the entire county.

The Printing, Reproduction and Supplies division
provides the county with all printing and reproduction
services and central purchasing of supplies.

The Communications division provides all telephone
service in addition to mail and delivery services for the
county.

The Self-Funded Workers Compensation fund
provides self-insurance to the County through a
retrospective rating plan with the State of Chio for
workers compensation.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and

cash equIvValents .......cceeceeceeveecsreecenircec e $ 2,866 $ 3 2,921
Accounts receivable........cccvceiiieecescnnnrnreeen, 9
Due from other funds .......cccocooeeivcreenincicecceeenes 203 99 79
Due from other governments.........cccvevcveeerverecnne
Inventory of SUPPHES .....covevevecr et 17
Fixed assets in service:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment........ccccoeeecaes 328 38 24,721

VEhiCIES. ettt 233 3,755

Less: Accumulated depreciation .......cceeceveecnnneen (415) (2,007) (17,843)
Net Fixed Assets in SEIVice .....c.cceeveverveiccveeennes 146 1,786 6,878
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,215 $ 1,902 $ 9,887
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIC.....ceeviceecteerevcee e eereniereseseenenes $ 1,306 $ 17 $ 2,841
Due to other funds......c..cvvciiecciie e, 820 1,001 65
Due to other governments..........ccccccenvereecineeennn.
Accrued wages and benefits ........cccceevrnienneennn. 2,743 20 1,354
Capital lease obligations .......ccceeecvvvirivcniinneeencnees 844
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...t e 4,869 1,038 5,104
RETAINED EARNINGS

Unreserved(DefiCit) ......coccvervrrmrvenrnneccennacreneenen, (1,654) 864 4,783
TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND EQUITY $ 3,215 $ 1,902 $ 9,887
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Printing, Self-Funded
Reproduction Workers 1999 1998
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals Totals
$ 3,248 $ $ 33,659 $ 42,694 $ 33,499
9 40
458 109 8,196 9,144 9,489
40 40 27
30 47 a7
2,791 91 9 27,978 26,254 -
3,988 3,885
(1,779 (62) (3) (22,109) __(19,868)
1.012 29 6 9.857 10,271
$ 4.748 $ 138 $ 41,901 $__ 61791 $__ 53373
$ 403 $ 18 $ 15 $ 4,598 $ 2,915
10 263 1 2,160 2,372
33,252 33,252 31,805
47 145 11 4,320 3,529
126 970 1,503
586 424 33,279 45,300 42,124
4,162 286 8,622 16,491 11,249
$ 4,748 $ 138 $ 41,901 $ 61,791 $ 53,373




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for ServiCes ........coerercerevurnenanens $ 37,084 $ 1,192 $ 30,362
Other revVenUE ....coocvureeeeereceeeereceereiee s 179 12 3
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES................ 37,263 1,204 30,365
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services......ooovvveecvrrvimecvcrvcenencnenn. 25,976 226 8,694
Contractual ServiCeS......ccuveererevrnerrrccireevenens 1,234 9,009
CommOItIES ....ceveeriireereecreeecrr v 8,607 227 384
Depreciation .......cooccuvevceeeenrececvvecrerreree e 44 505 1,942
Other EXPENSES. ....cceeceererrrrrrnereeteceeesenrenees 3,035 397 8,194
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ................ 38,896 1,355 28,223
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS).....ccoeerrvrannnne (1,633) (151) 2,142
NONOPERATING

REVENUES(EXPENSES)
INterest eXPenSe. ... rcririnniiectrserierennnaes (62)
Gain{loss) on disposal of fixed assets........... 58
TOTAL NONOPERATING

REVENUES(EXPENSES) .....cccceveeeereernens 58 (62)
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE

OPERATING TRANSFERS........ccoccecvrrrnnen. (1,633) (93) 2,080
Operating transfers iN.......ccccvveeeeeverevveercinneenes 214
NET INCOME(LOSS)....cccovererrenreerresressnenes (1,419) (93) 2,080
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ccoeveeeeecvereeenene 235 957 2,703
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

END OF YEAR $_ (1,654) $ 864 $__ 4,783
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Printing, Self-Funded

Reproduction Workers 1999 1998
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals Totals

$ 4,111 $ 3,783 $ 7,099 $ 83,631 3 73,164

24 13 4216 4,447 2,960

4,135 3,796 11,315 88,078 76,124

414 982 91 36,383 33,243

1,033 16 7,048 18,340 11,599

1,760 3 10,981 9,998

329 6 1 2,827 2,614

224 2,631 22 14,503 10,824

3.760 3.638 7.162 83,034 68,278

375 158 4,153 5,044 7,846

(12) (74) 97)

58 (57)

—(12) . (6) 154

363 158 4,153 5,028 7,692

214 214

363 158 4,153 5,242 7,906

3,799 444 4,469 11,249 3,343

$ 4,162 $ 286 $ 8,622 $ 16,491 $ 11,249




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

: '
(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodiat Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers $ 179 12 $ 3
Cash receipts from quasi-external
operating transactions 36,946 1,094 30,314
Cash payments to suppliers for
" goods and services (12,405) (811) (16,463)
Cash payments to employees for Semvices......cvevcrnninicernecen. (25,680) (222) (8,321)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (960) 273 5,533
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating transfers in from other funds... 214
Negative cash balance implicitly financed...........coecresinereerisrenans 343
Negative cash balance implicitly repaid 405
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 214 343 (405)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets .........c.cooveceevvenecieeinnns 119
Acquisition and construction of capital 1 (486) (735) (1,678)
Principal paid on capital | (487)
Interest paid on capital | (62)
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (46) (616) (2,207)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (792) 2,921
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ....cccoccivirirnicnininincnenenetrsssssenens 3,658
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR............. $ 2,866 0 $ 2,921
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Printing,

Self-Funded

Reproduction Workers 1999 1998
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals Totals
$ 24 $ 13 $ 4216 $ 4,447 $ 2,960
3,855 3,720 8,063 83,992 72,923
(2,888) (2,666) (5,614) © (40,647) (30,942)
(406) (935) (92) (35,656) (32,801)
585 132 6,573 12,136 12,140
214 214
343 467
132 (537) (1.457)
(132) 20 (776)
119
(15) (2,474) (2,054)
(65) (532) (613)
(12) (74) (98)
(92) (2,961) (2,765)
493 8,573 9,195 8,509
2,755 27.086 33,499 24,900
$ 3,248 $ 0 $ 33,659 $ 42,694 $ 33,499
{Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

s '
(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING

INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating INCOMe (IOSS) ......c.crevereeercnmmiercererermrersrnnseessesseeenss 3 (1,633) $ (151) $ 2,142
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING

INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

DEPrECIAtION.......vevieviieiecreecirteierere s ese s esseen s saeenes 44 505 1,942

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-net. 31

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds.......... (139) 97) (78}

(increase) decrease in due from other governments...

(Increase) decrease in inventory of supplies .......... 1)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable....... 404 12 1,118

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds........... (36) (3) 27

Increase (decrease) in due to other governments ..

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits.... 400 8 351
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ....occrceniircccrcreniecesnresnessiaeressessenns — 673 424 3391
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES......ooveereeerecemrercncirmnimseessiasercsrensres $ 960 3 273 $ 5,533
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING,

CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Fixed assets acquired through
IoNG-term fINANCING.........ccoeviriereceeieeerrre et $ 3 $
TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS $ [1] $ 0 $ 0
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Printing,

Self-Funded

Reproduction Workers 1999 1998
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals Totals

$ 375 $ 158 $ 4,153 $ 5,044 $ 7,846
329 6 1 2,827 2,614

31 )

(255) (63) 077 345 (218)

(13) (13) (12)

1 13

127 14 8 1,683 274

(8) 1 (19) (73)

1,447 1,447 1,204

8 25 1 791 411

210 (26) 2420 7,092 4,294

$ 585 $ 132 $ 6,573 $ 12,136 $ 12,140
$_ $__ $ $____ $____ 1265
$ 0 $ i $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,265

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AGENCY FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR ASSETS RECEIVED AND HELD BY THE
COUNTY ACTING IN THE CAPACITY OF AN AGENT

OR CUSTODIAN.

Payroll Agency Fund To account for payroll taxes and other related payroll
deductions collected for other governmental units or
funds.

Undivided Tax Agency Fund To account for all undivided taxes collected by the
county and their distribution to the proper
beneficiaries.

Other Agency Fund To account for all other monies held by the county as
custodian.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
PAYROLL
Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents ......ccceeeeeveeeeeeccverereenas 10,886 486,058 §$ 485,882 $ 11,062
Due from other funds ......ccoeecrerienieenrennnnes 606 844 733 717
TOTAL ASSETS....... 11,492 486.902 S 486.615 $ 11.779
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds......coceceeeveeieeerciene, 70 $ 70
Due to other governments.........ccceeevenicane 11,467 83,162 82,897 11,732
Other liabilities.......uueeeerieeeeeeeeee e, 25 403,670 403,648 47
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11.492 486.902 $ 486,615 $ 11.779
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
UNDIVIDED TAX
Balance at -
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents .......ceeveeeeveereeeeennennen $ 158,166 $ 1997558 $§ 2,019,893 $ 135,831
Taxes receivable.........coceeevevvvevveerecnens 1,242,026 1,293,716 1,296,042 1,239,700
TOTAL ASSETS $_1.400,192 $_3291274 $_3,315.935 $_1.375.531
LIABILITIES .
Due to other funds.......ceeeeeereriieieriricennns $ 234,616 $ 260,648 $ 260,072 $ 235,192
Due to other governments..........ccc...o...... 1,162,512 3,012,291 3,035,526 1,139,277
Other liabilitieS....ceuvveveeeieeeieeeeeecrreneennee 3,064 18,335 20,337 1,062
TOTAL LIABILITIES $_1.400,192 $_3291.274 $_3315935 $_1.375531
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
OTHER
Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents .........ccccevvcevenennnen. $ 18,500 $ 73,393 $ 69,598 $ 22,295
Cash and cash equivalents-
segregated accountS....eeeeeeerrcenenens 29,629 746,585 737,178 39,036
Accrued interest .......c.cooeveveeeeeereveennenn. 4,140 4.605 4,140 4,605
TOTAL ASSETS .- $ 52269 $__824583 $ 810,916 $ 65,936
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds......cccevvvveeecnvneenne $ 6,717 $ 110,550 $ 108,752 $ 8,515
Due to other governments................. 4,082 188,169 179,296 12,955
Other liabilities.....ccooueevieeeveeeeereieenen. 41,470 525,864 522,868 44 466
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....cccoommmerecrans $ 52269 $__824.583 $ 810.916 $___ 65936

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and

cash equivalents .....ccccceceeevinvenenannes

Cash and cash equivalents-

segregated accounts.......ccceeeeereeenen
Taxes receivable........oovvveevneeeenenne
Accrued interest ...uuuveeieciiiccencicennnens
Due from other funds ......c.ceeeeenenn.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to other funds.......cccoveeveeicecnenn.
Due to other governments................
Other liabilitieS.....cccccoveevverercmmreericnnns

TOTAL LIABILITIES

(Amounts in 000's)
TOTALS
Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year

$ 187,552 $ 255

7,009 $ 2575373 3 169,188

29,629 746,585 737,178 39,036
1,242,026 1,293,716 1,296,042 1,239,700
4,140 4,605 4,140 4,605

606 844 733 717
$_1.463.953 $_4602759 $__4.613.466 $__1.453.246

$ 241,333 $ 371268 $ 368,894 $ 243,707
1,178,061 3,283,622 3,297,718 1,163,964
44,559 947.869 946,853 45,575

$_ 1.463.953 $_4.602759 $__4.613466 $_1.453,246

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
ACCOUNT GROUP

THIS ACCOUNT GROUP IS USED TO PRESENT
THE GENERAL FIXED ASSETS OF THE COUNTY
UTILIZED IN ITS GENERAL OPERATIONS,
EXCLUSIVE OF THOSE USED IN THE ENTERPRISE
AND INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS. GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS INCLUDE LAND, LAND IMPROVEMENTS,
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS, FURNITURE,

FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES OWNED BY THE COUNTY.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

0= 3T T T SRR $ 29,829

Land iMPrOVEMENES ..c.coccriricicieiree e vcerresessesrnreraeeessnraneeessansens 1,534

Buildings, structures and improvements .........cccccevecvieececieccecieee e 384,193

Furniture, fixtures and equUIPMENt .......ccovmiiriciireer s 17,206

VEHICIES ..t et s e 12,202

COoNSruCton iN PrOGIESS.......cvveeeeeeeeieieeeiccte et anes 81,461
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS. $ 526.425
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS FROM

General fuNA FEVEBNUES .......cooe it creseeeree e sssiaeesessssreeesenns $ 107,340

Special revenue fUNd FEVENUES ...........coccverieirvecrer et aer e saeeans 82,241

Capital projects:

General obligation BONAS........cccvvieiiiveecrieceecreresee e s seeesee e e 281,094
Federal and State grantS...........eeveeeeececeriieeeeesmee e eceeeeeeeeceanee e 55,735

DONALIONS. .. ceeeeecceiercere et cere e e s e s cssst e e s e s retaeeesesesasastsesseansnrneseosnes 15
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS $ 526,425
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

DECEMBER 31, 1999
J 1
(Amounts in 000's)
Buildings, Furniture,
Land Structures and  Fixtures and
Function and Activity Land Improvements _Improvements Equipment Vehicles Totais
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

ADMINISFAtioN ........cvevinreieevrenrerrencinnresneneens $ 2858 $ 249 § 75,347 $ 482 % $ 78,936

Fiscal management... 458 939 1,398

Records and elections.. 450 108 4,265 2,232 7,055

Supportive services..........oceeunee, . 424 2,867 16 3,307
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ............... 3,732 357 82,938 3,669 90,696
JUDICIAL:

AiUdiCation ........cccoivneiiineniccen 10,688 156 100,743 1,350 112,937

Legal services ......cceverenee. 280 2,051 2,331

Aduit offender management.... 1,333 71,033 1,020 13 73,399

Juvenile offender management.. . 1,571 514 13,677 179 15,841

Support enforcement.........cccoeeeneenrercrncrencrnnn 10 231 241
TOTAL JUDICIAL.......eveevieeeeeencne e 13,592 670 185,743 4,831 13 204,849
DEVELOPMENT:

ECONOMIC ..o ettt 5 2 7

Community.........coovvunen 443 14 457
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT 443 5 16 464
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financiaf assistance........cocceevevvvceiiicicccvnccninn, 1,521 9 41,858 688 44,076

Protective services.... 106 39 2,449 134 2,728

Support services ....... w 9,404 459 70,046 3,949 5,715 89,573

Employment and training..........c.cooceneniieiiins 337 17 42 54 450
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES ......ccoovvveivricrenns 11,368 507 114,370 4,813 5,769 136,827
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental heaith ........c.cccoovrernieniecninniinennn 94 379 535 1008

Emergency assistance. 1,211 277 1,488

Alcohol and drug abuse 121 121

Animal control .............. " 356 [ 131 493
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ...cccccenricniinnn 450 379 1,873 408 3,110
PUBLIC WORKS:

Public works 244 758 2,004 6,012 9,018
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 244 758 2,004 6,012 9,018
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS........c.ocovneee 81,461 81,461
TOTAL GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS $ 29829 $ 1534 $ 465,654 $ 17,206 $_ 12202 §_ 526425
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
Balance at
Beginning Balance at

Function and Activity of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

ADMINISratioN ....coiieeereeeeeeeeeeser e $ 78,667 $ 269 $ $ 78,936

Fiscal management ..........ccccicervvecviennnnnnn. 1,398 62 62 1,398

Records and elections ......ccoevccveveecscrreinens 6,642 426 13 7,055

SUPPOTtiVE SEIVICES ......ccvevrvvereereeeeeeenananns 2,578 729 3.307
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ............ 89.285 1.486 75 90.696
JUDICIAL:

Yo 1110 (107 1 ({o] o HU R UOU SOV 110,581 2,359 3 112,937

Legal SEIVICES...ccummiieeiereeeeiieccnreeeeecesenenanees 1,383 948 2,331

Adult offender management..........ccoeeveeenneen 73,387 12 73,399

Juvenile offender management................... 15,653 288 15,941

Support enforcement .........ccoeeevececvenrinnnne. 213 28 241
TOTAL SUDICIAL ..., 201.217 3.635 3 204,849
DEVELOPMENT:

ECONOMIC...civeeireeieeeeeec et eeenaeans 7 7

COMMUNILY cooeriareieeeceerereeeerceseeeessrnneenes 457 457
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT ..o, 464 464
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financial assistance .....ccccccoreevciecevcceneecnnes 43,973 103 44,076

Protective ServiCes......ccccevvvcemrerecrcvcrvenecnnnns 2,637 91 2,728

SUDPPOTt SEIVICES ..cvveviierecrereeaneeeeereeessaneaas 88,782 2,748 1,957 89,573

Empioyment and training........ccceeeeevcnnennnees 54 396 450
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES.......cceceevveenann 135.446 3.338 1.957 136,827
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental health ..., 956 52 1.008

Emergency assistance.......cccoeecveeverecrvennns 1,488 1,488

Alcohol and drug abuse.......ccccvreceverccennns 240 119 121

ANIMal CONTIOl.....uuuieiieiieeeniirenreecireesseaenneee 137 356 493
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY....cccccveremnnn. 2.821 408 119 3.110
PUBLIC WORKS:

PUDHC WOTKS .eeeveeeiicineeieereecies e eerrene 8.788 431 201 9.018
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS......cocveeeeerreee, 8.788 431 201 9.018
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS............... 58,113 27.711 4,363 81,461
TOTAL GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS........ $ 496,134 $ 37,008 $ 6718 $ 526,425
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Section




Statistical Section

The information presented in the schedules and tables in this
section is provided to reflect social and economic data, financial trends
and the general fiscal capacity of the County.







COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATISTICAL SECTION
STATISTICAL DATA TABLES

THE STATISTICAL SECTION PROVIDES SELECTED
FINANCIAL, ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
WHICH MAY BE USED TO INDICATE TRENDS
FOR COMPARATIVE FISCAL PERIODS.

THE STATISTICAL TABLES INCLUDE INFORMATION
ON GENERAL FUND RATIOS AND TRENDS,
ASSESSMENTS AND TAXES, LONG-TERM DEBT
AND MISCELLANEOUS DATA.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF STATISTICS-GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

OPERATING RATIOS-GENERAL FUND-GAAP BASIS
FOR 1999

REVENUE DOLLAR BY SOURCE

g h i a
||

C
Where the money came from: %
a. Property taxes.......cocvcreeeeeenviceniennnenes 7.4
b. Sales, use and othertax.........ccocceeune 51.1
c. State local government fund............. 13.5
d. Licenses and permits ........ccccccceevernnne 1
e. Charges for services ......ccccevvivrvecrnnn 16.0
i. Fines and forfeitures .......c.cocveeeeennen. 2.0
g. Investment earnings........c.ccceeenieeanne 6.1
h. Other intergovernmental ..........c..... 3.1
i Miscellaneous ......ccccccvcverecirinercennn. 7
Total 100.0
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EXPENDITURE DOLLAR BY FUNCTION

€ f

o~ \ |

Where the money was spent:

%

=0 oo00®

General government

Judicial.....ococevviiiieiiceeee e
Development ..........ccceeveeiiivvieieeennes
Social services.. .
Health and safety.......c.ccccoevieceneen.
Miscellaneous......c..coeeceemeevineens reeree
Total

17.9
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GENERAL FUND CASH RECEIPTS BY SOURCE AND

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

CASH DISBURSEMENTS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

RECEIPTS: 1990 1991 1992
Property taxes ........c.cceveueeeeereseciressersrecsssssenrassssanseresesnesenens $ 14,375 $ 13,395 $ 16,486
Sales and USE taX...c.ccveeeiiercereererieseenierientcereeriaeesresesenesseeses 99,012 96,782 101,750
OFNEI X wtereeiirereererereere e et se b ee e seasessvessnessannes 7 9 10
State local government fund.......c.cecccvrenreririrrersesseceeesenns 25,487 26,325 25,229
Licenses and permits ......ccoceeeecerminiininiricsee s sereeseenen 165 145 184
Charges for SEIVICES ......ccecerrerirecer ittt ee e eeeas 33,137 31,944 36,978
Fines and forfeifures .........ccceeerecrierccrrn e ceereeee e s 3,614 3,703 3,219
Investment arniNgS......ccevcvirverrreerricrinernrisieeesessseesssanennes 14,384 26,050 24,508
Other intergovernmental........cc.coeeeciiiiiereesernreerresereenneenns 7,008 6,906 6,078
MISCEIIENEOUS ......oeeceieeeieercereeiir ettt e reraesesee e saens 3,239 2,358 3,563
Proceeds from 10an ......c..coovveveerinenneiniecetne st
Proceeds from NOtES ......cccveievrriinniiinnicr e sne e
Operating transfers iNu....cccverernnecrrceenree e 100 1,244 14,700
Residual equity transfers iN......c.eoceccncnincnecrereeenes 6 16
TOTAL RECEIPTS wooeereremreneresssesessasessssssassaenns $ 200534 $ 208,877 $ 232705
DISBURSEMENTS:
General GOVEIMMENL.....c.ccvviecerieriin e e ee s e asnaens $ 33,571 $ 34,200 $ 35865
JUAICIAL ..ottt r e e st e 120,101 133,196 142,162
DeVelopmMENt ...t 1,746 920 1,018
SOCIal SEBIVICES ...cuvivteeeiererereentire st reetrsseeeseesssanesasee s 2,699 2,769 1,728
Health and safety .......cccvceecmeeencnnii vt 3,648 5,352 5,378
MISCElaNBOUS ......ooccvirirreiirrcecrmeer e ser e ssnneens 2,193 3,143 2,239
Debt retirement.......ccoveiiiiienrer e
Operating transfers oUt.........cccecveerrcecriennieneiersreeces e ceeeenes 32,485 26,666 51,792
Residual equity transfers Oul....c...cccocrcevieivninnineneneerseenae
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $ 196441 $ 206,246 $ 240,182

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Financial Reporting Section. Budgetary basis.
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1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
$ 18,121 $ 18,826 $ 19,065 $ 16,952 $ 16,531 $ 24004 $ 22,064
104,589 117,698 126,790 130,830 137,113 144,339 151,168
7 19 14 15 13 16 12
27,190 29,593 31,794 33,432 35,559 37,530 39,800
158 155 146 130 129 130 128
39,553 41,745 36,075 42,529 44,684 46,919 47,564
4,006 4,400 5,166 4,731 5,840 5,896 6,075
23,368 28,833 39,584 22,682 23,106 28,157 26,549
10,812 12,200 7,370 7,073 7,581 9,421 8,010
4,800 3,078 1,333 6,864 13,179 2,357 1,890
5,000

39,690 82,117

1,980 16,553 2,707 20 195 579 10,894
7
$ 274274 $ 355,217 $ 270,044 $ 270,258 $ 283,880  $ 299445  § 314154
$ 34,124 $ 36,797 $ 38,604 $ 34,224 $ 40,621 $ 40732 $ 43,118
139,209 143,343 133,474 140,267 159,080 177,836 190,004
1,099 1,120 1,038 941 1,019 4,245 1,659
3,996 3,756 3,793 4,325 3,990 4,080 5,836
5,342 1,085 827 945 880 1,033 796
2,608 44,231 2,922 23,180 5,874 2,656 1,289
83,105 136,375 56,615 25,449 34,405 78,678 42,162
298

$ 269483 $ 366,657 $ 237,273 $ 229331 $ 246,167  $ 300260  $_284.864
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY
SOURCE AND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
1990 1991 1992

REVENUES
PrOPEMY tAXES .....occereresereressrerearessesessescstresrssastsssassessansssnnens $ 158,806 $ 179,068 $ 184,459
Sales aNd USE 18X ..ueeveerecreereiiesrertesereesieesrseesaesnessressnes 98,283 97,549 101,882
OhEI 1AX ..veeerieererrereenieerrerreseesseeceescereestenseassaesesensassaesessanes 24,239 24,719 24,638
State local government fund.........covveeeincrnniccricnenieninen, 25,6083 26,410 25,228
Licenses and Permits .......ccocecvrniiiiicceieniinennenenesnneesessnnees 943 868 913
Charges for SEIVICES .....ccovvecimrritiiticrtceie et enene 36,964 36,620 42,572
Fines and forfeitures .......ccccccvvveivcennniccccnnnenccne e, 3,871 3,828 3,415
Investment arningS.....c.coeeeecevvecnnninnrininerst e eceen s 27,047 35,002 28,405
Other intergovernmental..........c.coiiiiiinciveniincninnnn, 309,737 354,591 264,522
Rehabilitation loan repayment........ccvvceiereveiivceennnccinneninenns 72 694 612
MiSCEIANBOUS ...vvveeeerieerce et es e e e ese s e e e esnreesnes 11,640 8,142 9,365
TOTAL REVENUES v $ 697,205 $_767,491 $ 686,011
EXPENDITURES
General QOVEIMMENE.......cceeerecerrernrenetrrnere st sceresen e $ 40,883 $ 43,640 $ 46,060
¥ (o | o3 - | TP PR 141,788 161,358 170,704
DeVelopMENT ...t 7,166 9,140 7,633
SOCIAl SEIVICES ...ceervreeeeirireinereiensisr it aer e ereeeasesseesesnnasanesens 357,087 396,366 312,792
Health and safety ... 45,542 57,066 63,213
PUDIIC WOTKS ...veeeieeieeceeeecrmrraesaeseesecrsaesseesanrssneseeeneesarenseensees 31,775 32,338 32,539
MiSCEIANBOUS .....ooeieereeeeeerte ettt te e s enenaas 1,950 3,056 2,285
CaAPItAl OULIAY ......evererererereerererseseessessssserssssnssessssemassarsssssessns 36,732 31,835 49,667
Debt service:

Principal retirement ... 6,935 33,965 7,645

Interest....ccccceeeeet reeeeeerereeesnrataeeressataeiaa e reneranarneatasranarirsrsans 8.187 7.899 12.611
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 678,045 $ 776,663 $ 705149

Note: Includes all governmental fund types on a GAAP basis.
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1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
$ 183,670 $ 185,102 $ 190,172 $ 199,469 $ 201,941 $ 206,595 $ 231,433
108,060 117,931 127,585 131,551 138,519 146,123 151,304
25,313 26,238 26,562 26,950 27,452 28,346 29,334
27,479 29,739 31,804 33,723 35,791 37,607 39,841
985 1,107 1,454 1,352 1,318 1,297 1,199
47,283 49,826 48,861 55,595 59,056 62,241 62,272
4,276 4,860 5,606 5,224 6,416 6,330 6,535
26,767 44,268 26,783 24,771 26,647 34,219 20,583
279,435 292,575 318,497 338,396 356,972 392,280 495,421
1,086 902 1,390 856 1,420 2,218 1,765
9.804 9.180 5,869 13,517 17.069 6.070 8.351

$ 714158 $ 761.728 $ 784,583 $ 831404 $ 872,601  $ 923.326  $1.048.038
$ 43,561 $ 54,105 $ 49,704 $ 41,936 $ 50,363 $ 53,826 $ 58923
159,482 180,528 168,323 179,380 205,085 226,932 245,738
9,446 12,186 11,815 11,801 15,099 37,321 23,155
308,615 336,488 335,864 351,515 380,983 422,274 467,961
95,698 82,371 83,779 87,282 96,225 100,445 102,427
39,358 39,180 28,256 35,625 35,533 35,100 36,800
3,054 56,227 3,130 24,093 5,864 2,522 1,560
46,819 71,651 10,065 11,327 15,339 39,624 38,589
12,680 10,620 11,450 13,320 13,468 14,885 16,251
13,793 19.012 14,818 16,870 14,696 13,693 13,937

$ 732506 $ 862.368 $ 717,204 $ 273149 $ 832655  $ 946622  $1.005331
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
REAL, UTILITY AND TANGIBLE TAXES

LAST TEN YEARS

Tax Yeat/

Collection Current Delinquent Total Current
Year Levy Levy Levy Collection
1989/1990 $ 221,117,079 21,613,599 $ 242,730,678 $ 215,734,503
1990/1991 260,839,121 23,182,910 284,022,031 253,466,796
1991/1892 268,521,712 28,330,218 296,851,930 258,619,140
1992/1993 268,786,789 28,349,555 297,136,344 258,841,389
1993/1994 270,428,700 © 29,171,681 299,600,381 259,797,166
1994/1995 274,774,712 25,601,379 300,376,091 264,518,998
1995/1996 297,638,447 25,611,370 323,249,817 287,496,258
1996/1997 301,687,315 31,450,099 333,137,414 289,324,803
1997/1998 313,161,002 30,893,055 344,054,057 299,707,825
1998/1999 342,827,633 30,486,779 373,314,412 328,339,476

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission. Includes all direct and overlapping governments.
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Total

Current Collections As

Levy Delinquent Total A Percent Of Cumulative
Collected Collection Collections Current Levy Delinguency
97.6% $ 6,059,869 $ 221,794,372 100.3% $ 19,408,305
97.2% 6,379,352 259,846,148 99.6% 21,997,637
96.3% 7,802,745 266,421,885 99.2% 25,879,345
96.3% 7,324,031 266,165,420 99.0% 27,381,660
96.1% 7,770,629 267,567,795 98.9% 24,211,070
96.3% 7,242,257 271,761,255 98.9% 23,173,179
96.6% 7,571,570 295,067,828 99.1% 25,477,278
95.9% 8,003,728 297,328,531 98.6% 28,804,510
95.7% 9,084,528 308,792,353 98.6% 30,524,427
95.8% 12,015,150 340,354,626 99.3% 28,126,723
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE

OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
REAL PROPERTY PERSONAL PROPERTY
Tax Year/ Estimated Estimated
Collection Assessed Actual Assessed Actual
Year Value Value Value Value
1990/1991 $ 13,972,598 $ 39,921,709 $ 2,676,697 $ 9,913,691
1991/1992 16,616,531 47,475,803 2,606,437 10,024,458
1992/1993 16,760,649 47,887,568 2,532,365 10,129,460
-1993/1994 16,923,520 48,352,914 2,529,616 10,118,464
1994/1995 18,770,759 53,630,740 2,541,031 10,164,124
1995/1996 18,983,267 54,237,906 2,603,148 10,412,592
1996/1997 19,291,442 55,118,406 2,728,871 10,915,484
1997/1998 20,838,304 59,538,011 2,791,334 11,165,336
1998/1999 21,173,385 60,495,385 2,855,467 11,421,868
1999/2000 21,493,369 61,409,625 2,916,480 11,665,920

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission.
(1) Beginning in tax year 1990, percentages for valuing the estimated actual
value of Public Utility properties vary by class, type and age.
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PUBLIC UTILITY TOTAL
Ratio of
Estimated Estimated Assessed To
Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Estimated
Value Valuem Value Value Actual Value
$ 1,383,456 2,766,913 $ 18,032,751 52,602,313 34.3%
1,430,162 2,860,324 20,653,130 60,360,585 34.2%
1,447,110 2,894,220 20,740,124 60,911,248 34.0%
1,446,154 2,892,306 20,899,290 61,363,684 34.1%
1,468,399 2,936,796 22,780,189 66,731,660 34.1%
1,355,615 2,711,230 22,942,030 67,361,728 34.1%
1,337,936 2,675,872 23,358,249 68,709,762 34.0%
1,323,512 2,647,024 24,953,150 73,350,371 34.0%
1,326,935 2,653,870 25,355,787 74,571,123 34.0%
1,223,332 2,446,664 25,633,181 75,522,209 33.9%
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES
ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

CUYAHOGA COUNTY:
General operating ........coeeceeeeercenennns 0.85 092 101 104 096 085 082 112 1.00 0.87
Debt(bond retirement) .....c.cccceerueeen. 0.87 0.80 071 068 076 0.87 090 060 0.72 0.85
Mental retardation ........cccoceecenrneeeene 320 320 320 320 320 300 300 300 300 3.00
Health and human services............. 300 3.00 300 300 300 300 300 3.00 300 3.00
Health and welfare.........cccccevueeeennene. 440 440 440 440 440 440 440 440 310 3.10
SUB-TOTAL ...t 12.32 12,32 12.32 12.32 12.32 12.12 12.12 12.12 10.82 10.82
METROPARKS ..o 155 155 155 155 155 155 1585 1585 155 1.55
CUYAHOGA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 2.80
PORT AUTHORITY ..cceeareeeecrieeneen 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 013 013 0.13 0.13
TOTAL. . 16.80 16.80 16.80 16.80 16.80 16.60 16.60 16.60 15.30 15.30

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT

TO ASSESSED VALUE AND
NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN YEARS
Assessed Less:Baiance Net Ratio of Net
Value Gross General Debt Service General Bonded Bonded Debt Net Debt
- Year Population(1) (Amounts in 000's) Bonded Debt(® Fund(® Debt To Assessed Value Per Capita
1990 1,412,140 $ 18,032,751 $ 107,010,000 $ 2,520,057 $ 104,489,943 0.58% 73.99
1991 1,414,041 20,653,129 155,410,000 3,850,159 151,559,841 0.73% 107.18
1992 1,414,041 20,740,124 147,950,000 3,724,485 144,225,515 0.70% 102.00
1993 1,414,041 20,899,290 172,409,636 4,951,629 167,458,007 0.80% 118.43
1994 1,403,239 22,780,189 161,979,636 919,162 161,060,474 0.71% 114.78
1995 1,396,169 22,942,030 186,799,636 1,069,858 185,729,778 0.81% 133.03
1996 1,401,552 23,358,249 174,639,636 659,673 173,979,963 0.74% 124.13
1997 1,386,803 24,953,150 162,384,636 5,502,241 156,882,395 0.63% 113.13
1998 1,380,686 25,355,787 150,324,636 1,658,842 148,665,694 0.59% 107.67
1999 1,371,717 25,633,181 137,774,636 968,193 136,806,443 0.53% 99.73

(1) Estimates - Various sources. 1981 population figure based on United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census.

(2) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data.

(3) Tax supported debt outstanding December 31.
(4) Balance outstanding December 31, Financial Reporting Section.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Total of all County Debt Outstanding
Debt Exempt from Computation:

Self-Supporting General Obligation Bonds
Sewer Improvement Bonds

County Jail Facilities General Obiigation Bonds ........c.cccecueuuenee.

Gateway Economic Development Bonds
Brownfield Economic Redevelopment Bonds

Total Exempt Debt
Net Indebtedness(Voted and Unvoted)

Less: Available funds in Debt Service fund
as of December 31, 1999(1)

Total Net indebtedness Subject
to Direct Debt Limitation

Assessed Valuation of County(1999 tax year)

Direct Debt Limitation-ORC 133.02 and ORC 133.05
(3% of first $100,000,000 assessed valuation; 1 1/2%
amount in excess of $100,000,000 not in excess of

$300,000,000; 2 1/2% of amount in excess
of $300,000,000)

Total Net Indebtedness(Voted and Unvoted)

DIRECT DEBT MARGIN

Unvoted Debt Limitation{1% of County Assessed Valuation)...........

Total Unvoted Net Indebtedness Subject to 1% Debt Limitation......

UNVOTED DEBT MARGIN

(1) GAAP basis.

$ 310,000
1,820,000
39,380,000
113,054,000
15,025,000

$ 25,633,180,738

$ 267,983,366

169.589.000

98,394,366

968,193

$-97.426.173

$ 639,329,518

97.426.173

$-.541,903,345

$ 256,331,807

88,850,000

$_167.481.807
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 1999
Debt

Gross Service Net Percent County

Debt Fund Debt Appiicable Share(3)
County of Cuyahoga(?) $ 141,004,636 $ 968,193 § 140,036,443 100% $ 140,036,443
Cuyahoga County Cities, Villages, Townships(1) ...... 864,979,698 28,354,938 836,624,760 100% 836,624,760
Cuyahoga County School Districts(@).........c..ocooreeen 482,054,765 72,034,868 410,019,897 100% __410,019.897
Total Net Direct and Overlapping Debt. ......ccccecee $1.,386.681.100

(1) 2000 Tax Budgets filed in July, 1999 and certified unencumbered 2000 balances filed in January, 2000 with Cuyahoga County
Budget Commission. Budgetary basis.

(2) Cuyahoga County School Districts file on fiscal year ending June 30, 1999. Budgetary basis.

(3) Percent applicable to the County of Cuyahoga calculated using assessed valuation of County divided by assessed valuation of
taxing district. Assessed valuation of taxing districts furnished by Cuyahoga County Budget Commission.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of Tax Ratio of
Supported Debt Self-Supported
Debt Service on Debt Service on General Fund Service to Debt Service
General Tax Self-Supporting Expenditures General Fund To General Fund

Year Supported Debt Debt (in 000's)(1) Expenditures Expenditures
1990 $ 14,795,815 $ 326,531 $ 163,956 9.02% 0.20%
1991 41,553,339 310,107 179,580 23.14% 0.17%
1992 18,380,831 1,874,745 188,390 9.76% 1.00%
1993 17,750,996 6,382,925 186,378 9.52% 3.42%
1994 18,985,550 487,425 230,282 8.24% 0.21%
1995 18,522,334 7,746,544 180,658 10.25% 4.29%
1996 21,646,664 8,543,700 203,882 10.62% 4.19%
1997 20,911,716 7,251,900 211,464 9.89% 3.43%
1998 20,132,392 8,445,300 230,582 8.73% 3.66%
1999 21,502,862 8,685,224 242,702 8.86% 3.58%

(1) Budgetary basis.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Financial Reporting Section.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE - HOSPITAL BONDS

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Net Revenue

Available —Debt Service Requirements
Gross « Operating?2 ) for Debt
Year Revenue Expenses Service Principal® Interest Total __ Coverage
1990 $ 282,906 $ 251,642 $ 31,264 $ $ 5,040 $ 5,040 6.20
1991 316,322 277,054 39,268 7,143 7,143 5.50
1992 344,438 302,087 42,351 7,143 7,143 5.93
1993 353,782 328,705 25,077 1,650 7,080 8,740 2.87
1994 329,922 317,136 12,786 1,755 6,981 8,736 1.46
1995 320,124 302,279 - 17,845 1,870 6,863 8,733 2.04
1996 327,711 308,873 18,838 1,990 6,737 8,727 2.16
1997 367,125 334,816 32,309 2,120 8,805 10,925 2.96
1998 387,220 360,642 26,578 4,982 6,863 11,845 2.24
1999 423,981 407,070 16,911 1,955 7,579 9,534 1.77

(1) Gross revenue is total operating revenue plus interest income and operating transfers.
(2) Operating expenses is exclusive of depreciation and bond interest expense.
(3) 1997 principal payment exclusive of refunded bonds.

Source: MetroHealth System. GAAP basis.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY VALUES, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

LAST TEN YEARS
Bank Deposits At

Assessed Value(1) December 31(2) Building
Year (Amounts in §00's) (Amounts in 000's) Permits Issued(3)
1980 $ 18,032,751 $ 19,188,641 23,010
1991 20,653,129 18,392,243 18,550
1992 20,740,124 19,379,280 21,724
1993 20,899,290 21,009,421 19,795
1994 22,780,189 20,885,453 21,480
1995 22,942,030 22,458,573 23,585
1996 23,358,249 27,068,211 21,700
1997 24,953,150 53,941,971 20,612
1998 25,355,787 58,904,596 24,244
1999 25,633,181 57,816,942 23,428

Sources: (1) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data for real, personal and public utility
property.
(2) Banks deposits at year-end for banks headquartered in City of Cleveland-Federal Reserve Bank of
Cleveland (Total demand, time and savings deposits). Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.
(3) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Real Estate Assessment Division.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
poPULATION(T) County MSA
TO4O0 ..ottt eeeee st e e e e st a et e e ra e s e s mnne s 1,217,250 1,319,734
TOB0 e eeeeceereeeereee e e eese b ae e s s s erasrese st e ten s resraaaraaeneraanen 1,389,532 1,532,574
TOB0 ceveeiiesctieeee e eeereeeeecsteseee st e ssnresstes st anararestastsaaesernanee 1,647,895 1,909,483
070 ettt e e e r e e er e e e s st rae s e s e snennsanas 1,721,300 2,063,729
TOBO ceeeeeeeeeceeeeerte st s sesssaaa e e et tesaae et netensbrsseaaareae e sennnn 1,498,400 1,898,825
L 256 LUV PO RON 1,412,140 1,831,122
R = T PO PO 1,371,717 1,835,737
AGE DISTRIBUTION(2) 1990
Number ~___  Percentage

Under 5 yrs...ocvceenneneieececaas 100,144 7.09
S WA/ £ U 239,055 16.93
18 -20 YIS ooeceeereerrnrenrrnrenenas 54,765 3.88
21 =24 YrS . 74,252 5.26
2544 YIS ..eiiiiiienenieiicaens 442,523 31.34
45 - 54 YIS ..t 142,708 10.10
B5 -89 WIS covvviiiirieiiineieecienns 65,345 4.63
B0 -64 YrS.cooveriiricreeiriiinieenens 72,689 5.15
65 - T4 YIS ceviviiiirerercinnneenae 131,297 9.29
75 -84 YIS ..cuiviivviiiriiiirneneenenes 69,054 4.89
85 yrs and OVer ......ccccvcveveennnes 20.308 1.44

TOTAL ..o 1,412,140 100.00
Median age .....cccccocevevercnennnns 34.9
MaleS..c it 662,771
Females .....oooevvvverrecccnieenenneens 749,369

DISTRIBUTION OF FAMILIES BY INCOME BRACKET(3)

1990 1980
(Average 2.5 persons) (Average 2.4 persons)
Number Percentage Number Percentage

$0-4,999....cccieiirrcrrceee e 23,425 4.78 30,144 7.61
$5,000 - 14,999......ccoevvvececnnene 50,386 10.29 87,435 22.08
$15,000 - 24,999 .......coeeueeneens 71,961 14.70 112,047 28.30
$25,000 - 49,999.....cccccvvvernenne 188,143 38.42 138,831 35.07
Over $50,000 ...cccovevrevceerennnenns 155,791 31.81 27.475 6.94

TOTAL ..ccovervecrierereerrnen, 489,706 100.00 395,932 100.00
Median Family Income............. $ 37,140 $ 22,071
Per Capita Income.......c.cccunu.... $ 15,092 $ 8,099

Source: (1) Ohio Department of Development-The Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), as defined by the
Department of Development, includes Cuyahoga, Geauga, Lake and Medina Counties. Population
totals for 1999 are estimates provided by the U.S. Census Bureau.

(2) Ohio Bureau of Employment Services.

(3) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS
Employment - Annual Average(1) 1990 1991 1992 1993
Total Civilian Labor FOrce .....uuvvvivvmeiceeeeeeeeeeannen. 681,000 675,100 678,000 673,900
Total Employed™........cccccimvreeirreceeesnererseeeeeesenns 647,000 635,700 629,200 627,900
Total Unemployed........ccocovveieneneciennccieccieenas 34,000 39,400 48,800 46,000
Unemployment Bate........ccocccvveienciccnniinneeennes 5.0% 5.8% 7.2% 6.8%
Employment By sector(1)
(Amounts in 000's)
Wholesale Professional State
Retail and Related and Local

Manufacturing Trade Services Government

Number % Number % Number % Number %
1990 164.8 21.9 183.4 24.3 212.8 28.2 79.9 10.6
1991 156.0 21.2 179.9 24.4 209.9 28.5 81.2 11.0
1992 147.3 20.4 176.6 24.4 210.1 29.0 82.1 11.3
1993 140.9 19.1 176.4 24.3 219.8 29.9 82.2 11.1
1994 139.5 18.6 181.0 24.1 227.3 30.2 83.6 111
1995 140.0 18.3 187.7 24.5 236.3 30.8 80.1 10.5
1996 137.1 17.8 188.8 245 236.8 30.7 81.1 10.5
1997 136.3 17.3 192.9 24.5 242.8 30.9 84.1 10.7
1998 136.5 17.0 195.1 24.4 252.9 31.6 84.8 10.6
1999 133.3 16.5 195.5 24.2 259.6 32.2 83.3 10.3

Source: (1) Ohio Bureau of Employment Services.
* Difference due to non-county residents employed in county.
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
675,600 676,600 678,800 676,800 699,200 681,200
636,300 644,200 643,800 637,400 668,500 649,900

39,300 32,400 35,000 39,400 30,700 31,300
5.8% 4.8% 5.2% 5.8% 4.4% 4.6%
Finance, Transportation
Insurance, and Public
Real Estate Utilities Other TOTAL*
Number % Number % Number % Number %
50.6 6.7 36.8 4.9 26.0 3.4 754.3 100.0
51.0 7.0 33.7 4.6 24.1 3.3 735.8 100.0
53.1 7.3 324 4.5 22.4 3.1 724.0 100.0
53.7 7.3 31.8 4.3 30.2 4.0 735.0 100.0
56.7 7.5 33.1 4.4 30.5 4.1 751.7 100.0
57.6 7.5 33.2 4.3 31.2 4.1 766.1 100.0
59.8 7.8 33.8 4.4 32.8 4.3 770.2 100.0
62.2 7.9 34.4 4.4 33.4 4.3 786.1 100.0
63.7 7.9 34.9 4.4 32.9 4.1 800.8 100.0
67.9 8.4 34.7 4.3 33.1 4.1 807.4 100.0
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Name of Carrier/ Policy Policy Annual . .
Type of Coverage Number Period Premium Details of Coverage Liability Limit
American States R1CD031567-50 07/01/99 - $181,845 Motor vehicle liability $1,000,000
Insurance Company 07/01/00 insurance covering licensed combined single limit
Auto Liability Insurance and unlicensed county per occurrence
vehicles, bodily injury and
property damage.
Auto Physical $13,800 Automobile physical Actual Cash Value-
Damage insurance damage coverage for $250 and $500
certain limited county comprehensive
vehicles. deductible $250,
$500 and $1,000
collision deductible.
Protection Mutual 552201-99 07/01/99 - $461,225 All risk coverage on county $1,455,623,000
Insurance Company 07/01/00 owned properties, boilers and bianket.
machinery and data processing Replacement cost
equipment. limit $50,000
deductible.
Waestern Heritage SCP0287812 02/06/99 - $6,590 Liability insurance for $1,000,000
02/06/00 private voting places for the combined single
Board of Elections. limit per occurrence
bodily injury and
property damage
and $2,000,000
aggregate.
Fidelity and 003453400 07/01/99 - $10,933 Blanket Bond-Form P including $250,000 per person
Deposit Insurance till canceled faithful performance. Covers $500 deductible limit
Company of Maryland all employees except public of coverage per
Blanket Bond officials who require individual person.
bonds, treasurers, and tax
collectors by whatever title known
Excess Blanket Bond Excess Blanket Bond — Form © $100,000 per loss.
Covers Treasurers’ Department
and Human Services.
Money and Securities Monies and Securities all $400,000 fimit Form
departments. C all departments
except Treasurer at
$1,000,000.
Western World NGL730343 01/12/98- $1,840 Liability insurance for $1,000,000
Insurance Company 01/12/00 Home Health and combined single limit

Source: Department of Central Services, Risk and Property Management.

Nurses Assistance Training

per occurrence
bodily injury and
property damage
and $1,000,000
aggregate.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
Assessed % of Total Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Business Valuation Valuation

Cleveland Electric Electric Utility $ 696,271,800 2.72%
llluminating Company
Ohio Bell Telephone Telephone Utifity 248,470,300 0.97%
Company
Ford Motor Company Automotive Manufacturing 170,064,740 0.66%
East Ohio Gas Company Natural Gas Utility 119,959,090 0.47%
City of Cleveland Enterprise Activities 109,433,740 0.43%
L TV Steel Corporation Steel Manufacturing 104,827,140 0.41%
ZML-Cleveland Public Square  Real Estate Investor 56,306,250 0.22%
General Motors Corporation Automotive Manufacturing 48,939,470 0.19%
Plain Dealer Publishing Daily News Publishing 46,126,500 0.18%
Company
Columbia Gas of Ohio Natural Gas Utility 42 336,860 0.16%
Incorporated

$ 1.642,735.890 6.41%

These taxpayers were selected based solely upon a review of the 200 taxable parcels of real, personal and public
utility property with the highest assessed valuation. A taxpayer owning many smaller parcels would not be included
in this list even if the aggregate assessed valuation of such parcels exceeded that of one or more taxpayers on the

list.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, MIS Division-tax year data.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Date Of INCOIPOIALION......cerreereerrrreeceentrrtesteetessteses e e tetes e e resbesssresasssressbesmereeasassasmas sosnonssssesnss 1810
Twentieth most populous County in the United States'”

Form of Government: Three member elected Board of County Commissioners with legislative and executive powers.
Eight other elected officials with administrative powers.

Area-SqUATE MIIES ..ooveeeereeciirciirniii ettt ettt s b et s at s a e el 459

Number of Political Subdivisions Located in the County

L [E T g T o= 1 ([ OO 57
QLo 0] T o = U 2
Yol gl o Tl B (T (O O OO 33
] o T=To o L B =3 4 ot €=U OO S 13
Total Number of County EMPIOYEES ....cueoieiiieeec ettt st s et 10,429

Voter Statistics, Election of November, 1999(2)

Number of Registerad VOErS .......ooiiiiieiriii st et s st s 827,030
Number of Voters-Last General Election ..o 274,821
Percentage of Registered Voters Voling........c.ccvvvnevincnecncienas eeerteteneeereeaneseeesaneeans 33.2%

MetroHealth System

Total Patient Days-1999 ...ttt st e s sanes e sasbe s 281,209
Total Number of Beds-1999........oviiiieiecerciticrerreersee e s sbec et s ssesesee s s essasnsssssessens 1,196
Average Percent Occupancy-1999........cov it e 66%

Sanitary Engineer

Miles of Sewer Line Operated ........couiiiereiiceieoirencte s crteser s ssee e seer e s seesscaesnees 600

Wastewater Treatment Plants Operated..........oovvveeecicereevieenireienreeeecreresrsineerccsnsesesssvansennes 5

Pump Stations Operated ... iiiicoimnicnt e e 39
-Airport

o 7= (o = U RO 16

Y| (o] - 1 OO OO O TSRO 145

Traffic(Takeoffs and Landings) ....c.covciiiieniciiiiiniciieceer e cee et e s eresaesaeeas 74,517

Office BUIIHINGS.....cccoececeeririee et etrrtrs e reeaesseesraeest s rseresanime st csbsshe s e s e s e baasbensane s masesbsssasnas 7
Other

Number of Colleges and Universities in COUNtY ......c.cccoviiiiniiinininniicii e 8

Source: (1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census.
(2) Cuyahoga County Board of Elections.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
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88 Fast Broad Street

STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

CUYAHOGA COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Pablitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU
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DECEMBER 26, 2000
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